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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
and the management, | am pleased to present the report on the
development status and operating results of Neo-Neon Holdings
Limited (the “"Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the
"Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2022.

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2022, we did not hear the news of improvement in the COVID-19
pandemic. Intermittent outbreaks of COVID-19 recurred around the
world unchecked, causing multiple impacts on the global economy
recovery and trading activities. The Russia-Ukraine military conflict at
the beginning of the year has added to the already fragile world
economy; meanwhile, the ideological conflict intensified with
strengthened sanctions, while unilateralism is rapidly rising. The
global economic development, in an era of high oil price and facing
natural and man-made disasters, is at another crossroads... In view
of challenges and difficulties, the Group has adjusted its strategies in
a timely manner and formulated realistic contingency plans and
measures to minimize the impact of a series of adverse factors on the
operation of the Group and the Company.

In the face of severe difficulties and challenges, we mustered up our
confidence and rose to the occasion, and achieved growth in both
revenues and gross profit for the lighting segment in 2022. Both the
Group and the Company have turned loss into profit against market
trend, and is a year with double good results for the main business in
recent years. Amid the severe pandemic and high inflation situation
in the United States, the USA lighting segment was able to achieve
remarkable results, building the foundation for the Group and the
Company to achieve “dual growth” and “turning loss into profit”.
This proves the value of advance planning as well as establishing an
efficient supply chain platform system and establishing a diverse and
multifaceted marketing model. Of course, it also shows the
determination of all staff members to work together to overcome
obstacles.

The Group will continue to increase its support and resources in its
core business, the LED lighting segment, strengthen its research and
development capabilities and keep in line with market demands so
that it can continue to increase its market share and profitability
through technological innovation and product iteration and
upgrading. By developing the traditional LED market and opening up
new horizons for smart LEDs, the Group expects to make a greater
contribution to stabilizing its performance and maintaining its market
share.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
TEHEE (&)

Tongfang Securities Limited (hereinafter referred to as “Tongfang
Finance”), another business segment of the Group, was adversely
affected by a number of factors, including the pandemic and the
economic downturn in 2021, and its business operation was loss
making. In 2022, the Group has implemented a planned and orderly
shutdown arrangement to effectively stop losses in a timely manner
and implement its strategic objective of “focusing on research and
development and channel development while being light-asset” to
focus on its main business. The shutdown will continue in 2023 and
is progressing in an orderly manner.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

The global economy recovery is weak and has limited momentum.
Uncertainties are on the rise, and risks such as artificially-created
trade frictions, rising unilateralism, arbitrary unilateral economic
sanctions, escalating geopolitics events and frequent local military
conflicts will all contribute to instability and adverse effects in the
already fragile recovery of global economy. In 2023, we intend to
continue to focus on the Group’s core business, the LED lighting
segment, and dispose of or divest ourselves of high-risk and
low-efficiency industries and businesses. We will also reduce the
number of tiers and platform companies to focus our capital and
resources on our core business and seek promising projects that are
in line with our development philosophy and vision, so as to fully
utilize and leverage the strengths of our core business, thereby
enabling the Group’s core businesses to grow stronger and to go
wider and further.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

I would like to take this opportunity to acknowledge the continuous
support from all of our shareholders, clients, business partners and
suppliers. On behalf of the Group, | hereby express my heartfelt
gratitude to the members of the Board and all our employees for
their contributions to the Group.

Gao Zhi
Chairman
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Expressed in RMB million NEEAREZ5]

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
B

Year ended 31 December

BZ+-A=t—-HEE

2019 2020 2021 2022
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES

ESREREEERBE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Gao Zhi (§%)

Mr. Gao zZhi (;F7), aged 59, was appointed as an executive Director,
the president and chief executive officer of the Company with effect
from 9 January 2020, and he is responsible for all the businesses
(except the financial business) of the Group. On 26 March 2020, he
was appointed as the chairman of the Board. Mr. Gao graduated
from Tsinghua University of China with a bachelor degree in
engineering in 1984 and a master degree in business administration
in 2006. He is currently the deputy president of Tsinghua Tongfang
and has held various positions with the company since 1997
including assistant president, general manager of the operation
center and the department of business administration, deputy
general manager of sales center and applied information system
headquarter. Prior to that, he was a manager at the production
department of TsingHua TongFang Artificial Environment Co., Ltd *
(AEFBEATIRETIERA]) from September 1989 to July 1997, and
a teacher with Taiyuan Engineering College* (KR E8T) from
August 1984 to September 1989.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Liang Wu Quan (RE 2)

Mr. Liang Wu Quan (2 %), aged 46, was appointed as a
non-executive Director on 25 June 2021. Mr. Liang graduated from
South China University (previously known as Zhongnan Industrial
University)* (FEE K2 - FifEA @ T267) with a bachelor degree in
Economics in 1997 and graduated from Tsinghua University (&% X
) with a Master degree in Accounting in 2009. He has been
recognised as a senior accountant* (S & & &+Af) and Nation’s
Leading Accounting Talent* (2@ 548% A ) in 2008 and 2016
respectively. Mr. Liang has extensive experience in financial
management. He has been the financial controller and head of
finance of Tsinghua Tongfang Co., Ltd.* (RAKRMHBERAR), a
company limited on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code:
600100) and the ultimate holding company of the Company, since
February 2020. Prior to that, from July 1997 to February 2020, he
was with China National Nuclear Corporation* (FRE#% T2 £ B AR
‘A A]) and its member companies in various key positions.

Neo-Neon Holdings Limited e Annual Report 2022
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES (CONTINUED)

Mr. Zhou Hai Ying (E#&%)

Mr. Zhou Hai Ying (JA/8%), aged 53, was appointed as a
non-executive Director on 9 January 2020. Mr. Zhou graduated from
Jiangxi University of Finance and Economics* (I FaEF4FE28T) with a
bachelor degree. He has extensive experience in financial
management. He had been the financial controller of Tsinghua
Tongfang from January 2018 to 24 February 2020 and was appointed
as the director of operation management of Tsinghua Tongfang and
general manager of its operation management department in April
2020. Prior to that, he was with Tsinghua Holdings Co., Ltd.* (&%
PERR B PR A 7)) between May 2003 and January 2018 and held various
positions including senior manager and deputy head of the finance
department, head of asset and finance management department,
and the assistant to the president. He is also an executive director of
China Medical & HealthCare Group Limited, a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 383).

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Fan, Ren Da Anthony (GB1=i%)

— 332

Dr. Fan Ren Da, Anthony (CB1Z#%), aged 62, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company on 25 August
2014. Dr. Fan is the chairman and managing director of Asialink
Capital Limited and also an independent non- executive director of
Technovator International Limited (stock code: 1206), Raymond
Industrial Limited (stock code: 229), Shanghai Industrial Urban
Development Group Limited (stock code: 563), China Dili Group
(stock code: 1387), Citic Resources Holdings Limited (stock code:
1205), China Development Bank International Investment Limited
(stock code: 1062), Hong Kong Resources Holdings Company Limited
(stock code: 2882) and Semiconductor Manufacturing International
Corporation (stock code: 981). Dr. Fan has been re-designated from
an independent non-executive director to an executive director and
resigned as the chairman of the remuneration committee and a
member of each of the audit committee and the nomination
committee of Tenfu (Cayman) Holdings Company Limited (stock
code: 6868), a company listed on the Stock Exchange, with effect
from 18 May 2021. Dr. Fan also serves as a non-executive director of
Hilong Holding Limited (stock code: 1623). Dr. Fan was an
independent non-executive director of Lerthai Group Limited
(formerly known as LT Commercial Real Estate Limited, stock code:
112) from March 2013 to June 2017, Guodian Technology &
Environment Group Corporation Limited (stock code: 1296) from
September 2011 to August 2017 and of CGN New Energy Holdings
Co., Ltd. (stock code: 1811) from September 2014 to June 2018. All
of the said companies are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. Dr. Fan holds a master’s degree in business administration
from the U.S.A. and a PhD degree in Economics.

EXNEREEERE (&)
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES (CONTINUED)
ESRGREEERE (&)

Mr. Liu Tian Min (Bl XE)

Mr. Liu Tian Min (22X R), aged 61, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 25 August 2014. He is the managing
partner of SB China Venture Capital Limited, non-executive director
of Technovator International Limited (stock code: 1206) and the
independent director of Taiwan Wax Company, Ltd. (stock code:
1742). Mr. Liu served as vice president of Tsinghua Tongfang and the
general manager of digital TV system group from 2003 to 2009.
Technovator International Limited is listed on the Main Board of
Stock Exchange, and Taiwan Wax Company, Ltd. is listed on Taiwan
Stock Exchange.

Ms. Li Ming Qi (ZfE#)

Ms. Li Ming Qi (22FE#), aged 55, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 25 August 2014. She graduated from
Fudan University in Shanghai. She received a Bachelor of Economics
and later obtained a Master of Economics from the Southern
Methodist University and a Master of Science in Management and
Administrative Sciences from the University of Texas in Dallas.

From March 2011 to November 2014, she served as the independent
board director of Sino Gas International Holdings, Inc., which is listed
on the Over-The-Counter Bulletin Board in the United States of
America (“USA") (stock code: SGAS). After graduation, Ms. Li served
as a senior associate of PricewaterhouseCoopers and JP Morgan
Chase, and as portfolio manager of BHF Capital and Transamerica
Business Capital. More recently, she serviced as a Vice President in
Morgan Stanley New York and as a hedge fund controller of Mercury
Capital Management in Greenwich Connecticut.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES (CONTINUED)

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Gao Zhi (&7). Please refer to the details set out above under
the paragraph headed “Executive Directors” in this section.

Mr. Lian Chenwei (ZF &)

Mr. Lian Chenwei, aged 45, was appointed as the vice president of
our Company on 1 August 2022. Mr. Lian graduated from Taiyuan
University of Technology (KR T A2 with a bachelor’s degree in
environmental engineering in July 1999. He was certified as an
Environmental Engineering Engineer in October 2009 by Shanghai
China National Nuclear Puyuan Corp. (FFE /8 EZIHFRE N F]). He
obtained a bachelor’s degree in Economics from Renmin University of
China in July 2003, a master degree in Management from East China
University of Science and Technology in July 2011 and a master
degree in Accounting from The Chinese University of Hong Kong in
July 2018. He obtained a qualified certificate as a Chartered Financial
Analyst in February 2012. He obtained a Registered Qualification
Certificate Enterprise Legal Adviser of the PRC (FpZE A RAFME (2
EEBEREEEKILE) in October 2013. Mr. Lian has extensive
experience in investment management, business planning, legal
affairs and scientific research. Mr. Lian was the secretary of the
disciplinary committee of CNNC Shenzhen KaiLi Group Co., LTD.
from October 2016 to July 2022.

Mr. Liu Wei (8l&)

Mr. Liu Wei (2I#), aged 47, was appointed as the chief financial
officer of our Company on 14 December 2021. Mr. Liu graduated
from Zhongnan Institute of Technology* (R TZT) (currently
known as University of South China* (R K&)) with a bachelor’s
degree in accountancy in June 1997. He obtained a Registered
Qualification Certificate Enterprise Legal Adviser of the PRC (FREE A
REMBPELZEMBPEERAE) in October 2012. He was also
certified as a Senior Accountant by China National Nuclear
Corporation* (FEI#Z T % B A7) in December 2006, and was
certificated as a Professional Level Senior Accountant in 2022. Mr. Liu
has extensive experience in financial management and corporate
management.

Mr. Ho Yuk Ming Hugo (fi] & Bf)

Mr. Ho Yuk Ming Hugo (ff5#7), aged 51, was appointed as the
company secretary of our Company on 11 November 2021. He has
over 20 years of experience in auditing, accounting and financial
management and has been a certified public accountant in Hong
Kong for over 20 years. Mr. Ho held senior positions in a number of
listed companies in Hong Kong prior to joining the Group. Mr. Ho is
an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He graduated from the Hong Kong Shue Yan College
(currently known as Hong Kong Shue Yan University) with a honours
diploma in accounting in July 1996. Currently, Mr. Ho is an
independent non-executive director of Wan Leader International
Limited (Stock code: 8482), and is the company secretary of RMH
Holdings Limited (Stock code: 8437) and Asia Television Holdings
Limited (Stock code: 707) respectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEEN @R DN

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The total revenue of continuing operations for the year ended 31
December 2022 was approximately RMB927.5 million, representing
an increase of approximately 7.4% as compared to approximately
RMB863.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2021. For further
details, please see below.

Since Securities Group has been classified as a discontinued
operation, securities segment was no longer included in the note for
operating segment information. The details of discontinued operation
is disclosed separately under the headline “Discontinued Operation”.

Continuing Operations

The revenue from continuing operations (research and development,
manufacturing, distribution and providing solutions of lighting
products) for the year ended 31 December 2022 was approximately
RMB927.5 million, which represents an increase of approximately
RMB63.6 million as compared to approximately RMB863.9 million for
the year ended 31 December 2021, mainly due to the increased
revenue of approximately RMB39.5 million and RMB24.1 million from
the USA lighting segment and the PRC lighting segment respectively.
During the year ended 31 December 2022, the USA lighting segment
continued expanding sales channels and the PRC lighting segment
increased product prices, achieving good results.

Cost of sales

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the cost of sales from
continuing operations was approximately RMB579.9 million,
representing a decrease of approximately RMB48.6 million over
approximately RMB628.5 million for the year ended 31 December
2021 primarily due to the decrease of material costs and decrease in
provision of impairment in inventories.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group recorded a gross
profit of approximately RMB347.6 million for continuing operations,
representing an increase of approximately RMB112.2 million over the
gross profit of approximately RMB235.4 million for the year ended
31 December 2021 primarily due to the expansion of sales channels
with high gross profit for the USA lighting segment and decrease in
provision of impairment in inventories.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Other income, gains and losses, net

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group recorded other
income, gains and losses, net of approximately RMB60.5 million for
continuing operations, representing a increase of approximately
RMB39.7 million over approximately RMB20.8 million for the year
ended 31 December 2021, mainly due to the increase in bank
interest income and net foreign exchange gains of approximately
RMB15.4 million and RMB30.6 million in 2022 respectively.

Provision for impairment, net

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the net amount of reversal
impairment provision for continuing operations was approximately
RMB2.4 million, representing a decrease of approximately RMB26.3
million over approximately RMB24.0 million for the year ended 31
December 2021, mainly due to the recovery of certain aged
receivables of approximately RMB3.3 million and the decrease in
provision of impairment loss for other receivables of approximately
RMB9.45 million during 2022.

Operating expenses

The selling and distribution expenses from continuing operations
mainly comprised of staff costs, promotion and advertising, freight
and transportation, agency and custom costs, and rent and rates.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the selling and distribution
expenses for the continuing operations of the Group were
approximately RMB202.9 million, representing an increase of
approximately RMB41.4 million over approximately RMB161.5 million
for the year ended 31 December 2021, mainly attributable to the
severe inflation during 2022, and the increased sales channels
incurring higher selling expenses for the USA lighting segment.

The administrative expenses mainly comprised of staff costs, directors
remuneration, depreciation charge and professional and legal fees.
The administrative expenses of the continuing operations for the year
ended 31 December 2022 were approximately RMB103.6 million,
representing an increase of approximately RMB1.9 million over
approximately RMB101.7 million for the year ended 31 December
2021, mainly due to the severe inflation during 2022 and the
increase in labor costs for the USA lighting segment.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEEENwWR DM (&)

Finance costs

The finance costs of the continuing operations for the year ended 31
December 2022 were approximately RMB3.3 million, representing a
decrease of approximately RMBO.6 million over approximately
RMB3.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2021, mainly due to
no loan from the ultimate holding company in 2022.

Taxation

For the year ended 31 December 2022, tax charge of continuing
operations of approximately RMB14.9 million (2021: RMB15.6
million) mainly included current tax charge for the year of
approximately RMB24.4 million and deferred tax credit of
approximately RMB6.1 million.

Discontinued Operation

The loss after tax of Securities Group for the year ended 31
December 2022 were approximately RMB35.9 million, representing a
decrease of approximately RMB184.9 million over approximately
RMB220.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2021 mainly due
to the decrease in provision of impairment losses on financial assets
and goodwill recorded in the prior period.

Profit attributable to owners of the parent

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group recorded profit
attributable to owners of the parent of approximately RMB48.8
million, representing an increase of approximately RMB321 million
over loss of approximately RMB272.2 million for the year ended 31
December 2021. Such increase in profit was primarily due to the
decrease in provision of impairment loss of approximately RMB164.8
million from the Securities Group, the increase in gross profit from
continuing operations of approximately RMB112.2 million and the
increase in interest income from bank deposits from continuing
operations of approximately RMB15.4 million during 2022.

Net Results

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group recorded a net
profit of approximately RMB49.9 million, as compared to a net loss
of approximately RMB271.2 million for the year ended 31 December
2021. The reasons for such increase are same as the reasons for
profit attributable to owners of the parent.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Financial Resources, Liquidity and Gearing Ratio

The Group maintained a stable financial position. As at 31 December
2022, the Group had cash and cash equivalents of approximately
RMB783.3 million. The gearing ratio representing the ratio of total
loans and total lease liabilities to total equity of the Group was 3.4%
as at 31 December 2022 (31 December 2021: 6.0%). This was due to
the repayment of short-term borrowings of RMB36.7 million by the
USA lighting company.

Assets and Liabilities

As at 31 December 2022, the Group recorded the total assets of
approximately RMB1,728.8 million (31 December 2021:
approximately RMB1,653.3 million) and total liabilities of
approximately RMB246.7 million (31 December 2021: approximately
RMB276.8 million).

As at 31 December 2022, the Group's current assets and non-current
assets were approximately RMB1,298.2 million (31 December 2021:
approximately RMB1,243.8 million) and approximately RMB430.6
million (31 December 2021: approximately RMB409.5 million),
respectively. The increase in current assets is due to the increase in
cash and cash equivalents of approximately RMB84.8 million.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group's current liabilities and
long-term liabilities were approximately RMB196.8 million (31
December 2021: RMB233.8 million) and approximately RMB49.9
million (31 December 2021: RMB43.0 million), respectively. The
decrease in current liabilities was mainly attributable to the decrease
in interest-bearing bank borrowings of approximately RMB36.7
million.

Foreign Currency Risk

Several subsidiaries of the Company have sales and purchases
denominated in currencies other than the functional currency of
respective entities, which expose the Group to foreign currency risk.
The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy
to eliminate the currency exposures. However, the management of
the Group monitors the related foreign currency exposure closely and
will consider hedging significant foreign currency exposures should
the needs arise.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEEENwWR DM (&)

Charges on Assets

As at 31 December 2022, the Group pledged certain of its trade
receivables and inventories with an aggregate carrying value of
approximately RMB224.2 million (31 December 2021: RMB199.1
million) to secure bank credit facilities granted to the Group.

Capital Commitments

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had no capital expenditure
contracted for but not provided in the financial statements in respect
of the acquisition of property, plant and equipment (31 December
2021: Nil).

Contingent Liabilities

During the year ended 31 December 2022, certain subsidiaries are
parties to various legal claims in their ordinary course of business. In
the opinion of the Directors, these claims would not have a
significant impact on the Group’s results and financial position.

Capital Structure

As at 31 December 2022, the issued share capital of the Company
was approximately RMB185,672,131 (equivalent to approximately
HK$209,446,542) (31 December 2021: approximately
RMB185,672,131 (equivalent to approximately HK$209,446,542),
divided into 2,094,465,417 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each.

Provision of Revolving Loans to Tongfang

On 3 January 2023, the Company and Guangdong Tongfang Science
Park Company Limited* (BRR A EHZE B AR]) (as lenders) and
Tsinghua Tongfang Co., Ltd.* (BT RMBR A F]) (“Tongfang”)
entered into a loan agreement, pursuant to which the lender(s) will
provide revolving loans of not exceeding RMB400,000,000 to
Tongfang during the term of the loan agreement commencing from
13 March 2023 to 12 March 2026. The loan agreement was
approved by the independent shareholders at the extraordinary
general meeting held on 10 March 2023.

Pursuant to the terms of the loan agreement, the lender(s) keeps the
sole discretion to make its decision on whether or not to provide
loans to Tongfang per its borrowing requests, as such the Group has
flexibility to maintain sufficient cash resources for its operation and
development while the provision of loans has provided the Group the
opportunities to earn additional interest income from idle cash
resources from time to time.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Material Acquisition and Disposal and Significant
Investment

There were no significant investments held, nor were there any
material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures during the year under review.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board resolved not to declare any dividend for the year ended 31
December 2022 (31 December 2021: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the period under review, intensifying international geopolitical
crisis, coupled with the dual challenges of regional conflicts and the
COVID-19 pandemic, had a significant impact on global economic
growth and inflation, which brought uncertainties to the business of
the Company. Despite the difficulties, the Company, under the
leadership of its management, proactively dealt with difficulties and
managed to achieve steady revenue growth and improvement in
profitability. The USA lighting segment continued to generate the
Company’s most revenue and profit during the period. During the
year, the USA lighting segment adopted the adjusted strategy of
increasing sales channels with high gross profit while reducing those
with low gross profit, achieving a growth in gross profit. After
disposing of non-performing legacy assets last year, the PRC segment
improved its gross profits and achieved a turnaround during the
period. The lighting industry has entered a period of stable growth at
the moment.

In the future, we will continue to focus on the Group’s core business,
the LED lighting segment, plan strategic key areas, enter new markets
through the development of new products, increase our promotion
efforts on social media, adjust product prices, and establish the goal
of gradual occupation of the lighting market to increase profit
source; the USA lighting segment will keep its focus on expanding
channels, product innovation, supply chain upgrade, optimization of
management model and explore potential business opportunities to
address opportunities and challenges in the lighting industry; the PRC
lighting segment will further relocate its production capacity to
Vietnam to improve gross profit.

Currently, Tongfang Securities has discontinued its operations. This
resulted in Tongfang Securities incurring only overheads in contrast
to last year’s substantial loss.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
EEBS@mR DM (&)

Lastly, the Group will continue to strengthen its organization to
achieve steady growth in business and market; build up a team of
international management talents, ensure that members of the
leadership team are able to cultivate new talent in a guiding and
inclusive manner, encourage innovative thinking in all employees,
strengthen cultural development to align with overall strategic to
guarantee long-term steady growth.

Sales and Distribution
Lighting Segment

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group took efforts in
distribution and marketing, cultivating the new sales channels and
promoting the new brand of lighting products. The Group proactively
made deployment in branding establishment and sales channel in the
world’s fastest growing markets and brought to its customers better
sales services in energy-saving technologies and solutions.

Research and Development (“R&D")

The Group's R&D efforts were driven towards product design, new
product development and production efficiency improvement in
order to reduce the overall production cost.

Employees and Remuneration

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s total number of employees
was 557 (31 December 2021: 703). The basic remunerations of the
employees are determined with reference to the industry
remuneration benchmark, the employees’ experience and their
performance. Salaries of employees are maintained at a competitive
level and are reviewed annually, with close reference to the relevant
labour market and economic situation. Directors’ remuneration is
determined based on a variety of factors such as market conditions
and responsibilities assumed by each Director. Apart from the basic
remuneration and statutory benefits required by laws, the Group
provides discretionary bonus based upon the Group’s results and the
individual performance of the staff.
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The Directors are pleased to present their annual report and the
audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in note 1
to the financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A business review of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2022 has been set out in the section headed “"Management
Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.

FUTURE DEVELOPMENT

An indication of the future development in the Group's business is
shown on has been set out in the sections headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis” and “Chairman’s Statement” of this annual
report.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the principal subsidiaries of the Group as of 31 December
2022 are set out in note 1 to the financial statements.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The declaration, form, frequency and amount of any dividend payout
of the Company must be in accordance with relevant laws, rules and
regulations and subject to the articles of association of the Company
(the "Articles of Association”). Subject to compliance with applicable
laws, rules, regulations and the Articles of Association, in deciding
whether to propose any dividend payout, the Board will take into
account, among other things, the financial results, the amount of
distributable profits, the liquidity and capital requirements, the cash
flow, taxation, and the future business plans of the Company.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 and
the Group’s financial position at that date are set out on pages 106
to 255 of this annual report. The Board resolved not to declare any
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and assets, liabilities and non-controlling
interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted
from the published audited financial statements, is set out on page
257 of this annual report. Such summary does not form part of the
audited financial statements.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The annual general meeting of the Company (the “AGM") will be
held in Hong Kong on Friday, 30 June 2023. Notice of the AGM will
be issued and disseminated to shareholders of the Company in due
course.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the AGM of
the Company to be held on Friday, 30 June 2023, the register of
members of the Company will be closed from Tuesday, 27 June 2023
to Friday, 30 June 2023, both days inclusive, during which period no
transfer of shares will be effected. In order to be eligible to attend
and vote at the AGM, all transfers of shares accompanied by the
relevant share certificates and transfer forms must be lodged with
the Company’s branch share registrars in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor
Services Limited at 17/F., Far East Financial Centre, 16 Harcourt Road,
Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 26
June 2023. The record date for the entitlement to attend the AGM
will be on Friday, 30 June 2023.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movements during the year in the Group’s property, plant and
equipment are set out in note 14 to the financial statements.
Movements during the year in the Group’s investment properties are
set out in note 15 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements during the year in the share capital of the
Company are set out in note 30 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Group are set out in
consolidated statement of changes in equity of the financial
statement. At 31 December 2022, the aggregate amount of reserves
available for distribution to equity shareholders of the Company was
RMB1,531 million.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Articles of
Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
Shareholders.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company up to the date of this report are:

Executive Director

Mr. Gao Zhi
Mr. Liu Zhigang (resigned on 1 April 2023)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Liang Wu Quan
Mr. Zhou Hai Ying

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Fan Ren Da, Anthony
Mr. Liu Tian Min
Ms. Li Ming Qi

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

The updated information of the Directors and senior management is
set out on page 8 to page 11 of this report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

There was no contract of significance in relation to the Group’s
business to which the Company or any of subsidiaries and fellow
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of the Company had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the period or at any time during the year under review.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year under review was the Company or any of
its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement whose objectives are to
enable a Director of the Company to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any
other body corporate, other than under the 2016 Share Option
Scheme, the Subsidiary Share Incentive Plan and the Share Award
Scheme, as disclosed below.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Directors is or was interested in any business, apart from
the Group’s business, that competes or competed or is or was likely
to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the Group’s business at
any time for the year ended 31 December 2022 and up to the date
hereof.

DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2022, none of the Directors nor the chief
executive of the Company and their respective associates had or was
deemed to have any interests or short positions in the Shares,
underlying Shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which have
been notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, including interests and short
positions which the Directors and the chief executive of the Company
are taken and deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO, or
which are required to be and are recorded in the register required to
be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

At no time was the Company, its holding company of the Company,
or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the
Directors and the chief executive of the Company (including their
spouse and children under 18 years of age) to hold any interest or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO).
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2022, so far as the Directors are aware, the
following persons (other than the Directors and the executive
officers) have interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying
Shares which are required to be disclosed to the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in
the register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO were
as follows:

DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
EEEREE (R)

FTERRNKRAD R EER G #E

2L N/ -
ﬁﬁ&/ﬁ%

R-E-__F+-_A=+—H HEZEH
M TIAL(BEEREIETHRABRINR
Bt kAR RA R 0 P BB R IBRE 5 M B &P
EXVEBF2R3D A G X AT HE S K
KRB IREBEEF LB EERDIFI36IEKEAT
FENELTMARENERIORE

Number of Percentage of total

Ordinary Shares as at issued share capital as at

Name Capacity 31 December 2022 31 December 2022
fER=B==
R=2== +=H=+—H
+=A=+—8 2BITRAE
£ 51 VEBREE HEMNE DL
ResuccessM®@ Beneficial owner 1,357,442,690 64.81%
Resuccess @ EnEEA
Tsinghua Tongfang™@ Interest of controlled
corporation 1,357,442,690 64.81%
B R H M@ YRS EE S
Vast Stone Limited® Beneficial owner 177,227,723 8.46%
Vast Stone Limited® EmEEA
Daniel P.W. Li® Interest of controlled
corporation 177,227,723 8.46%
Daniel P.W. Li® RIEHDEE R
Notes: M

(1) Resuccess directly holds 1,357,442,690 Shares in the Company. Tsinghua
Tongfang holds the entire issued share capital of Resuccess, therefore,
Tsinghua Tongfang is deemed to be interested in all Shares held by
Resuccess.

(2) Daniel P.W. Li holds the entire issued share capital of Vast Stone Limited and
is therefore deemed to be interested in all 177,227,723 Shares held by Vast
Stone Limited.

(1) ResuccessE # #f 8 N 2 7 f& 191,357,442,690
A% o [@ 75 B (5 £ AResuccess® B2 2 B 1T LA -
It B 5 B 19 42 45, & % B ResuccessFT 5 A M) AT
AR

(2)  Daniel P.W. Li#AVast Stone Limited® 2B & %

AR A - A 48 AR Vast Stone Limited i
B2 ER177,227, 7230 D P A 1S -
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Save as mentioned above, as at 31 December 2022, the Company
had not been notified of any interests and short positions in the
Shares and underlying Shares of the Company which had been
entered in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the
SFO.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of connected transactions are set out in the section headed
“Contracts with Controlling Shareholders” on page 32 of the annual
report.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions undertaken by the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in note 38 to the
financial statements. None of these related party transactions
constitutes a connected transaction or continuing connected
transaction as defined under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules that is
required to be disclosed.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Share Option Scheme”, as
at the end of and during the year ended 31 December 2022, the
Company did not enter into (i) any agreement that will or may result
in the Company issuing Shares; or (ii) any agreement requiring the
Company to enter into any agreement specified in (i).
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has adopted the 2016 Share Option Scheme since on
13 May 2016 to optimize eligible persons’ future contributions to the
Group and/or to reward them for their past contributions, to attract
and retain or otherwise maintain ongoing relationships with such
eligible persons who are significant to and/or whose contributions
are or will be beneficial to the performance, growth or success of the
Group, and additionally in the case of Executive (as defined in the
2016 Share Option Scheme), to enable the Group to attract and
retain individuals with experience and ability and/or to reward them
for their past contributions.

Eligible persons include any of the following persons: (a) an
Executive, any full-time or part-time employee, or a person for the
time being seconded to work full-time or part-time for any member
of the Group or of an Eligible Entity (as defined in the 2016 Share
Option Scheme); (b) a director or proposed director (including an
independent non-executive director) of any member of the Group or
of an Eligible Entity; (c) a direct or indirect shareholder of any
member of the Group; (d) a supplier of goods or services to any
member of the Group or of an Eligible Entity; (e) a customer,
consultant, business or joint venture partner, franchisee, contractor,
agent or representative of any member of the Group or of an Eligible
Entity; (f) a person or entity that provides design, research,
development or other support or any advisory, consultancy,
professional or other services to any member of the Group or of an
Eligible Entity; and (g) an associate of any of the foregoing persons.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon the
exercise of all the options to be granted under the 2016 Share
Option Scheme was 193,931,969, representing approximately 10%
of the total number of Shares in issue as at the date of the adoption
and representing 9.26% of the issued share capital of the Company
as at the date of this annual report. The number of options available
for grant under the 2016 Share Option Scheme was 193,931,969 as
at 1 January 2022 and 31 December 2022.

No option may be granted to any participant of the 2016 Share
Option Scheme such that the total number of shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted and to be granted to
that person in any 12-month period up to the date of the latest grant
exceeds 1% of the Company’s issued share capital from time to time.
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An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
2016 Share Option Scheme at any time during a period as
determined by the Board and not exceeding 10 years from the date
of the grant. There is no minimum period for which an option must
be held before it can be exercised. Participants of the 2016 Share
Option Scheme are required to pay the Company HK$1.0 upon
acceptance of the grant on or before the 28 days after the offer
date. The exercise price of the options is determined by the Board in
its absolute discretion and shall not be less than whichever is the
highest of:

(a) the nominal value of a share;

(b) the closing price of a share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheets on the offer date; and

(c) the average closing price of a share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the offer date.

The 2016 Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a
period of 10 years from the adoption date, after which no further
options will be granted or offered. The remaining life of the 2016
Share Option Scheme is approximately 3 years.

Since the adoption of the 2016 Share Option Scheme, no share
options have been granted.

Subsidiary Share Incentive Plan

On 2 April 2015, the Company adopted the Subsidiary Share
Incentive Plan by Shareholders’ approval in order to advance the
interests of current and future stockholders of American Lighting, by
enhancing American Lighting’s ability to attract, retain and motivate
persons who make (or are expected to make) important contributions
to American Lighting by providing such persons with equity
ownership opportunities and thereby better aligning the interests of
such persons with those of the Company’s stockholders. The
Subsidiary Share Incentive Plan is valid for ten years after its adoption.
The remaining life of the Subsidiary Share Incentive Plan is
approximately 2 years. The eligible persons include the employees,
consultants, and directors of American Lighting or any parent or
subsidiary of American Lighting.
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Subject to adjustment under the Subsidiary Share Incentive Plan,
awards may be made under the Subsidiary Share Incentive Plan
covering up to 3,632 shares of common stock (all of which may, but
need not, be granted as incentive stock options, subject to any
limitations under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986), which is equal
to 10% of the issued and outstanding shares of Common Stock on
the date when the Subsidiary Share Incentive Plan is adopted and
approved by the Shareholders and as at the date of this annual
report. If any award expires or lapses or is terminated, surrendered or
cancelled without having been fully exercised or is forfeited in whole
or in part (including as the result of shares of common stock subject
to such award being repurchased by the Company at or below the
original issuance price), in any case in a manner that results in any
shares of common stock covered by such award not being issued or
being so reacquired by the Company, the unused Common Stock
covered by such award shall again be available for the grant of
awards under the Subsidiary Share Incentive Plan.

The total number of shares of common stock issued and to be issued
upon the exercise of options granted and to be granted to each
Service Provider (as defined in the Subsidiary Share Incentive Plan)
(including both exercised and outstanding options) in any period of
twelve (12) consecutive months up to and including the date of grant
shall not exceed 1% of shares of common stock in issue as at the
date of grant. The Company may grant further options in excess of
such limit set out in subject to approval by the Shareholders in
general meeting in accordance with the Listing Rules, at which the
Service Provider involved and its close associates (or the Service
Provider’s associates if the Service Provider is a connected person)
shall be required to abstain from voting.
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The Administrator (as defined in the Subsidiary Share Incentive Plan)
shall establish the exercise price of each Option and specify the
exercise price in the applicable award agreement. The exercise price
shall be not less than 100% of the Option Exercise Price, which
means, as of any date, the price per share of common stock payable
on the exercise of the option and determined as follows: (i) if the
common stock is listed on any established stock exchange (including
but not limited to) a National Securities Exchange (within the
meaning of the Exchange Act); the Option Exercise Price shall be the
greater of (A) the closing sales price for such common stock as
quoted on such exchange on the date of grant of the option, or if no
sale occurred on such date, the first market trading day immediately
prior to such date during which a sale occurred; and (B) the average
closing sales price for such common stock as quoted on such
exchange for the five business days preceding the date of grant of
option, or if no sale occurred on such date, the first market trading
day immediately prior to such date during which a sale occurred, as
the prices contemplated by the preceding clauses (A) and (B) are
reported in The Wall Street Journal or such other source as the board
of American Lighting deems reliable; (ii) if the common stock is not
listed on a stock exchange but is quoted on a national market system
or other quotation system, the Option Exercise Price shall be the last
sales price for such common stock on the date of grant of the option,
or if no sales occurred on such date, then on the date immediately
prior to such date on which sales prices are reported, as reported in
The Wall Street Journal or such other source as the board of
American Lighting deems reliable; or (iii) in the absence of an
established market for the common stock, the Option Exercise Price
shall be determined by the board of American Lighting in its sole
discretion.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, in the event that an
award of options is made (a) on or after the date that American
Lighting has resolved to seek the listing, or (b) during the six month
period immediately preceding the date on which American Lighting
files an application for Listing, and the Listing occurs concurrent with
the offer and sale of the common stock, then the Option Exercise
Price shall be the higher of (a) the offering price for the shares of
common stock to be issued in connection with the listing, and (b) the
exercise price in the applicable award agreement.
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Details of the share options under the Subsidiary Share Incentive Plan
during the year ended 31 December 2022 are set forth as below:
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m
Exercise Forfeited/ Outstanding
price Outstanding Granted Exercise Lapsed as at
Category of per share at 1 January during during during 31 December
participants Date of grant!" (Us$) 2022 the Period the Period the Period 2022
R-B-ZF R-B-ZF
BRITRE -A-B tZA=t-H
SEERN s (£7) HATE HBRRiH BAGE  BARK/ XX WA
Employees 30 June 2016 330 354 - - - 354
E& ZE-"§RA=TH
Employees 30 June 2017 330 355 - - - 355
&8 “S-tFRA=TH
Employees 30June 2018 330 471 - - - 471
&g “E-\FRA=1H
Employees 27 April 2018 405 376 - - - 376
B8 ZE-/\§NAZTLA
Employees 27 April 2019 405 376 - - - 376
1] “E-NERAZTLH
Employees 27 April 2020 405 503 - - - 503
&8 “BCEEMACTHA
2,435 - - - 2,435

The Stock Options granted have an exercisable term of 10 years and vest as
follows: (i) thirty percent (30%) of the total number of shares subject to the
Stock Options vest and become exercisable on the first (1st) anniversary of
30 June 2015 (the “Vesting Commencement Date”); (ii) an additional thirty
percent (30%) of the total number of shares subject to the Stock Options
vest and become exercisable on the second (2nd) anniversary of the Vesting
Commencement Date; and (iii) the remaining unvested forty percent (40%)
of the total number of shares subject to the Stock Options vest (and, as a
result, the Stock Options become fully vested) on the third (3rd) anniversary
of the Vesting Commencement Date; provided in each case that the Grantee
continues to provide services to the Company, American Lighting or Tivoli,
LLC (“Tivoli”), as the case may be, as of each such vesting date and that the
board of directors of American Lighting has determined in its sole discretion
that performance criteria, if any, that has been specified by the board of
directors and agreed to by the Grantee, has been satisfied.

Save as disclosed above, no share option under the Subsidiary Share
Incentive Plan was granted, exercised, lapsed, or cancelled during the

year.

Further details of the Subsidiary Share Incentive Plan are set out in
note 31 to the financial statements.
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Share Award Scheme

On 13 April 2018, the Company approved the adoption of Share
Award Scheme which is a long-term incentive plan of the Company
to align the interests of selected participants directly to the
Shareholders through ownership of Shares. The purpose of the
Scheme is to provide the Selected Participants with an opportunity to
acquire a share interest in the Company and to encourage and retain
such individuals to work with the Company, and to provide additional
incentive for them to achieve performance goals. (i) A director or a
proposed director of any member of the Group or of a holding
company or a subsidiary of the Company, or a subsidiary of the
holding company of the Company (the “Eligible Entity”); (ii) a
manager of, or other employee holding an executive, managerial,
supervisory or similar position in any member of the Group; and (iii)
full-time or part-time employee, or a person for the time being
seconded to work full-time or part-time for any member of the
Group or of an Eligible Entity selected by the person authorized to
administer the Scheme will be entitled to participate as a selected
participant.

The Share Award Scheme shall terminate on the earlier of (i) upon
expiry of the period of 10 years from the adoption date (i.e. 13 April
2018); (ii) on the date of any change in control of the Company; or
(iii) on the date determined/resolved by the Board to terminate the
Share Award Scheme pursuant to the scheme rules. Any termination
if the Share Award Scheme shall not affect the subsisting rights of
any selected participant. The remaining life of the Share Award
Scheme is approximately 5 years.

The Board or the authorized person may, subject always to the Share
Award Scheme, from time to time determine the number of restricted
shares to be granted and at its absolute discretion select any
participant to be a selected participant under the Share Award
Scheme.

After the authorized person has determined the number of grant
shares and the selected participants, it shall notify the trustee and
the selected participants in writing on the proposed grant date. Upon
receipt of the notification of the grant, the selected participants are
required to confirm their acceptance of the grant by returning to the
authorized person a notice of acceptance duly executed by them
within 28 days after the grant date.

The vesting of the restricted shares is subject to the selected

participant remaining at all times after the grant date and on the
vesting date a participant.
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Any share held by the trustee on behalf of a selected participant
pursuant to the provisions shall vest in such selected participant in
accordance with the vesting schedule determined at the discretion of
the authorized person or the Board.

The maximum number of restricted shares which may be granted to
a selected participant at any one time or in aggregate may not
exceed 1 per cent of the issued share capital of the Company as at
the adoption date on 13 April 2018, i.e. 20,985,254 shares.

The number of restricted shares available for grant under the Share
Award Scheme as at 1 January 2022 and 31 December 2022 was
209,852,541 shares.

Details of the Share Award Scheme were set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 13 April 2018. No Share was
granted under the Share Award Scheme since its adoption.

Since no options and awards were granted under both the 2016
Share Option Scheme and the Share Award Scheme, the number of
shares that may be issued in respect of options and awards granted
under all share schemes of the Company during the year ended 31
December 2022 divided by the weighted average number of shares
in issue for the year was nil.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year
ended 31 December 2022.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year ended 31 December 2022.
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CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

On 3 January 2023, the Company, Tongfang Science Park and
Tongfang entered into the loan agreement, pursuant to which the
Company and Tongfang Science Park will provide revolving loans of
not exceeding RMB400,000,000 to Tongfang during the term of the
loan agreement commencing from 13 March 2023 to 12 March 2026
for a term of 3 years.

As Tongfang is a controlling shareholder of the Company by virtue of
its direct 100% interest in Resuccess Investments Limited, which in
turn holds approximately 64.81% of the total issued share capital of
the Company, and is therefore a connected person of the Company.

Details of the loan agreement was set out in the announcements of
the Company dated 3 January 2023 and 10 March 2023 and the
circular of the Company dated 9 February 2023.

Since the term of the loan agreement commenced after the end of
the year ended 31 December 2022, no transactions were conducted
pursuant thereto during the year ended 31 December 2022. The
independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the loan
agreement and confirmed that the loan agreement was entered into
the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group and on
normal commercial terms or better.

Save as disclosed above, no contract of significance has been entered

into between the Company or any of its subsidiaries and the
controlling shareholders during the year ended 31 December 2022.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS, CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance in relation to
the Group’s business to which the Company, the holding company of
the Company, or any of its subsidiaries was a party, and in which a
Director of the Company or an entity connected with a Director had
a material interest in, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the financial year under review or at any time during the
financial year under review save as disclosed under the “Related Party
Transactions” in note 38 to the financial statements.

USE OF PROCEEDS

The Company did not undertake any equity fund raising in the past
12 months immediately prior to the date of this report.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the largest supplier
accounted for 12.7% of the Group’s purchases and the five largest
suppliers accounted for 28.1% of the Group’s total purchases. The
largest customer accounted for 11.1% of the Group’s total revenue
and the five largest customers accounted for 30.9% of the Group’s
total revenue.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholders (which to
the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) has an interest in the Group’s five largest
suppliers and customers.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of corporate governance are set out in the section headed
“Corporate Governance Report” on pages 38 to 56 of the annual
report.
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COMPENSATION POLICY

The compensation package for each employee is structured in a way
to attract and retain the best talents available, and will contain a
combination or modification of some or all of the following four
main components:

Basic salary

Basic salary and wage rate ranges are established for each
position by evaluating the responsibilities and the duties
required to be performed. The actual salary or wage rate for
the person filling the position is determined based on the
experience and ability of the individual selected for the position.

The basic salary and wage rate ranges are reviewed periodically
with reference to the prevailing market level and similar
positions of competitors in the relevant industry. The actual
salaries and wage rates of employees are reviewed annually and
may be adjusted from time to time based on the cost of living
and financial performance of the Company.

Salaries and wages are basic compensation and not intended to
reward performance, either individually or corporately.
Performance is rewarded through the other components of the
compensation plan.

Incentive bonus

Incentive bonus is linked to individual and corporate
performance. Every year, profitability and other corporate
performance targets are set and incentive bonuses will only be
paid for that year if the targets are achieved.

The incentive bonus for each employee is determined with
reference to his/her position and his/her individual performance
during the year.

2016 Share Option Scheme, Subsidiary Share
Option Scheme and Share Award Scheme

The Company adopted the 2016 Share Option Scheme, the
Subsidiary Share Incentive Plan and the Share Award Scheme
on 13 May 2016, 2 April 2016 and 13 April 2018, respectively.
For further details, please refer to the paragraphs headed “2016
Share Option Scheme”, “Subsidiary Share Incentive Plan” and
“Share Award Scheme” hereof.
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IV. Other benefits

In addition to the above three main components, the Group
offers other customary and/or mandatory benefits to employees,
such as retirement fund scheme, medical benefits, insurance
and paid holiday, with reference to prevailing industry practices
in the relevant jurisdictions.

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
reappointment. A resolution for their re-appointment as auditors of
the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company.

The Company has not changed its external auditors since 17
December 2018.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Rule 8.08(1)(a) of the Listing Rules requires that at least 25% of the
total issued capital of an issuer must be held by the public at any
time. Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date
of this report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public
float of not less than 25% of the Company’s issued shares as
required under the Listing Rules for the year ended 31 December
2022 and the subsequent period ended the date of this report.

BANK LOANS

Details of bank loans of the Group as at 31 December 2022 are set
out in note 27 to the financial statements.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

A number of factors may affect the results and business operations
of the Group, some of which are inherent to LED lighting industry
and some are from external sources. For further details, please refer
to the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis”.
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RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES, SUPPLIERS
AND CUSTOMERS

For details of relationship with the employees, customers and
suppliers, please refer to the paragraphs headed “compensation
policy” and “major suppliers and customers” in this section.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

The Group is specialized in providing energy saving and
environmentally-friendly products. The Group strives to operate in
compliance with the relevant environmental regulations and rules.
During the year ended 31 December 2022 and up to the date of this
report, the Group does not have any violation of relevant
environmental regulations and rules which gives rise of significant
impact to the Group’s development, performance and businesses.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group’s operations are mainly carried out by the Company’s
subsidiaries in the mainland China, while the Company itself is listed
on the Stock Exchange. The Group’s establishment and operations
accordingly shall comply with relevant laws and regulations in the
mainland China, including environment protection laws,
standardization laws, product quality laws, product safety laws,
regulations on administration of compulsive product certification and
the laws in Hong Kong. During the year ended 31 December 2022
and up to the date of this report, the Group has complied with all
the relevant laws and regulations in the mainland China and Hong
Kong in all material aspects.

In addition, the Group retains outside counsels and would seek legal
advice from them in case of any issues.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Article 167(1) of the Articles of Association provides that the
directors, secretary and other officers and every Auditor for the time
being of the Company and the liquidator or trustees (if any) for the
time being acting in relation to any of the affairs of the Company
and everyone of them, and everyone of their heirs, executors and
administrators, shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of the
assets and profits of the Company from and against all actions, costs,
charges, losses, damages and expenses which they or any of them,
their or any of their heirs, executors or administrators, shall or may
incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or
omitted in or about the execution of their duty, or supposed duty, in
their respective offices or trusts; and none of them shall be
answerable for the acts, receipts, neglects or defaults of the other or
others of them or for joining in any receipts for the sake of
conformity, or for any bankers or other persons with whom any
moneys or effects belonging to the Company shall or may be lodged
or deposited for safe custody, or for insufficiency or deficiency of any
security upon which any moneys of or belonging to the Company
shall be placed out on or invested, or for any other loss, misfortune
or damage which may happen in the execution of their respective
offices or trusts, or in relation thereto; PROVIDED THAT this
indemnity shall not extend to any matter in respect of any fraud or
dishonesty which may attach to any of said persons.

On behalf of the Board

Gao Zhi
Chairman
24 March 2023
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company is committed to the establishment of good corporate
governance practices and procedures with a view to being a
transparent and responsible organisation which is open and
accountable to the Shareholders.

Corporate governance is the process by which the Board instructs
management of the Group to conduct its affairs with a view to
ensuring that its objectives are met. The Board is committed to
maintaining and developing robust corporate governance practices
that are intended to ensure (i) satisfactory and sustainable returns to
Shareholders; (ii) that the interests of those who deal with the
Company are safeguarded; (iii) that overall business risk is understood
and managed appropriately; (iv) the delivery of high-quality products
and services to the satisfaction of customers; and (v) that high
standards of ethics are maintained.

Recognizing the importance of a publicly listed company’s
responsibilities to enhance its transparency and accountability, the
Group is committed to achieving high standards of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of shareholders and to
enhance corporate value and accountability.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on the
principles and code provisions as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “Corporate Gorvernance Code”) contained in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the
“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
"Stock Exchange”).

The Company will continue to enhance its corporate governance
practices appropriate to the conduct and growth of its business and
to review such practices from time to time to ensure that they comply
with the Corporate Governance Code and align with the latest
developments.

Except the deviation disclosed in the paragraph headed “Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer” below in this report, throughout the
year ended 31 December 2022, the Company complied with the
code provisions and, where appropriate, adopted the recommended
best practices as set out in the Corporate Governance Code in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules (“Corporate Governance Code”).
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The overall management of the Company’s operation is vested in the
Board.

The Board takes overall responsibility to oversee all major matters of
the Group, including the formulation and approval of all policy
matters, overall strategic development of the Group, monitoring and
controlling the Group’s operation and financial performance, internal
control and risk management systems, and monitoring of the
performance of the senior management. The Directors have to make
decisions objectively in the interests of the Company.

The Board exercises a number of authorities which include:

- Formulating the Group’s long-term strategy;

- Approving major acquisitions, disposals and capital investment;
- Reviewing operational and financial performance;

- Approving financial results and public announcements;

- Reviewing the effectiveness of internal control;

- Authorizing material borrowings;

- Deciding dividend policy;

- Any issue or repurchase of the Company’s securities under
general mandate;

- Approving appointment to the Board and senior management;
and

- Deciding the Group’s remuneration policy.

To assist in fulfilling its duties and responsibilities, the Board
established four committees, namely the audit committee, the
remuneration committee, the nomination committee and the risk
management and regulatory compliance committee (previously
known as “regulatory compliance committee”).

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the
Company are delegated to the chief executive officer and the senior
management of the Company. The delegated functions and work
tasks are periodically reviewed.
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Board Composition

The Board currently comprises seven Directors, consisting of two
executive Directors, Mr. Gao Zhi (chairman of the Board) and Mr. Liu
Zhigang, two non-executive Directors, Mr. Liang Wu Quan and
Mr. Zhou Hai Ying and three independent non-executive Directors,
Mr. Fan Ren Da Anthony, Mr. Liu Tian Min and Ms. Li Ming Qi. All
Directors have given sufficient time and attention to the affairs of the
Group. Each of the executive Directors is suitably qualified for his
position, and has sufficient experience to hold the position so as to
carry out his duties effectively and efficiently. Biographical
information of the Directors is set out in the section headed
“Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report.

To the best knowledge of the Company, there is no other financial,
business or family relationship among the members of the Board.

The Company has complied with Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules to
appoint at least three independent non-executive Directors. The
Company has appointed three independent non-executive Directors
representing more than one-third of the Board and is in compliance
with Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Under the code provision A2.1 of the Corporate Governance Code,
the roles of chairman and chief executive officer should be separate
and should not be performed by the same individual. The Company
does not have a separate chairman and a chief executive officer and
Mr. Gao Zhi holds both positions. The Board considers that this
structure will not impair the balance of power and authority between
the Board and the management of the Company as non-executive
Directors and independent non-executive Directors form the majority
of the Board, with five out of seven of the Directors being non-
executive directors and independent non-executive Directors. The
Board believes that vesting the roles of both chairman and chief
executive officer in the same person can facilitate execution of the
Company’s business strategies and boost effectiveness of its
operation. The Board will review the current structure from time to
time and shall make necessary arrangements when the Board
considers appropriate.
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

Independent non-executive Directors have played a significant role in
the Board by bringing their independent judgment at the Board
meeting and scrutinising the Group's performance. Their views carry
significant weight in the Board’s decision, in particular, they bring an
impartial view to bear on issues of the Group's strategy, performance
and control. All independent non-executive Directors possess
extensive academic, professional and industry expertise and
management experience and have provided their professional advices
to the Board. The independent non-executive Directors provide
independent advice on the Group’s business strategy, results and
management so that all interests of Shareholders can be taken into
account, and the interests of the Company and its Shareholders can
be protected.

The Board has three independent non-executive Directors with one
of them, Ms. Li Ming Qi, one of the independent non- executive
Directors, possesses appropriate professional accounting
qualifications or financial management expertise in accordance with
Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence
from each of the existing independent non-executive Directors in
accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Based on the contents
of such confirmations, the Company considers that all the
independent non-executive Directors are independent and that they
have met the specific independence guidelines as set out in Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules.

Mechanism for ensuring independent views and
input

The Board has in place a mechanism for ensuring independent views
and input are available to the Board. The Board currently comprises a
majority of non-executive Directors (including independent
non-executive Directors). They have full and timely access to the
Group's information, and are entitled to seek advice from the
company secretary as well as independent professional advisers at
the Company’s expenses in appropriate circumstances. These
non-executive Directors (including independent non-executive
Directors) provide a balance in the Board, bring in view and opinion
independent of the executive Directors and the management, and
oversee the Group’s operation and corporate action.

Periodic review and evaluation are also being conducted to assess the
Board and management’s performance, monitoring and enhancing
the effectiveness of the Company’s governance structure and
mechanism.
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Board Diversity Policy

The Company adopted a board diversity policy on 1 April 2013 which
may be amended from time to time. The Company recognises and
embraces the benefits of diversity of Board members. While all Board
appointments will continue to be made on a merit basis, the
Company will ensure that the Board has a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the needs of
the Company’s business. Selection of candidates will be based on a
range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, experience (professional
or otherwise), skills and knowledge.

Gender diversity in the workforce

As at 31 December 2022, among our workforce (including senior
management), 43.3% are male and 56.7% are female. We advocate
in creating a diverse and respectful working environment, oppose
any form of discrimination, and strive to provide an inclusive, safe,
diverse and anti-discriminatory work environment for employees of
all backgrounds. We treat candidates and employees with equal
respect regardless of race, gender, age and marital status, and
consider only their ability and suitability for the position, and are
committed to ensuring that the recruitment and promotion process is
free from discrimination. Notwithstanding the fact that we have not
set a measurable objective for achieving gender diversity at the
workforce level, the Company is committed to the approach based
on merits and diversity, aiming to provide equal consideration and
opportunities to all qualified candidates regardless of gender in terms
of hiring and promotion process.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has also adopted the Model Code set out in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules as its code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors. Having made specific enquiry with all
Directors of the Company, all Directors confirmed that they have
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
regarding directors’ securities transactions for the year ended 31
December 2022.

Training and Support for Directors

All Directors must keep abreast of their collective responsibilities. Any
newly appointed Director would receive an induction package
covering the Group’s operations, businesses, governance policies and
the statutory regulatory obligations and responsibilities of a director
of a listed company.
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The Directors have been informed of the requirement under code
provision A.6.5 of the Corporate Governance Code regarding
continuous professional development. According to the records
maintained by the Company, the current Directors received the
following training with an emphasis on the roles, functions and
duties of a director of a listed company in compliance with the new
requirement of the Corporate Governance Code on continuous
professional development for the year ended 31 December 2022:
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Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Gao zhi BELE v/ / / /
Mr. Liu Zhigang AREEE v/ / v/ v/
Non-executive Directors FHTES
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Directors’ and Officers’ Insurance

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of
potential legal actions against its Directors and officers.

Meetings

All Directors are regularly updated on governance and regulatory
matters. There is an established procedure for Directors to obtain
independent professional advice at the expense of the Company in
furtherance of their duties.

The Board meets regularly throughout the year ended 31 December
2022 to review the overall strategy and to monitor the operation as
well as the financial performance of the Group. The chairman focuses
on the Group's strategy and is responsible for chairing and managing
the efficient operation of the Board and ensuring that all key issues
are considered by the Board in a timely manner. Notice of at least 14
days has been given to all Directors for all regular Board meetings
and the Directors can include matters for discussion in the agenda
whenever they consider appropriate and necessary. Agenda and
accompanying Board papers in respect of regular Board meetings are
dispatched in full to all Directors within a reasonable time before the
meeting. Directors have to declare their direct or indirect interests, if
any, in any proposals or transactions to be considered by the Board
at board meetings and abstain from voting as appropriate. Draft
minutes of all board meetings are circulated to Directors for comment
within a reasonable time prior to confirmation. Minutes of board
meetings and meetings of board committees are kept by the
company secretary. All Directors have free access to board papers
and related materials, and are provided with adequate information in
a timely manner, enabling the Board to make informed decision on
matters placed before it.
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The individual attendance record of each Director at the meetings of
the Board and the general meetings during the year ended 31
December 2022 is set out below:
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Mr. Fan Ren Da Anthony BiELA 13/14 2/2
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Ms. Li Ming Qi THELL 13/14 212

Appointments, Re-election and Removal of
Directors

Each of the independent non-executive Directors of the Company has
entered into a service contract with the Company for a specific term
of three years commencing from 25 August 2014 and will thereafter
until terminated by not less than two months’ notice in writing
served by either party on the other, which notice shall not expire
until after the fixed term.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, none of the Directors
have waived their emoluments in relation to their services
respectively.
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The above service contracts are subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at an annual general meeting at least once every three
years in accordance with the Articles of Association.

Article 86(3) of the Articles of Association provides that any Director
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy in the Board shall hold
office until the first general meeting of the Company after his/her
appointment and be subject to re-election at such meeting, and any
Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing Board
shall hold office only until the next following annual general meeting
of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election.

According to Article 87(1) of the Articles of Association, one-third of
the Directors for the time being shall retire from office by rotation at
every annual general meeting of the Company. According to Article
87(2), the retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election.

In accordance with Article 87(1) and Article 87(2) of the Articles of
Association, Mr. Gao Zhi and Mr. Liu Tian Min shall retire by rotation
at the AGM and, being eligible, will offer himself for re-election at
the AGM.

Board Committees

The Board has established (i) audit committee; (ii) remuneration
committee; (iii) nomination committee and (iv) risk management and
regulatory compliance committee (previously known as “regulatory
compliance committee”), with defined terms of reference. The terms
of reference of the board committees which explain their respective
role and the authority delegated to them by the Board are available
on the website of the Company at http://www.neo-neon.com and
the website of the Stock Exchange at www.hkexnews.hk. The board
committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their
duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent
professional advice and other assistance in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company's expenses.
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Audit Committee

The Company established an audit committee with written terms of
reference. The audit committee currently comprises of three
members, being all independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Fan
Ren Da Anthony, Mr. Liu Tian Min and Ms. Li Ming Qi. Ms. Li Ming
Qi is the chairman of the audit committee. The primary duties of the
audit committee are to make recommendation to the Board on the
appointment and removal of external auditors, review the financial
statements and material advice in respect of financial reporting, and
oversee the internal control and risk management systems of the
Company. Their composition and written terms of reference are in
line with the Corporate Governance Code.

The Group’s audited annual results for the year ended 31 December
2022, respectively have been reviewed by the audit committee, which
was of the opinion that the preparation of the relevant financial
statements complied with the applicable accounting standards and
requirements and that adequate disclosure has been made. The audit
committee has also reviewed the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group, and selection and appointment of the external
auditors. In addition, the audit committee reviewed the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group during the
year ended 31 December 2022.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, three meetings were held
by the audit committee. The individual record of each member of the
audit committee at the meetings of the audit committee is set out
below:

Name of Director
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Remuneration Committee

The Company established a remuneration committee on with written
terms of reference. The remuneration committee currently comprises
of four members, namely, Mr. Gao Zhi, an executive Director, and
three independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Fan Ren Da Anthony,
Mr. Liu Tian Min and Ms. Li Ming Qi. Mr. Liu Tian Min was the
chairman of the remuneration committee. The primary duties of the
remuneration committee are to advise the Board on the Group’s
overall policy and structure for the remuneration of Directors and
senior management, and ensures that no Director or any of his
associate is involved in deciding his/her own remuneration. In
addition, the remuneration committee is also responsible for
determining, with delegated responsibility, the remuneration
packages of individual executive directors and senior management,
including benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation payments
which include any compensation payable for loss or termination of
their office or appointment. Their composition and written terms of
reference are in line with the Corporate Governance Code.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the remuneration
committee reviewed the Group’s remuneration policy and the
remuneration package of the Directors and senior management for
the year of 2022.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, two meetings were held
by the remuneration committee. The individual record of each
member of the remuneration committee at the meeting of the
remuneration committee is set out below:

Name of Director
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Mr. Liu Tian Min BIRREAE 2/2
Mr. Gao Zhi mELE 2/2
Mr. Fan Ren Da Anthony BiELE 2/2
Ms. Li Ming Qi TG LT 2/2
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Nomination Committee

The Company established a nomination committee on with written
terms of reference. The nomination committee currently comprises of
four members, namely, Mr. Gao Zhi, an executive Director and three
independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Fan Ren Da Anthony,
Mr. Liu Tian Min and Ms. Li Ming Qi. Mr. Gao Zhi is the chairman of
the nomination committee. The primary duties of the nomination
committee are to review the structure, size and composition of the
Board on a regular basis and to recommend to the Board the suitable
candidates for directors after consideration of the nominees’
independence and quality in order to ensure the fairness and
transparency of all nominations. In identifying suitable director
candidates and making such recommendations to the Board, the
nomination committee would also take into account various aspects
of a candidate, including but not limited to his/her education
background, professional experience, experience with the relevant
industry and past directorships. Their composition and written terms
of reference are in line with the Corporate Governance Code.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the nomination
committee mainly performed the following duties:

o recommended the nomination of the vice president Mr. Lian
Chenwei to the Board;

o reviewed the annual confirmation of independence submitted
by the independent non-executive Directors and assessed their
independence; and

o reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board,
during the year ended 31 December 2022.
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During the year ended 31 December 2022, two meetings were held
by the nomination committee. The individual record of each member
of the nomination committee at the meeting of the nomination
committee is set out below:

Name of Director

BT - F+-_A=+—HILFE &
FHEESERITMAEE SREZEEK
ERRAZESZMNER L FRLEET
T

Attendance/Number of
Committee Meeting(s)

HERE

EEHE ZEEERRE
Mr. Gao Zhi Sh¥ites 2/2
Mr. Liu Tian Min BIRRE&LAE 2/2
Mr. Fan Ren Da Anthony BITELE 2/2
Ms. Li Ming Qi =X R 2/2

Risk Management and Regulatory Compliance
Committee

The Company established a risk management and regulatory
compliance committee (previously known as “regulatory compliance
committee”) on with written terms of reference. The regulatory
compliance committee currently comprises of seven members, being
all Directors of the Company with Mr. Fan Ren Da Anthony acting as
the chairman of the risk management and regulatory compliance
committee. The primary duties of the risk management and
regulatory compliance committee are to monitor the risk
management system of the Company and compliance of the
Company’s existing or future business, and review and make
recommendations on the compliance of applicable laws and
regulations, including matters relating to the Listing Rules.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the risk management and
regulatory compliance committee regularly reported to the Board on
any alleged frauds and non-compliances, internal control deficiencies
or alleged violation of laws, regulations and rules. The risk
management and regulatory compliance committee is authorised by
the Board to seek relevant information from the management of the
Company to achieve its objectives, duties and responsibilities, and all
employees must cooperate to meet its needs.
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During the year ended 31 December 2022, 1 meeting was held by
the risk management and regulatory compliance committee.

Name of Director

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
EXRERRS (B)

BHE_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HBItFE A
BMEBRBKREHREZEESERIT—RER -

Attendance/Number of
Committee Meeting(s)

HERE/

Esps ZEEERNY
Mr. Gao Zhi BEAE 11
Mr. Liu Zhigang ABMELE 11
Mr. Zhou Hai Ying EhE 11
Mr. Liang Wu Quan RRELE n
Mr. Fan Ren Da Anthony BLEEAE 11
Mr. Liu Tian Min ARREE 11
Ms. Li Ming Qi FRATT 11

Corporate Governance function

The Company’s corporate governance functions are carried out by
the Board which include: (a) to develop and review the Company'’s
policies and practices on corporate governance; (b) to review and
monitor the training and continuous professional development of the
Directors and senior management of the Group; (c) to review and
monitor the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements; (d) to develop, review and monitor
the code of conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to
employees of the Group and the Directors; and (e) to review the
Company’s compliance with the Corporate Governance Code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Board reviewed the
compliance with the code provisions and the recommended best
practices under the Corporate Governance Code and give considered
reasons for any deviation.
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Company Secretary

The secretary of the Company is Mr. Ho Yuk Ming Hugo, who was
appointed on 11 November 2021. Mr. Ho has been informed of the
requirement of the Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules. Mr. Ho has
informed the Company that he took more than 15 hours of training
covering corporate governance and accounting matters. The
Company considers that the training of the company secretary is in
compliance with the requirements under Rule 3.29 of the Listing
Rules.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board, supported by the chief financial officer and the finance
department, is responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements of the Company and the Group for each financial year
which shall give a true and fair view of the financial position,
performance and cash flow of the Company and its subsidiaries for
that year. The Board is not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The responsibilities of Ernst & Young, the Company’s external
auditors, on the financial statements are set out in the section
headed “Independent Auditors’ Report” in this annual report.

Auditor's Remuneration

The audit committee of the Board is responsible for making
recommendation to the Board on the appointment, re- appointment
and removal of the authorised external auditors and to approve the
remuneration and terms of engagement of the external auditors, and
any questions of resignation or dismissal of the external auditors. The
Company engages Ernst & Young as its external auditors. Details of
the fees paid/payable to Ernst & Young for the year ended 31
December 2022 are as follows.

REWE

ARARBERABHEL BR-B=—F
t— AT — BEEE - 5L AE LT RA
E320FMAT < AELEARRAEBR
ERCEERREHFASHEEERBI5
PN - AR ARBRAREHEIGA
L7 4R R E3. 20RO -

Bt %5 FR 3R

EXESHEFUBERMBHANET A
BmBANR RAEE R M BFENT R
R ONEERAFRBARA REMERFR
ZFEENPBRR FELRRERE-EF
SV TMEAETMERBEFHERIGRNHEADT
AR AL EARERFELENENZE
Ep N

ARBWINEZ BN L K & 5t EDE TP A B
MBERENECERAFERS [BILRH

fib & | — &P o
BB ETH =

EXeERLECAENEE BEKER
VR TE S EBAZ BUAM - HE S BB AZ BUAD &Y 3 B X
£ HA DA B2 75 B8 4/ BB A S5 A ¢ B =k B FA BR 9 (E
MHEENESRFLERBEZR - ARAXRE
LZXERTENEHEAAINEEEE - BE_F
T+ A=+ -HIEFE  ENER
FTLRKGENEBEAOBERFENAT -

RMB'000

AR¥ TR

Audit services EZRE 2,224
Non-audit services (note) IEERFE (Mat) 701
Total BET 2,925

Note: The non-audit services cover the review of unaudited interim financial
information and major transaction.
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board recognises its overall responsibility for maintaining
adequate systems of internal control and risk management of the
Company and reviewing their effectiveness on an ongoing basis. The
Board is committed to implementing an effective and sound internal
control and risk management to safeguard the interest of
Shareholders and the Company’s assets. In addition, the audit
committee also has the responsibility for reviewing and assessing the
Group's risk management and internal control systems.

The Group’s internal control and risk management systems are
featured with a defined management structure with limits of
authority and well-rounded policies and procedures, and are
designed, in consideration of the nature of business as well as the
organisation structure, to facilitate effective and efficient operations,
to ensure reliability of financial reporting and compliance with
applicable laws and regulations, to identify and manage potential
risks, and to safeguard assets of the Group. Such systems are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

During the year of 2022, the Company has adopted the following
policies and procedures and taken the following measures to improve
the risk management and internal control systems of the Group.

In a bid to further improve the establishment of the existing risk
management and internal control system of the Company in relation
to, among others, the business operation, finance and compliance,
during the year of 2022, the Company took certain measures to
identify, evaluate, and manage the significant risks associated with
the achievement of its operational objectives. For example, the senior
management of the Group reviewed and evaluated the internal
control and risk management process, monitored any risk factors on
a regular basis, and reported to the Board on any findings and
measures taken to address such variances and identified risks. The
Board, with the assistance of the senior management of the
Company, also conducted regular surveys and on-site interviews with
the senior management of the Group and business representatives of
the suppliers and customers to check and monitor the potential risks
associated with the business operation and financial management of
the Group.

Meanwhile, with the assistance of the professional auditor, the audit
committee supervised the Company’s revenue and expenditure for
the financial and economic activities, to further strengthen the
functions of risk management, to ensure the effective
implementation of risk management and internal control system and
the Company’s standardised operation and healthy development.
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With the integration of the real situation of the Company and various
applicable laws and regulations, the management of the Company
can act in concert with such to develop solutions towards the risks,
to organise the business operation systematically, and to monitor and
mitigate possible risks. The Company also formulated and distributed
certain internal policies to require all staff of the Group to comply
with these internal risk management and internal control standards,
and together build a regulatory environment of risk control and
standardised operation. In addition, the Company has also
established policies and procedures with clear segregation of duties
applicable to certain operating units to ensure the effectiveness of
risk management and internal controls. The day-to-day operation is
also entrusted to the individual department, which is accountable for
its own conduct and performance, and is required to strictly adhere
to the policies set by the Board or the audit committee. This process
was in place throughout 2020 and is subject to continuous
improvement.

The Board and management held its half-year and annual review of
internal control and risk management as required under C.2.1 of the
Corporate Governance Code. The audit committee meetings provided
an opportunity for direct communication between audit committee
members and the Company’s management and internal audit
manager. The Company regarded the annual audit committee
meeting as an important event in which the chairman and all
members of audit committee would make an effort to attend.
External auditors were also invited to attend the Company’s audit
committee meetings and were also available to assist the Directors in
addressing queries from external auditors relating to the conduct of
the audit and the preparation and content of their auditor report.
The Directors have also reviewed the need for an internal audit
function and are of the view that it would be more cost effective to
recruit professionals to perform internal audit functions for the
Group. Currently an in-house internal audit function was set up
within the Group to review its systems of internal controls and risk
management annually.

The Company has also provided inside information training courses
to the Directors and senior management of the Company to ensure
that all relevant facts and circumstances that may have material
effect on the share price of the Company is assessed in a timely
manner and that any material information which comes to the
knowledge of any one or more officers of the Group be promptly
identified, assessed and, if appropriate, escalated for the attention of
the Board to determine whether a disclosure is required.

During the year of 2022, the Board, with the assistance of the audit
committee, has conducted reviews of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Company for twice and considered
the risk management and internal control systems of the Company
are adequate and being implemented effectively. Such review covered
all material controls, financial, compliance and operational controls
as well as risk management mechanisms.
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The Board, with the assistance of the audit committee, has also
reviewed and was satisfied with the adequacy of the Company’s
resources, the staff’s qualifications and experience, the training
courses and the related budgets in accounting, internal review and
financial reporting functions.

INVESTOR AND SHAREHOLDER RELATIONS

The Company endeavors to continue maintaining a high level of
transparency in communicating with Shareholders and the investment
community at large. Briefings and meetings with institutional
investors and analysts are conducted regularly. The Company is
committed to maintain an open and effective investor communication
policy and to update investors on relevant information on its business
on a timely manner, subject to relevant regulatory requirements.

In order to ensure effective, clear and accurate communications with
the investors and analysts, all corporate communications are arranged
and handled by the chief financial officer of the Company.

The Board reviews the shareholders’ communication policy on a
regular basis to ensure its effectiveness, particularly with regards to
the requirements of Part 2 in the Corporate Governance Code. The
Board has reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of the
shareholders’ communication policy during its meetings, and are of
the view that the shareholders’ communication policy has been
effectively implemented and that the dissemination of information to
the Shareholders’ were effective based on the measures adopted
above.

Financial information and all shareholder corporate communications
of the Company are made available on the Company’s website at
http://www.neo-neon.com and updated regularly on a timely basis.

The Board and management shall ensure Shareholders’ right and all
Shareholders are treated equitably and fairly.

The Company has announced its half-year and annual results in a
timely manner, which is well before the time limits set out in the
Listing Rules. Separate resolutions will be proposed at the general
meetings on each substantially separate issue, including the
re-election of individual Directors.

The annual general meeting will provide an opportunity for direct
communication between the Board and the Company’s Shareholders.
The Company regards the annual general meeting as an important
event in which the chairman and all Directors will make an effort to
attend. External auditors shall also be invited to attend the
Company’s annual general meeting and are also available to assist
the Directors in addressing queries from Shareholders relating to the
conduct of the audit and the preparation and content of their auditor
report. All Shareholders are given prior notice on timely basis
together with a detailed agenda. The Board, according to the Listing
Rules, will conduct voting at the forthcoming AGM by poll. The
results of the Company will be declared at the meeting, and
announced timely on the Stock Exchange’s website and the
Company'’s website.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Procedures for shareholders to convene an
extraordinary general meeting and putting forward
proposals at shareholders’ meeting

Shareholder(s) holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all
times have the right, by written requisition (the “Requisition”) to the
Board or the company secretary to require an extraordinary general
meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in the Requisition. The Requisition shall be deposited at the
principal place of business in Hong Kong (Unit 3405, 34/F., 118
Connaught Road West, Hong Kong). The extraordinary general
meeting shall be held within two (2) months after the deposit of the
Requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of deposit of the
Requisition, the Board fails to proceed to convene the extraordinary
general meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so
in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Procedures by which enquiries may be put to the
Board

Shareholders may put forward enquiries to the Board through Mr. Ho
Yuk Ming Hugo or Mr. Gao Zhi who will direct the enquiries to the
Board for handling. The contact details are as follows:

Address: Unit 3405, 34/F., 118 Connaught Road West,
Hong Kong

Email: investors@neo-neon.com

Tel No.: (852) 2786 2133

Fax No.: (852) 2786 2479

FAMILY MEMBERS AND CLOSE PERSONAL
RELATIONSHIPS

The Board recognises that talents, relevant experience and skills are
the most important considerations in executive officers and staff
selection. It is the Group’s policy that job positions are filled by
suitably qualified candidates selected through internal promotions or
from the open market on the merits of qualification, experience,
skills and achievements. No employee is hired on account of family or
close personal connection to any Board member.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

At the 2022 AGM, a special resolution was passed to adopt the new
Articles of Association of the Company (the “New Articles”) in
substitution for and to the exclusion of the Memorandum and
Articles of Association as amended on 20 November 2006. The New
Articles is available on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

ABOUT THIS REPORT

Basis of Preparation of This Report

Neo-Neon Holdings Limited (hereinafter referred to as “Neo-Neon”,
the “Company”, “"We", "Us” or “Our”) is always committed to
operating in a responsible and sustainable manner. To demonstrate
our efforts in fulfilling our environmental, social and governance
("ESG") responsibilities, we will articulate the environmental and
social impacts associated with our business and our response to the
impacts through this ESG Report.

This Report is prepared in accordance with the Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide (the "ESG Guide”) in Appendix 27
to the Listing Rules of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). The disclosures comply with the “comply or
explain” requirements and the mandatory disclosure requirements
under the ESG Guide.

In preparing the report, the Company has followed the reporting
principles of materiality, quantitative, balance and consistency as the
basis of preparation.
Materiality The Company has identified the materiality
issues of the Company through a materiality
assessment and has adopted the materiality
issues identified by the Board as the focus for
the preparation of this Report.

The standards, methods, assumptions and
conversion factors used in the calculation of
environmental data have been disclosed in this
Report.

Quantitative

Balance The Company provides an unbiased picture
of both positive and negative performance to
ensure that the content and data presented are
balanced.

Consistency The presentation of this Report remains largely
consistent with that of the previous year, with
an explanation of the changes in the reporting

scope and the statistical approach.

The contents and information disclosed in this Report are based on
the internal records and documents of the Company.
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Reporting Period and Scope

This Report presents the policies, performance and relevant key
performance indicators ("KPI”) of Neo-Neon in respect of
environmental, social and sustainable development from 1 January
2022 to 31 December 2022 (“Year 2022" or the “Year”). The scope
of this Report covers the principal businesses of the Company,
namely the lighting business. As the securities business accounts for
a small proportion in terms of revenue and has minimal ESG impact,
the ESG data in relation thereto is not disclosed in this Report. In
addition, following the disposal of the business of the science park’s
subsidiary at the end of 2020, relevant ESG data has been excluded
from the scope of the report. We will constantly review our reporting
scope based on business changes.

ESG MANAGEMENT

ESG Governance Structure

Neo-Neon fully understands that effective ESG governance is an
essential foundation for achieving sustainable development of the
Company. Therefore, we continue to improve our ESG governance
structure, integrate social responsibility management into our daily
operation management, and clarify the rights and responsibilities at
all levels to ensure the implementation of ESG work and actively
fulfill our corporate social responsibility while developing our
business.

As the highest decision-making body, in addition to being responsible
for the overall business decision-making and leading the robust
development of the business, the Board also has full responsibility for
the Company’s ESG strategy and reporting. In order to integrate
sustainable development into corporate governance and daily
operations more effectively, we have established the Environmental,
Social and Governance Working Committee (the "ESG Working
Committee”) during the Year to assist the Board in managing ESG
matters. Through the Terms of Reference of the Environmental,
Social and Governance Working Committee, the Board authorises the
ESG Working Committee to instruct on ESG-related matters, and the
ESG Working Committee reports directly to the Board.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

The ESG Working Committee consists of six members, including one
executive Director, vice president, chief financial officer, and several
management members from ESG-related functional departments,
including Operation Department, General Management Department
and Finance Department. As a management-level taskforce, the ESG
Working Committee is responsible for promoting the Company’s ESG
initiatives, collecting and calculating ESG key performance indicators,
and monitoring and reporting on ESG-related matters of the
Company’s principal businesses and operations. At the same time,
the ESG Working Committee is also responsible for organising regular
meetings to identify, evaluate, and monitor the Company’s ESG risks,
review the implementation and effectiveness of the Company’s
internal control system, and evaluate the performance and target
progress on ESG-related matters of the Company.
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Chart 1 ESG Governance Structure of Neo-Neon
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Each subsidiary submits progress updates on different issues,
including ESG, to the chief executive officer where necessary to
ensure effective monitoring of ESG-related issues, ESG performance
and target progress. At the same time, the ESG Working Committee
of the Company reviews the ESG report every year to ensure the
comprehensive disclosure of the Company’s ESG work and
performance.

To ensure that our ESG and social responsibility principles are fully
carried out at all levels, we have established a comprehensive social
responsibility management system in accordance with national labour
regulations and SA8000 international standards. The social
responsibility management system is led by the representative of the
social responsibility manager, a senior management appointed by the
Company, who will lead and carry out social responsibility work in
collaboration with various functional departments. The SA8000 Social
Responsibility Management Manual (the “Management Manual”) has
included the framework and code of conduct of our social
responsibility management system. We will update the Management
Manual in a timely manner in line with our development direction
and strategy in order to further improve our environmental and social
management.

Neo-Neon Holdings Limited e Annual Report 2022

EFRREEEREBEHITERREBERE
ESGET R Z BN EE E 5 - R EESG
HZEE ESGRIREMEBHESEESHR
MEREE AR NRFKMESGIEELZ R
LEFTHESGREETERZ  BRE2EME
BARDNAHESGIEMKIR -

BHERESGNMHE S EANESIRSIBRE
I2EEBE BRMAKBERLHERM
SASOO0BI R IZXEEY T R ENHEEMELE
BER HeEXEERABAQAEGH
SREEEEATLEEEEREREK  BE
A S EBRELFIHELSETTIE . &
I (SAS000H EE X EEFM) ([(BRF
MY MAEAR ANt eETEEERA4
REMITRER  TEEARQAMEREH MW
MEEE  BRYHEETES  UNE—FPEE
RARRIZIBRIBEREEERE -



Stakeholder Engagement

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Neo-Neon regards the expectations and opinions of our stakeholders
on environmental, social and corporate governance as the key to
long-term corporate development. We attach great importance to
the communication with our stakeholders and establish various
channels to maintain close contact, ensuring that their opinions and
needs are understood and responded to in a timely and
comprehensive manner. Through an effective communication
platform, we build a win-win relationship of mutual trust with our
stakeholders and actively inform and receive feedback on our ESG
efforts from various stakeholders, thereby continuously enhancing
our ability to meet our environmental and social responsibilities.

Stakeholders

Key Concerns

RE HERERRSE (F)

M EEST 28R

RARREFZB@EAERE L2 RAF
ERTENBENER A ERTERNE
R-BMaEERESNEREINER -
BUZTLRBRARBETRRE BRSE
AREME2EHDTBEMOERTEERLS
Ko BBBEIRBEBRFES  BRMEFZEEH
TRVEENEEARBAE IRERNRE
FEMEBEHHARNRBMESGIEHER » #
Mt PR EE - WMFERABMNIRER
(tEEENERERES -

Communication Methods

MEHEER BIER BEAR
Government Compliance Government-Enterprise Forum
BT Pay Taxes According to Law Work Report and Research

Shareholders and Investors

BREEZEE

Suppliers/Subcontractors

HER, D e

Customers

5P

Employees
BT

Community

=

Job Creation
GHKE
LN
BlERE

Steady Operation
Open and Transparent
Strict Risk Control
BEge

NGEL

BRI R

Fair Procurement
Win-Win Cooperation
AFRB

BIEHRE

Product Quality
Privacy Protection
EmEE

B LR &

Rights Protection

Training and Development
Health and Safety
RERIRIE

Bl R

BEZE

Community Development
Charity
At 5 % R

NS
N =

BEEARE
T{EHR & 2T

Shareholders General Meeting
Company Announcement
Investor Research

Company Official Website

e N

NGIVNS

’REEATH

NAEIEH

Working Meeting
Open Tender
Industry Discussion
ITEga
NGRS
T

Service Hotline
Corporate Website
AR 75 2 iR
NCIN=E G

E-Mail

Survey

Performance Evaluation
BEFHEHME

HAEMSE

1B AT S

Community Activity
Information Disclosure
[ E B

BRAR

BAARRIEREBRRAG o —_T-_FFf

61



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
R -HERERARE (K)

Materiality Assessment

In order to effectively prioritise material ESG issues, we review the
results of our current materiality assessments as necessary to ensure
that our material ESG issues are in line with stakeholder expectations,
the Company’s operating conditions, market trends and the latest
laws and regulations, and to accurately reflect the environmental and
social issues of concern to our stakeholders. Based on the results of
the materiality analysis in previous years, we reviewed the priority of
ESG issues by benchmarking the international sustainability reporting
guidelines and based on the Company’s business development
through the following process:

-
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Revising the priority of the material
ESG issues based on the

views of senior executives and the
proposed amendments to the list of
issues, and presenting to the
management for final confirmation
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Chart 2 Review Process of Material ESG Issues of Neo-Neon
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There was no major change in the principal lighting business during
the Year, so the materiality matrix of ESG issues for the previous year
is still applicable.

A- Occupational Health and Safety
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Chart 3 Materiality Matrix of ESG Issues of Neo-Neon
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PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

Product Quality and Safety and Recall Mechanism

As a manufacturer of lighting products, product safety is one of our
main concerns. To effectively monitor product safety, quality and
compliance, the Company has established a dedicated team and has
obtained 1ISO9001 quality management system certification.

The Production Planning Procedures, Production and Service Provision
Process Control Procedures and Product Prevention and Control
Procedures set out the bottom line of production quality to strictly
control the quality of the products delivered from both professional
and customer perspectives. Our quality assurance procedures are
stringent, with strict quality control, monitoring and inspection and
reliability testing covering raw and auxiliary materials, production
processes and outgoing products, so as to ensure that our products
comply with all applicable safety and quality requirements.

We have established a sound product recall system through a series
of management and control documents such as Product Hazard and
Risk Management Procedures, Unqualified Product Control Program
and Procedures for Non-compliance, Correction and Prevention
Measures. In the event that any product fails to meet the
requirements for function and hazardous substance content,
customers can return the defective products to the factories for
repair during the warranty period.

During the Year, there was no case where products sold by the
Company were subject to recall for safety and health reasons, and no
fines or prosecutions were imposed on the Company for
non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations.

Green and Innovative Products

Management and control of hazardous substances

Our export markets, such as the European Union, have extremely
strict environmental and safety requirements for electronic equipment
such as lighting products, therefore, we have formulated hazardous
substance management procedures based on the European Union’s
RoHS (Restriction of Hazardous Substances) Directive and customer
requirements. We conduct risk assessment on the chemicals and
other hazardous substances used in the production process according
to the relevant procedures to ensure that our products comply with
regulatory and customer requirements for the management of
hazardous substances.
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Energy conservation of products

In addition to promoting energy saving and emission reduction in our
business operations, we are also actively developing more advanced,
energy-efficient and environmentally friendly products. We aim to
minimise the environmental impact of our business and products to
meet the needs of society and our customers for energy saving and
emission reduction by making energy saving a key objective in
product design.

OPERATING PRACTICES

As one of the world’s leading lighting manufacturers, Neo-Neon
always regards quality as the core of sustainable business
development. Our professional team, comprising the Marketing
Department, R&D Engineering Department, Procurement Department,
Production Department and Quality Control Department, strictly
monitors the entire production chain from raw material procurement
to after-sales service and strives to uphold the quality and safety of
our products.

To further optimise product quality management and enhance the
sustainability of the supply chain, we have also established a close
working relationship with our suppliers to ensure that their
performance is up to standard. We adhere to the principles of
“honesty, integrity and lawfulness” and strictly prohibit any corrupt
practices to ensure the efficient operation of the entire value chain.

Integrity and Sound Governance

Integrity is one of the integral elements for the stable development
of enterprises. Neo-Neon operates its business based on the principles
of honesty, ethics and adherence to integrity, and strictly complies
the Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the People’s Republic of China,
the Interim Provisions on Banning Commercial Bribery and other
regulations relating to anti-corruption. To prevent the illegal
behaviors of bribery, blackmail, fraud and money laundering, we
have formulated and implemented the Anti-fraud Management
System and the Policy for Fighting Corruption and Boosting Integrity
to eradicate illegal acts of bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering through standardised systems and measures.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

We have clearly stated our anti-corruption principles in our
Anti-Corruption and Integrity Policy and adopt a zero-tolerance
approach to any form of corruption. In order to prevent corruption at
source, we encourage stakeholders at all levels, including employees,
suppliers and customers, to report suspicious situations to the
Company in a timely manner through established reporting
procedures. At the same time, we have provided clear guidelines to
our employees in the Anti-Fraud Management System, including the
definition of the concept and forms of fraud, the responsible unit for
anti-fraud, as well as the corresponding preventive and control
measures. Moreover, we provided anti-corruption training to our
board members and employees every year, distributed anti-corruption
learning materials to employees and required them to study the
materials carefully in order to enhance the anti-corruption awareness
of our employees at different levels as well as their ability to identify
suspicious behaviour.

personnel received
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206 412

During the Year, there were no legal case regarding corrupt practices
brought against Neo-Neon or its employees, nor was there any
violation of relevant laws and regulations.

AEE - ARRYARBARATARKLEEER
BT REEERNE - TARBERBREZE
EREIER

BAARRIEREBRRAG o —_T-_FFf

65



66

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
RE HERER®MSE (K)

Procurement Practices and Supplier Management

As a distributor and manufacturer of lighting products, suppliers play
an inextricable part in our business operation. Therefore, under the
framework of the SA8000 social responsibility management system,
we have reviewed and updated our procurement system during the
Year, and have formulated and implemented a series of system
including the Neo-Neon Holdings Limited Administrative Measures
for Procurement (“Administrative Measures for Procurement”),
Neo-Neon Holdings Limited Administrative Measures for Supervision
of Procurement (“Administrative Measures for Supervision of
Procurement”), Neo-Neon Holdings Limited Administrative Measures
for Non-tendering Procurement, Neo-Neon Holdings Limited
Administrative Measures for Suppliers and Neo-Neon Holdings
Limited Administrative Measures for Tendering, to regulate the
procurement process and safeguard the quality of raw materials and
products from our suppliers, thereby managing environmental and
social risks in our supply chain.

We conduct procurement in accordance with the control measures
over the procurement process stated in the Administrative Measures
for Procurement to ensure that all products we purchase meet the
necessary requirements. The entire purchasing operating system is
managed by the head procurement office, which includes personnel
management and supervision, maintenance of the procurement
system and the aggregation of relevant data. In addition, the head
procurement office is also responsible for coordinating each
department and factory in the development of novel materials or
new suppliers, and guides them in the evaluation and selection
process of suppliers.

We have specified the supplier selection and review mechanism in
the Administrative Measures for Supervision of Procurement, whereby
new suppliers are subject to the approval by the Procurement
Department in conjunction with the Quality Department, Engineering
Department and other relevant departments. In selecting suppliers,
we will take into account their past performance in fulfilling social
responsibilities and select products and services that minimise
potential environmental impact. To reduce the potential
environmental and social risks in the supply chain, we require all
potential suppliers to complete a series of qualification questionnaires
during the assessment process, including the Supplier Quality System
Questionnaire, Hazardous Substance Control System Questionnaire,
Environmental and Occupational Health and Safety Questionnaire,
Mandatory Product Certification and Factory Quality Assurance
Requirements Questionnaire and Quality Requirements Questionnaire
of Social Responsibility Questionnaire. In addition, suppliers shall
provide the Annual Quality Guarantee, Hazardous Substance Free
(“HSF") Product Commitment and HSF Product Testing Report to
ensure their product quality management, environmental and health
and safety management capabilities meet the requirements of
relevant regulations and standards.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

We encourage our suppliers to continuously improve their
performance of environmental and social responsibilities, and have
formulated the Management Procedures for the Impact Imposed on
the Environmental and OHS (Occupational Health and Safety)
Behaviors of Related Parties, which specifies the environmental
protection and occupational health and safety requirements of each
raw material and service supplier. To ensure that the concept of
sustainability is embedded throughout Neo-Neon's supply chain, we
actively support our suppliers to enhance their ability to fulfil their
environmental and social responsibilities. The Equipment Department
and Procurement Department are responsible for organising supplier
assessments, environmental and safety related training and
assessments, and arranging for different departments to be
responsible for educating the relevant suppliers according to the
types of services they provide. For those suppliers that need particular
work, the Equipment Department and Procurement Department
organise relevant departments to track and inspect the environmental
and OHS behaviors of such suppliers from time to time, and require
those who do not meet our requirements to make rectifications.

During the Year, we had a total of 541 suppliers, of which 39% were
located in Guangdong Province, 16% were located in other
provinces, and 45% were foreign suppliers.
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Protection of Intellectual Property

Neo-Neon considers intellectual property rights as one of its most
valuable assets and attaches great importance to the protection and
management of intellectual property rights. While actively promoting
innovative research and development, the Company also attaches
great importance to the protection of our own technological
innovation achievements and brand-related intangible assets such as
trademarks, patents and copyrights. We strictly complies with laws
and regulations relating to intellectual property rights and has
regulated management of intellectual property through the
Administrative Measures for Intellectual Property, and encourage
employees to actively propose innovative ideas.

The Standard Patent Division is responsible for the centralised
application and registration for intellectual property rights of the
Company, validity extension, information update and combating
infringement of the Company’s intellectual properties as required.
We have continuously refined and standardised intellectual property
management system, and have established specific procedures for
the ownership, registration, management and maintenance of
intellectual properties and the rewarding procedures for intellectual
property inventions. In order to continuously raise our level of
management for the protection of intellectual property rights, the
Quality Department and the standards team, together with other
relevant departments, make assessment on the compliance of laws
and regulations that contain the provisions regarding intellectual
property semiannually, in accordance with the Collection and
Evaluation Procedures of Laws and Regulations, to identify potential
areas for improvement.

Customer Service and Rights Protection

Neo-Neon understands that customer satisfaction is the key to
long-term business success and is committed to providing a quality
service experience to our customers. To this end, we have developed
the Customer Satisfaction Measurement Procedures and the
Procedure for Customer-Related Control, constantly improving the
service quality and ensuring the timely replied and proper handling of
customer feedbacks.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

We handle customer complaints according to the procedures in the
Customer Satisfactions Measurement Procedure set out below and
require the unit(s) concerned to provide feedback on customer
comments within 24 hours and to respond in writing within 5
working days with valid improvement actions.

1. after receiving a customer complaint, the Marketing
Department communicates with the customer and keeps a
record of the complaint according to the Procedure for
Customer-Related Control;

2. the complaint is then passed to the Quality Department for
follow-up to verify the quality of the customer’s product and
the return application;

3.  the Production Department is responsible for assisting in the
analysis and review of customer complaints, and collaborating
in the formulation of improvement and preventive measures.

During the Year, the number of enquiries and complaints received by
Neo-Neon about our products and services was 119. We take each
and every complaint seriously and have handled them in accordance
with established procedures.

Neo-Neon also attaches high importance to the protection of
customer information and privacy, and strictly complies with laws
and regulations relating to privacy matters of products and services.
As our business involves customer information, we have formulated
and implemented the Guidelines on the Use of Computers, Networks
and Mailboxes with reference to the Cybersecurity Law of the
People’s Republic of China to regulate the operation and use of
electronic systems by our employees when accessing customer
information. At the same time, we verify, store and maintain personal
information provided by customers in accordance with the Customer
Property Control Procedures to ensure the security of their personal
information and privacy are fully safeguarded. In addition, we have
installed anti-virus and anti-malware programs on all systems to
prevent data leakage due to cyber attacks.

During the Year, there were no instances in which the Company
caused a breach of customer privacy or leak of personal information.
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PEOPLE MANAGEMENT

Neo-Neon regards employees as our partners and most important
asset. Therefore, we insist on a people-oriented talent management
model, and are committed to providing a safe and harmonious
working environment for our employees. Through continuously
improving the remuneration and benefit protection of employees,
providing diversified career development opportunities for employees,
and protecting the rights and interests of employees, we actively
attract and retain talents and seek mutual development with
employees.

Employees’ Benefits and Rights

Neo-Neon strictly complies with laws and regulations relating to
compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working
hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination,
and other benefits and welfare and adheres to the principles of
fairness, equitableness and transparency in recruiting and retaining
talents. We are committed to protecting the rights and interests of
our employees in accordance with the Labour Law of the People’s
Republic of China, the Social Security Law of the People’s Republic of
China and the SA8000 social responsibility system, and further
regulate salary, remuneration and benefit polices by updating and
publishing a series of personnel management system including
Attendance Management System, Compensation and Benefits
Management System, Performance Appraisal Management System,
Labour Contract Management System, Personnel Change
Management System and Reward and Punishment Management
System.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Adhering to the salary distribution principle of “comply with the
laws, distribute according to work, provide equal pay for equal work,
gradually improve and provide social insurance according to the
laws”, and with reference to the guidelines of the Management
Manual and Compensation and Benefits Management System, we
attract and retain talent with favorable compensations and benefits,
people-oriented management philosophy, fair and comprehensive
evaluation and promotion system. To ensure that our remuneration
and benefits comply with local regulations and SA8000 standards,
we continually review the competitiveness of our employees’
remuneration levels and include in the Staff Manual a provision for
annual pay adjustments based on performance and merit. At the
same time, the Company has formulated the Salary Management
System to ensure the legal compliance of the Company in all aspects
of salary distribution and payment. In addition, we also set out the
rules and regulations on promotion, appraisal, reward and
punishment management in the Staff Manual, Attendance
Management System, Reward and Punishment Management System
and other documents to provide clear promotion and development
paths and ladders for our employees. We conduct monthly, quarterly
and annual assessments of our employees’ capabilities and qualities,
and based on the results of these assessments, we promote or
downgrade employees to appropriate positions and adjust their
salaries in accordance with the corresponding rank and other
standards.

In addition to offering reasonable and competitive salaries, we have
established a comprehensive welfare system to provide diversified
benefits and incentives to our employees, including full-attendance
bonus, post allowance, etc. In addition to statutory holidays,
employees are also entitled to marriage leave, maternity leave, work
injury leave, bereavement leave and paid annual leave to meet their
needs in life. Employees are entitled to overtime pay in accordance
with the Overtime Management and Control Procedures. In addition,
staff working in the factory and travelling on business are provided
with a living allowance as well as free staff dormitories and staff
canteens. In addition, we actively improve the conditions of
dormitories and canteens, and rest and recreation facilities to
enhance the working and resting environment of our employees. We
also regularly organise employees to participate in cultural and sports
activities to strengthen staff cohesion and sense of belonging.
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We spare no effort to protect the rights and interests of our
employees. To ensure that employees are well familiar with their
rights and obligations, the Staff Manual has set out guidelines on
recruitment and employment, code of conduct of employees and
termination of labour contracts, as well as the requirements for
working hours. We provide compensatory time off or overtime pay
for employees who work overtime in accordance with relevant
requirements to ensure that they are reasonably rewarded for their
efforts.

We advocate in creating a diverse and respectful working
environment, oppose any form of discrimination, and strive to
provide an inclusive, safe, diverse and anti-discriminatory work
environment for employees of all backgrounds. We treat candidates
and employees with equal respect regardless of race, gender, age
and marital status, and consider only their ability and suitability for
the position, and are committed to ensuring that the recruitment and
promotion process is free from discrimination. Meanwhile, to
eliminate all potential discrimination, we have established a grievance
and complaint mechanism for whistleblowers to make complaints
about discrimination to worker representatives, supervisors and
general managers. Upon receipt of such complaints, we will appoint
personnel other than the employees involved to investigate and take
corrective action.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

As of 31 December 2022, the Company had a total of 557
employees, representing a decrease of 20% as compared to last year,
mainly due to optimisation of the organizational structure and human
resources of the Company. The composition and turnover rate of the
employees are shown in the following table:

BRE -HERERES (B)

HZE2022F12A318 * KA A E 8 I557
A BEEFHAI20% 0 TEHRARRD T AL
REAE AEBL - BIBKARRELAZRE
MINTRATR

Category Number in 2022 Turnover Rate
28 2022F A ¥ KR
Male employees 241 45%
By gender FHES
IR Female employees 316 34%
TMHEE
30 or below 4 178%
305 A T
By age 31-50 485 31%
RER 31-505%
51 or above 68 26%
5150 E
Full-time employees 557 39%
By employee category 2HRES
EIEREAR Contract/non-official employees 0 0%
24,/ FEAEE
Southern China 66 63%
Eastern China 2 185%
3
By region Northern China 6 0%
B #i
Central China 27 93%
#h
Overseas 456 21%
S0\
Overall turnover rate
BRRAX 39%

During the Year, the Company was not aware of any employee
complaint regarding harassment (including sexual harassment),
corporal punishment, abuse and inappropriate punitive measures,
and there were no dispute over compensation payment.
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Occupational Health and Safety

Employees are the cornerstone of the steady development of
Neo-Neon. Therefore, we are committed to protect the health and
safety of our employees and create a safe and comfortable working
environment for them. In addition to strictly complying with the
Production Safety Law of the People’'s Republic of China and other
occupational health and safety-related laws and regulations, we
make reference to the OHSAS18001 Occupational Health and Safety
Management System and SA8000 Social Accountability System
standards to formulate and implement safety and health policies and
procedures to ensure that production are carried out on the premise
that the safety as well as the physical and mental health of our
employees are protected.

Workplace safety

The Company places a high priority on safety in the production
process and has adopted a number of measures to minimise potential
safety and health risks, and has set out the following annual safety
targets in the Management Manual:

o zero major workplace accidents; and

o 100% qualification rate of the on-job employees in workplace
safety training each year.

The OHS Operation Control Procedures clearly specifies the division
of responsibilities for production safety of each unit in order to
ensure the effective implementation of various safety measures. The
management of occupational health and safety risk factors is carried
out by the Industrial Committee in collaboration with the Engineering
Department, Equipment Department, Testing Centre and other
relevant departments. At the same time, the Industrial Safety
Committee is also required to work with the Production Centre and
Quality Centre to organise hazard identification, risk evaluation and
risk control planning in accordance with the Procedures for Hazard
Identification, Risk Evaluation and Risk Control Planning. We will tag
the high-risk source identified in the production process as the
Company’s major hazards and develop mitigation and improvement
measures accordingly. If the hazard is difficult to mitigate in the short
term, we will take appropriate safety measures, equip employees
with protective gears and provide training and operational guidance
to relevant operating personnel in order to minimise safety risks.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

In addition to eliminating and mitigating the risk factors in the
production process, we also actively provide workplace safety courses
for employees to raise their awareness of workplace safety and
prevent accidents from happening. We arrange additional
professional trainings on safety technologies for all personnel
engaged in special types of work such as boilers, pressure vessels,
elevators, electric, lifting, welding, vehicle driving, flammables and
explosives, and require such personnel to pass the strict examinations
conducted by the competent national authority. Such personnel can
independently operate the related devices only after obtaining a
qualified operating certificate or related license. In addition, the
Emergency Preparedness and Response Procedures covers emergency
response plans for potential hazards such as fires and natural
disasters, so to ensure that personnel can respond promptly in the
event of an emergency.

During the Year, the Company had 4 work-related injuries'. During
the Year, the Company was not aware of any significant occupational
health and safety violations relating to the Company.

Occupational health

In addition to ensuring the safety of our employees, Neo-Neon is also
concerned about the occupational health of our employees. We
continuously monitor and improve occupational health and safety
performance by setting out the guiding principle of “providing
employees with a safe and comfortable working and living
environment” in the Management Manual, and strictly complying
with the Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention
and Control of Occupational Diseases and other relevant laws and
regulations. To further regulate occupational health management,
we have established a comprehensive occupational health
management system aiming at zero occupational disease incidence
rate based on the OHS Operation Control Procedures and with
reference to the OHSAS18001 Occupational Health and Safety
Management System and SA8000 Social Accountability System
standard, so as to protect the physical and mental health of our
employees.

L During the Year, the Company had 4 work-related injuries for employees,
resulting in 75 lost days due to work injuries, which were all due to traffic
accidents. Compensation has been arranged in accordance with regulations.
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We are committed to occupational health and safety and have set up
the Industrial Safety Committee to organise the establishment of
occupational health and safety control points in each department. In
addition to inspecting the operation of each production environment,
the Industrial Safety Committee also provides labour protection
equipment to the employees in the relevant positions. To minimise
the risk of accidents, we continuously monitor the occupational
health risks at each control point and arrange for the relevant
departments to put up visible signs at workplaces with potentially
significant accident risks.

Meanwhile, the Industrial Safety Committee conducts regular
inspections of the safety, health and hygiene operational controls of
each department in accordance with the requirements of the OHS
Performance Measurement and Monitoring Control Procedures. We
require each department to be subject to a full inspection by the
Quality Department on a three-monthly basis in relation to its safety,
health and hygiene operational controls to further ensure the
effective implementation of occupational health management. We
will record the results of these inspections in the Operational Control
Monitoring Chart. If any of the department’s controls do not meet
the required standards, we will require the department to make
improvements in accordance with the Control of Non-compliance,
Remedial, Corrective and Preventive Actions Procedure.

By establishing a comprehensive health examination mechanism and
providing occupational health examinations for our employees, we
aim to minimise the health risks they are exposed to. We will arrange
regular health examinations for all personnel participating in
specialised operations and workers exposed to toxic and hazardous
substances, and transfer the relevant personnel if adverse health
conditions are found. If an employee is diagnosed with an
occupational disease, we will follow the requirements of the
Occupational Disease Management Ordinance and promptly report
the case to the competent government administrative department
and arrange specialised treatment for the patient until he/she
recovers or is stabilised.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Employee Training and Development

The continuous development and growth of our employees is an
important factor in maintaining the sustainable development of the
Company. To this end, we continue to invest in the learning and
development of our employees to nurture the best talent for the
Company.

In order to meet the development needs of the Company and our
employees, we specify the requirements and types of training for our
employees in the training section of Staff Manual, including a full
range of vocational training such as pre-employment training, skills
training and outplacement training, in order to meet the
development needs of our Company and our employees. In addition,
we have formulated the Human Resource and Training Program
Documentation and Training Management System, and established
sound training management regulations, systems and mechanisms in
line with the strategic planning and business operation needs of the
Company.

The Education and Training Centre draws up an Annual Training Plan
with reference to the Job Descriptions compiled by the Human
Resources Department in order to provide more targeted training to
staff in various functional departments, such as relevant theoretical
and practical training on production, quality, administration,
engineering and technology, as well as special work types for
in-service staff. The departmental heads track and evaluate staff
training results through theoretical examination, operation
examination, performance appraisal and observation at the end of
training to ensure the effectiveness of training. To further enhance
the quality of training content, we also seek training feedback and
suggestions from departments at the end of the year to review the
training program for the current year and serve as the basis for the
preparation of the training program for next year.
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During the Year, a total of 376 Neo-Neon employees attended
training, with a total of 1,128 hours. The training covered areas such
as financial professional skills, auditing, practical guidelines on
corruption prevention systems for listed companies, anti-corruption
and whistleblowing policy training. The following is a breakdown of
the percentage of employees trained and the average number of
training hours by gender and employee category:

REE - BARKLHI76R8 T2 0E
B RED 128N - FI AR RE T
BERE BAIE ETRARABEFSER
BESER  BREEBFRBREBIEHE - 1L
ThRIEEREERENE S B TR E
N2

Average
Total training hours
Number Percentage training completed per
of employees of employees hours employee
Category trained trained? (hour) (hour)?
ZIET
AMIIRE  FHIIEH
ik ZINAH 3l (NEF) (NEF) 3
Male 182 48% 546 3.00
By gender S
Z1E5 Female 194 52% 582 3.00
egia
Managerial 23 6% 69 3.00
By employee category EIE[E
ZEB T Non-managerial 353 94% 1,059 3.00
FEEE

Avoidance of Child and Forced Labour

As a responsible employer, Neo-Neon attaches great importance to
labour rights and interests in employment management, strictly
abides by relevant laws and regulations, such as the Labour Law of
the People’s Republic of China, the Labour Contract Law of the
People’s Republic of China and the Social Security Law of the
People’s Republic of China, as well as international labour standards,
and strictly prohibits the employment of child labour or labour
exploitation. In order to promote the sustainable development of our
supply chain, we also require our suppliers to adopt and comply with
the same requirements.

2 The percentage of employees trained is calculated based on “the number of
employees trained by employee category or gender divided by the total
number of employees trained”

2 The average training hours completed per employee is calculated based on
“the total training hours completed by employee category or gender divided
by the number of employees trained by employee type or gender”
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

We have formulated management systems such as the Child Labour
Rescue Procedures, Labour and Business Ethics Risk Management
Procedures and Non-obligatory Work Procedures with reference to
the SA8000 social responsibility management standard system to
ensure that all employees are age-appropriate for work and that
working hours are managed in accordance with legal requirements.
We also clearly set out targets for zero child labour and on-time
payment of wages to all employees in the Management Manual.

We have strict policies and measures in place, such as the Policies
and Procedures of Human Resources Department, which require job
applicants to submit identification documents for identity verification
and age confirmation when filling out the Form of Job Application to
ensure that they are of legal working age and eligible for
employment, in order to eliminate all child labour, juvenile labour
and forced labour. We do not employ anyone under the age of 16 in
our facilities in China. Employees must possess the required legal
permission to work in our facilities.

We are well aware of the seriousness of child labour and have a Child
Labour Rescue Procedures in place to deal with potential child labour
violations. Once a child labourer is found to have been wrongly
employed, the Employee Relationship Team of the Human Resources
Department will immediately terminate the employee’s employment,
settle the wages and arrange for the child labourer to be escorted
back to his or her original home. The procedures also require the
relevant departments must conduct a thorough investigation into any
irregularities in order to prevent the recurrence of similar incidents in
the future.

In order to avoid forced labour, the Company has set up the Labour
and Business Ethics Risk Management Procedures based on the
guidelines of SA8000 standards. The Human Resources Department
and the Production Department evaluate the risk of illegal child
labour and forced labour with reference to the procedures to ensure
that no forced labour occurs in all employment links. Moreover, the
Non-obligatory Work Procedures clearly stipulates that “any form of
forced labour is prohibited and the personal freedom of workers is
protected”. In the event of any non-compliance, the Company will
immediately investigate the cause of the non-compliance and provide
compensation to the affected employees.

During the Year, the Company was not aware of any major violation
concerning the employment of child labour or forced labour, and
achieved the annual management goals of zero child labour and
timely salary payment.

RE HERERRSE (H)

HMLHESAS0OL EEEERIZEB R
FIECEIERMER) (BIMmErERE
BBRFERER) (GERBAUETHERRIEE
EBHE UERAEETIHAERAL I
BIEBEEFTERE TERER - BMIRE
BFM)PIBEEEBTETRERHENA B
TEHRTIEMBIZ -

BPERICANERFBBRERF) FK
REBRMER BEREBEEES(ET
KBHFROF FRERISGMNEAXMFAZ
BEDEGLERFR  BREEINEEL
EFRARBUREER UHB—ET -
DEBTIRBIEST - RAFREFBHH R
MR T EREMI6ENATALT - BT HER
BRFBEEFA - DA RBPIRERTE

BARBEBEINREN  AHHETH
BHEESRBRBELEMARE T(EITEMIE
FFre —BERRARBETRE  ANERE
ETRARMASEVARIEHEUTERETE -
THEXETRERDREFR - HEARFIL
AREREEMEREMH  UWLERBSEMH
BREE -

¥R B4 T - AAQ A ZEASA80001Z % 1Y
EolHE(BE I MEmEFEERRKRTIHRE
Y e ANBREMEEDSRIEREF TG
BEEL BHETEERER  RESME
IR AELEBRAMEH - RAE - AW
(GEBEETIERF)FIBIZEIEERERXD
BB RETAABEBR]IMMETE - A0
BEMERBR  ARARBIEBEERR
H YTRZEES TREHE -

REE  ARAFRABEEFAERERE LK
BHETHERERSH WEKRTEIR
ERXFNFEERBER -

BAARRIEREBRRAG o —_T-_FFf

79



80

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
RE HERER®MSE (K)

ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITIES

Neo-Neon is well aware that it is the unshirkable responsibility of
enterprises to combat climate change. We have been actively
incorporating sustainable development principles into our daily
operations to help mitigate the effects of climate change. As one of
the world’s largest lighting manufacturers, we aim to minimise the
potential impact of our business on the environment through
responsible procurement, innovative application of materials,
long-term product planning, manufacturing, research and
development.

Through actively managing the consumption of fuel and water
resources and monitoring our greenhouse gas emissions and waste
generation throughout our operations, the Company ensures that all
business operations strictly comply with the Environmental Protection
Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on Prevention and Control of Water Pollution, the
Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control
of Atmospheric Pollution and other relevant laws and regulations
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water
and land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

We have established a comprehensive and solid environmental
management system to manage our environmental performance with
reference to the requirements of the ISO14001 environmental
management system. Meanwhile, we have actively implemented a
number of environmental policies and corresponding procedures,
such as the Waste Water and Waste Gas Emission and Noise Control
Management Procedures and the Resource and Energy Saving
Control Procedures, to regulate environmental management work.
Moreover, we have set a series of environmental targets, further
facilitating the continuous improvement of our environmental
management to ensure the compliance of our operations with local
laws and regulations while meeting our customers’ needs for green
consumption.

During the Year, the Company’s business operations did not cause
any significant pollution and damage to the air, land, water sources
and ecological environment in the vicinity, and the Group was not
aware of any major violation regarding environmental protection.

Unless otherwise stated, the data in this section covers the
Company’s lighting manufacturing plant in Heshan, Guangdong and
the USA lighting segment. The numbers stated in this chapter may
not add up to totals or 100% due to rounding.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Use of Resources

Energy conservation

As the global climate crisis becomes more severe, the urgency of
reducing greenhouse gas emissions increases. Neo-Neon adheres to
reducing carbon emissions in our business operations and has
adopted various measures to further promote energy conservation in
our business. The Environmental Operation Control Procedures and
Resource and Energy Conservation Control Procedures clearly specify
the goals and management plans for energy conservation.
Meanwhile, we have published the Management System for Business
Trips during the Year to encourage green travel. To further drive the
effective implementation of energy savings in our business, we
continue to look for room for improvement and set an energy saving
target of “2% reduction in annual electricity consumption” during
the Year. We have adopted the following series of energy
management measures to improve the energy efficiency of our plant
production and reduce greenhouse gas emissions.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
R -HERERARE (K)

In 2022, our total power consumption was 4,826,306 kWh, 7£2022% - &M1& 4 # E & 54,826,306 F

representing a decrease of 6.6% compared to last year. Tk W EFETRE6.6% °
Power
consuming
facilities Unit 2022 2021
BRI B 2022 2021%F
Total amount PRC lighting segment  Office kWh 312,860 330,781
we B R BA 43 6 F/NE T FLB
Living area 93,8644 39,740
AR
Factory 3,787,697 4,155,469
Subtotal 4,194,421 4,525,990
At
USA lighting segment  Office 444,104 463,367
B BA 5 JP L /NE
Factory 187,781 179,991
Subtotal 631,885 643,358
hEt
Total 4,826,306 5,169,348
et
Intensity Total MWh/billion revenue 5,119.2 5,911.0
mE ast FELR, B THA

4 The power consumption of living area of the PRC lighting segment increased 4 HERASBEETENESEL FEEARL

as compared to last year, mainly due to factory workers staying in the living F o rTERASEHERE TAREEEIER
area for longer hours during the pandemic. We will continuously review the EREEUAE RSB ERSTAAE XML
energy performance of all facilities and seek opportunities to reduce energy BREN TEBRRIELEEBYEENRE  BE
consumption, while actively implement various energy saving measures in B TR - TSR — SR BEEE o

order to further reduce energy consumption.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Use of packaging materials

In order to protect the quality and appearance of the lighting
products during transportation, our delivered products are protected
by various types of packaging materials such as cardboard boxes,
plastic bags and expandable polyethylene (EPE). In view of the
potential environmental impact of packaging materials, the Company
exerts strict controls on the use of packaging materials. The R&D
department takes the consumption of packaging materials into
account when designing products, and is endeavored to reduce its
consumption as much as possible and avoid unnecessary waste
without compromising quality. We also recycle the waste generated
by the use of necessary packaging materials, such as waste cardboard
boxes and scrap metal. The head procurement office will regularly
notify designated recycling units to collect these directly recyclable
wastes, while non-recyclable waste will be handed over to the local
sanitation authorities for environmentally sound disposal.

In the Year 2022, the total amount of packaging materials consumed
by the Company was 386.1 tonnes.

Type of packaging

RE HERERRSE (F)

BERMFHEA

EEBEMNET RREEHEMNEE
FEONVE - B EFTASENERN - BR
PRBHBEMBRESY - SHHBRMH
MEBEREZE AR BBEHNSEMH
MEMRE MENEERRTBEREEN
BHEERMAZRERR  £ERELENF R
T BARBRIEBER BETLERE -
BRTERKHAEZERLNBEREY:
WNEEARAR - R B ] B R O R R R R
V) R AEEDE T BB AT E Y 0 Uk B
TR AR @ U REY) - R A E IR
BPTIFEE(CERIE -

20229 - ARRIFIERNBRMMEER
386. 1M ©

materials Unit 2022 2021
BEMHER B 20225 20215
Total amount PRC lighting segment Cardboard boxes tonne 93.2 102.0
HE BB 5 £ ] @
Plastic bags 2.3 2.4
Expandable polyethylene 0 0
(EPE)
I3 R
Subtotal 95.5 104.4
NEE
USA lighting segment Cardboard boxes tonne 284.5 217.1%
LBl RRAA 7 & s 4
Plastic bags 6.2 5.6°
B&
Subtotal 290.7 222.7¢
M
Total tonne 386.1 327.15
et &
Intensity Total tonne/billion revenue 409.6° 374.0°
BE #st B,/ R A
s The packaging material usage data of the USA lighting segment for the Year 5 20214F B X B R B 9 30 2 B8 3 i kHE A B8R
2021 have been restated to cover a more accurate dataset. EE - LUREE AR BE o
8 The Company has put in place various conservation measures during the 6 AR ERFRKRZEMAERE - Am
Year. However, due to business needs, the Company’s packaging materials ERTE . ARNANBEYELERES A RE
consumption has also increased correspondingly, resulting in an increase in BR BHEEAEYNERETEER FEA
the overall packaging materials consumption and intensity as compared to FrEF - RABERKBIZHEHTESHNEL
last year. The Company will continue to implement more conservation i RGN EEYE  BREA R
measures and adopt green packaging materials in the future to avoid waste BIRRE -

of resources.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
RE HERER®MSE (K)

Waste Discharge Management

Waste management

A key objective of the Company’s environmental management system
is to minimise material consumption and waste generated in its
operations where possible, and we have adopted a number of waste
management measures to achieve this. We dispose of hazardous and
general waste in the way specified by local laws and regulations in
each of our operating locations and adopt appropriate methods. The
Environmental Operation Control Procedure of the Company
specified various waste disposal methods and enhanced the
management and control of waste disposal. For waste that cannot be
avoided in the course of our operations, our employees will follow
established procedures to recycle or dispose of wastes appropriately
to minimise its impact on the environment.

Hazardous waste

All departments are required to follow the guidelines set forth in the
Hazardous Waste Management Regulations to properly collect and
dispose of hazardous waste, which include segregating waste at
prescribed locations. The head procurement office will classify and
arrange for disposal in a unified manner, and commission qualified
units with resources to handle and dispose of the hazardous waste in
accordance with the regulations.

During the Year, we set the goal of “handling hazardous waste in
100% compliance with laws and regulations” so to further improving
our hazardous waste management system. To this end, we provided
training to relevant personnel, and the Company has enhanced its
awareness of waste separation, collection and disposal, strictly
complied with the Waste Control Procedures and the Hazardous
Chemicals Control Procedures to ensure that the treatment of
hazardous waste meets legal requirements, and established storage
areas for centralised storage of hazardous waste.

In the Year 2022, we generated 76 kg of hazardous waste,
representing an intensity of 80.6 kg/billion revenue’. The hazardous
waste includes waste engine oil, wipes for waste engine oil and toner
cartridges.

Z Hazardous waste generation decreased by 92% compared to last year,
mainly attributable to the shutdown of the mold and plastic injection
workshops in the PRC Lighting segment, which resulted in a significant
reduction in hazardous waste discharge.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

General waste

The main sources of our general waste are food waste from our
canteen and domestic waste generated by our departments. In the
office, we promote recycling and conservation awareness, encourage
our employees to replace disposable supplies with reusable products,
promote recycling and conservation awareness, and have set up
facilities and places for recycling recyclable waste such as waste
paper to reduce general waste generated in the office. In order to
reduce food waste generation, we have strengthened our
procurement management to avoid wasteful purchase of excessive
food ingredients to reduce waste at source.

During the Year, the Company generated 112.1 tonnes of domestic
waste with an intensity of 118.9 tonnes/billion revenue. To ensure
proper disposal of waste, the domestic waste generated by various
departments is collected daily by full-time cleaners into domestic
garbage bins, which will then be transported by the local sanitation
station at specified times to a local garbage transfer station for
non-hazardous treatment.

RE HERERRSE (F)

— R

ARAN—REDTIERBZREH B M
BEMPEENEELR - ERLE - R
BEKMEBAONER  SBETURERN
EmZR—REYE YRETORERS
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Domestic waste Unit 2022 2021
IR By 20225 20215
PRC lighting segment tonne 11.0 13.0
B AR AR 2 6 i3
USA lighting segment® tonne 101.1 84.0°
ZERP S i3
Total tonne 1121 97.0°
@t ]
Intensity tonne/billion revenue 118.9 110.9°
BE W,/ +ETBA
8 Includes the domestic waste of American Lighting, Inc and Novelty Lights, 8 B fEAmerican Lighting, Inc&Novelty Lights,

LLC. Tivoli, LLC as is not included as there is no record of the weight of its
domestic waste yet.

2 The domestic waste discharge data of the USA lighting segment for the Year
2021 have been restated to cover a more accurate dataset.

LLCHI A E 3 A Tivoli, LLCE R AL
SENBZER  NERBIEEN -

o 20214 [ X B BB E 5 5F 2 4 7 fr 3R HE R Bk
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
RE HERER®MSE (K)

Greenhouse gas emission and climate change

In response to the global commitment and efforts to actively tackle
climate change, China announced its carbon emission peak goal for
2030 and a carbon neutrality goal for 2060 at the 75th session of the
United Nations General Assembly to guide the green and low carbon
development in the country. The Company is in full support of the
carbon emission peak and carbon neutrality goals and incorporates
the risks and opportunities associated with climate change in its
internal risk management process, thereby enhancing corporate
competitiveness.

Neo-Neon has an extensive distribution network around the world.
We supply products to companies in more than 10 countries and
purchases raw materials from suppliers in 36 countries. Climate risk
is one of the emerging and important risks faced by the Company’s
supply chain. In the event of disruptions to our transportation and
logistics networks due to extreme weather conditions such as floods,
severe typhoons and unusual heat waves, our daily business
operations would be significantly affected. We plan to actively
introduce internal policies and procedures in the future and develop
a comprehensive strategy to address the potential impact of climate
change in order to enhance climate resilience and adaptability of the
Company. On the other hand, to mitigate the environmental impact
of our business operations, we are already working to reduce the
intensity of greenhouse gas emissions in our daily operations through
a variety of energy saving and emission reduction measures, gradually
enhancing our ability to cope with climate change and achieve
sustainable development.

The greenhouse gas emissions in the Company’s business operations
are mainly generated from energy consumption in office,
transportation and production processes. For business units of which
the data is available, the greenhouse gas emissions of Scope 1 and
Scope 2 are reported as follows: Scope 1 emissions are from
consumption of natural gas and fuels, and Scope 2 emissions are
indirectly caused by purchased electricity. We continue to exert
efforts to extend the disclosure of information on greenhouse gas
(GHG) emissions.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

In 2022, the total greenhouse gas emissions produced by Neo-Neon
were 2,606.0 metric tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent, a decrease
of approximately 12% over last year. It was mainly due to a decrease
in the use of natural gas of the USA lighting segment, as well as a
decrease in the use of diesel vehicles of the PRC lighting segment. In
the future, the Company will continue to actively implement its
carbon reduction policy and explore potential opportunities to
contribute to the global fight against climate change.

RE HERERRSE (F)

BARR02FHMAEREBHENRERE A
2,606 02 M —EbMEE R EFE TR
H12% TEHREBBHE SR EH
RAR - AR BIRRAE S IR FE R MmE
B o 2N N B TE R RS 4 B FE AR R B Rk X
R BARRBENRIEER - BRIREY
RESCH—DH-

Greenhouse gas Unit 2022 2021
BERE By 20224 20214
Total amount Scope 1'° tonne CO,e 121.8 124.2
we #i[E—10 WA iR E =
Scope 2™ 2,484.2 2,841.6
gﬁiﬂ
Total 2,606.0 2,965.8
e
Intensity Scope 1 tonne CO,e/billion revenue 129.2 142.0
mE #[E— W= |k E 2 HETHRA
Scope 2 2,635.0 3,249.3
#HE=
Total 2,764.2 3,391.3
e

Air emissions

The Group’s major air emissions are a small amount of inorganic dust
and exhaust generated during the production processes such as
molding and welding, and the exhaust emitted by business vehicles.
During the Year, we have set a target of “emission compliance” to
strengthen the management of emissions from our production
processes. We regularly maintain exhaust treatment facilities and
monitor air emissions to ensure that dust and exhaust meet the
emission standards.

il Greenhouse gas emissions in Scope 1 are calculated in accordance with the
Guidelines to Account for and Report on Greenhouse Gas Emissions and
Removals for Buildings in Hong Kong (2010 Edition) issued by the Electrical
and Mechanical Services Department and the Environmental Protection
Department as well as the emission factor recently issued by the U.S.
Environmental Protection Agency.

" The emission factor of purchased electricity in Scope 2 refers to the Average
Carbon Dioxide Emission Factors of China Regional Power Grid in 2012
issued by the Development and Reform Commission of the People’s Republic
of China and the emission factor recently issued by the U.S. Environmental
Protection Agency.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
RE HERER®MSE (K)

Although the total amount of exhaust emitted by the Company’s
vehicles is not significant, we fully understand that vehicle emissions
are one of the major causes of air pollution. In order to help improve
air quality and to minimise vehicle emissions, the Company’s vehicles
with high exhaust emissions and low fuel efficiency have been
phased out in recent years. At present, all vehicles of the Company
are subject to annual tests such as exhaust emission tests, and only
those with satisfactory test results are put into operation.

The air emissions of Neo-Neon are as follows'?:

HARNRBHTERRENBESIK - B
PIRFAEEREEHNZER GAREN A
Z— RIPHHEZ=ZREE  URBE
BRFBERERK  LF  ARARAER
BRERS REMRUENTERES B
K MBAMBRRAEBGRLIETER
BEREFERA - AERERTIRAET

R KRB ERFREMT !

Total amount Total amount

Emissions Unit in 2022 in 2021
238 B 20225488 20215488
Nitrogen dioxide g 5,435 5,606
—&ata %
Sulfur dioxide g 137 79
k= )
Particulate matter g 400 413
BFRF %

Water Management

In terms of water management, the Company’s operations do not
involve significant water consumption and, as the Company’s main
businesses are not located in water-stressed areas, the Company has
not experienced issues in sourcing water that is fit for purpose.
Notwithstanding this, the Company has made every effort to reduce
water use, seeking to maximise efficiency and minimise waste, and to
improve the efficiency of water use.

We use water mainly for sanitary purpose and the rest in the
production process. We have formulated the Resources and Energy
Conservation Control Procedures which includes provisions for water
conservation and set a water conservation target of “reducing annual
water consumption by 2% " during the Year. We encourage staff to
conserve water by promoting awareness of water conservation
among managers and operators, including encouraging the use of
reusable water bottles instead of disposable water bottles, and
constantly seeking to improve water management in existing facilities
by adopting water-saving switches, flush water savers, etc.

2 Including the business vehicles of the PRC lighting segment and USA lighting
segment, which was calculated based on emission factors adopted from
“How to prepare an ESG Report — Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on
Environmental KPIs” published by the Stock Exchange.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

In the Year 2022, our water consumption was 69,254.9 cubic metres,
and the intensity of which was 73,457.5 cubic metres/billion
revenue's.

BRE -HERERES (B)

20226 % - M KE A69,254.93 77
K BEBIAT73,457. 55 F K HETIWAL o

Water Usage by Water Facilities

BRAKSERSHRAKE
15%
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82%
m Factory m Office Living area
i 2 MAE Ak

In terms of wastewater discharge, the wastewater discharged by our
facilities is mainly sanitary wastewater from employees. During the
Year, we set a target to achieve “wastewater compliance”. To ensure
up-to-standard discharge of sewage and reduction of environmental
pollution, we have installed wastewater treatment systems at our
factories and such wastewater will be discharged into the municipal
pipe network after three-stage pretreatment by our facilities upon
meeting the standards. In addition, we also use wastewater for
irrigation and greening purposes to reduce wastewater discharge.

To ensure the normal operation of the wastewater treatment system,
we also arrange regular maintenance and repair of our wastewater
treatment facilities. Our effluent discharge indicators will be
monitored by the Heshan Environmental Protection Monitoring
Station on a quarterly basis. If the indicators are not up to standard,
they will be monitored again after rectification to prove our
performance.

B The Company has put in place various water-saving measures during the
Year. However, due to business needs, the Company’s water consumption
has also increased correspondingly, coupled with the fact that factory
workers staying in the living area for longer hours during the pandemic, the
overall water consumption and intensity increased as compared to last year.
The Company will continue to implement more water-saving measures in
the future to minimise the use of water resources.
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COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

Neo-Neon understands the importance of giving back to the
community in the course of developing our business. Therefore, since
its inception, Neo-Neon has always regarded giving back to the
community as its responsibility and obligation beyond any doubt,
earnestly fulfills its corporate social responsibilities, and strives to
serve the community and building a friendly and harmonious
relationship with the communities where it operates through
community welfare activities. We are committed to promote local
employment by hiring local workers and actively carrying out related
activities in the areas including poverty alleviation, education support,
environmental protection and public health at the community in
accordance to the needs of local communities, to help the community
improve and promote its education, infrastructure and public health
to benefit the local people. In the Year 2022, the Company has
actively participated in community activities, including support for
pandemic prevention and control, and community support.

HERE

BARRAPEEREBNBRETEELE
MEZE -At r BRAAFAKEILES -

M—EHRRTEERAETAHNETNE
HoUBERBTLEMEEMR  BBELEQAT
EE) B RISALAY B EMEEE
MR MEEHEER - BPIB N RERH
¥ EFEHS T ANBREZEHAENTE
ko EBEMLERKE IEHE  RRAH
MAfkEREESFARMABEE  EELE
WMEMRERS  EWRE 2 ABEESR
¥ OREBEEH 20220 E 0 ARREHIEA
MRS - BIEIHREBHE - BRtEE -
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
BE HERERRE (E)

INDEX TO THE ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND EARABAXFACESGHRERECIDAR
GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE OF HONG #o|
KONG STOCK EXCHANGE

AREA SECTION/REMARKS
i) BB
A ENVIRONMENTAL
ARE
ASPECT A1 General Disclosure ENVIRONMENTAL
EMISSIONS Information on: RESPONSIBILITIES
EBE A1 (a) the policies; and REEM
BB (b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant

impact on the issuer
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and
land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

—RIEE

ARERIREREBHER MARLHAEES AEREEEEY

MELSN

(@) BE: &

(b) BFTHETABEAZENEBERELAD

HEH -
KPIA1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data. Waste Discharge Management
BRENIEE AL BEa AR AR R B M BUR - BEEMHMER
KPI'A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas emissions (in - Waste Discharge Management
BRETIEE A2 tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production BENHNER

volume, per facility).
B (BE) ke RMEE (BE2) RERBHENE CAEE)
R (ER) BE (WA BESEM -  BEREFE)

KPI'A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, Waste Discharge Management
BRETEE A3 intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility). BEENHNER

FESrAEFEENESE AEHE) R (ER) BE
(MAEESEM - BERETE) -

KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, ~ Waste Discharge Management
HREBER A4 intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility). BEENFERER
FESREEEYEE AMHE) R (WER)
EE(MNEEEEN §RRETE) -

KPI' A1.5 Description of emissions target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them. Waste Discharge Management
HRERIEEREALS WA VSR EEGERAEINELERMERNLE BEMHFRER
KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, and  Waste Discharge Management
R BEVIEE A1.6 a description of reduction target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them. BEEYHENE R

HWlREREREZEREYN L  RERRIILNRERRR
RENELBERERANTRE -

BARRERERA o T _FFW
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
RE -HERERBRE (F)

AREA SECTION/REMARKS
Ll BB

ASPECT A2 General Disclosure Use of Resources

USE OF RESOURCES Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and other &R {#

EHEA2 raw materials.

ERER — R E

BERERER(BEER  KREMEME) QEE -
KPI' A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. electricity, gas or ~ Use of Resources

BRENIEIE A2.1

oil) in total (kWh in '000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume,
per facility).
RERE 5 ) BEE

o

PRERR/EEER(INE /X
(ATETREAE) REE (MASESEN  BERMHE) -

BREM

KPI A2.2
BRERIER A22

Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).

BRKERRE(MABES SN BBERETE)

Use of Resources

BRER

KPI A2.3
BREMIER A23

Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve
them.

BRI LR RERME AR AENELERRERNSR -

Use of Resources

BREM

KPI A2.4
BRENIEIE A2.4

Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for
purpose, water efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.

fE i SREE R ACOR ERI B ERRE - A KRPIETLE

KGR RRAEINELERMRBMOTE -

Use of Resources

BREM

KPI A2.5
B EBIBIZE A2.5

Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes) and, if
applicable, with reference to per unit produced.

URBAAEREMBNEE (UHEE) L (NER) &

o

EEEMG

]

Use of Resources

BR A

ASPECT A3
THE ENVIRONMENT
AND NATURAL

General Disclosure
Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impacts on the environment
and natural resources.

Green and Innovative Products

e RkelHmER

RESOURCES —REE

B EA3 BEBTAHRERAAERERNEAYENEE -

RERRARER

KPI' A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment and ~ Green and Innovative Products

R EMIEIE A3

natural resources and the actions taken to manage them.
HWREBERHRERRRERNEATER
ERREERBTENTY -

e RAIFER
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

RIE -HERERAES (F)
AREA SECTION/REMARKS
BE i Fi
ASPECT A4 General Disclosure Waste Discharge Management
CLIMATE CHANGE Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-related issues £ Z #)HE s 12
EBHA4 which have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer.
RIEE21 —RRE
B REHERRAREEHETAEEYEN
BERARIGEBEFEAOBR -
KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues which have impacted, ~ Waste Discharge Management

R ENIEIE A4

and those which may impact, the issuer, and the actions taken to manage ~ EEZE ¥ HE M E 2
them.

HREE AR EHETAEEYENEARGERAZE -

REEHTTE -

B Social
BHE

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES

EBREREIER
ASPECT B1 General Disclosure PEOPLE MANAGEMENT
EMPLOYMENT Information on: ABEHE
JETEB1 (a) the policies; and
ERE (b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer
relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working
hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and
other benefits and welfare.
—RIKE
FRFMLEE BEREM TERY RY TEKe-
ESI A &ﬁﬁ%&ﬁmxﬁﬁﬁﬂwi
(@ B®: R
(b) BFHETAREAZENBBEZ LA
MY EH o
KPIB1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type (for example, full- or part- Employees’ Benefits and Rights

BB AR BT

time), age group and geographical region. BTREMKER

RIER - BREY (WERAFR)  FRANRMRIANOESAY -

KPI B1.2
RENIEEZ B1.2

Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region.

BRI FhRANRMRIDOEERRLE o

Employees’ Benefits and Rights
BIRH LS

BARRERERA o T _FFW
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
RE -HERERBRE (F)

AREA SECTION/REMARKS
il 1 Fid
ASPECT B2 General Disclosure Occupational Health and Safety
HEALTH AND SAFETY  Information on: BERpELs
B HB2 (a) the policies; and
REEZ2 (b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant

impact on the issuer
relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting employees
from occupational hazards.

—RRE
AARMZ2TIERERREREEREBELEEN
(@) BE: &
(b) BFHETABERZENEBERRLAD
MEH -
KPI'B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of the past The Company had no work-
R E BB B2.1 three years including the reporting year. related fatalities over the past
BE=F (ORERFE)BFAITHMAZ R E - three years, including the
current financial year.
ERE=FN(8HE
AEMBEE) - KARAEIRE
BAERETIEREMET
H)EH o
KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. Occupational Health and Safety
RIS AR IR 1R B2.2 RIGEATERE BERREZD
KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, and how  Occupational Health and Safety
MR EIIEIE B23 they are implemented and monitored. BERRELE
R AR R ER R R 2 URABRTREER L -
ASPECT B3 General Disclosure Employee Training and
DEVELOPMENT AND Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging Development
TRAINING duties at work. Description of training activities. BTHIHEER
[ETEB3 — R E
B R SR ARRMEESRITIERAMNME R KA NEE - HIFINED -
KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee category Employee Training and
HREMIER B3 (e.g. senior management, middle management). Development
BRURIREEEN (NSRERE $RERES) BIHIEER
ANHRIEEEALL -
KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender and Employee Training and
BRETIEIE B3.2 employee category. Development
RUBIREEENE S  BRERTAXINTHEEL - B TR ER
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
RE HERERRSE (F)

AREA SECTION/REMARKS
g BB
ASPECT B4 General Disclosure Avoidance of Child and Forced
LABOUR STANDARDS  Information on: Labour
EEB4 (a) the policies; and HOFREIRBELD
BITER (b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer
relating to preventing child and forced labour.
—REE
AAMLETIHRASTREBTAREAZEN
(@) BE: &
(b) BFHETABEAZENEBERE AN
HEHE -
KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child and  Avoidance of Child and Forced

BRERUETR B4

forced labour.
W B BEENNEEAEEETREHET -

Labour
HEFRETIRBES

KPI B4.2
RS AMUIETR B4.2

Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered.

HREZRERBEARBREABERARROLR -

Avoidance of Child and Forced
Labour

BEFREIRBAS

OPERATING PRACTICES

LEERD

ASPECT B5 General Disclosure OPERATING PRACTICES
SUPPLY CHAIN Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain. HEED
MANAGEMENT — BRI

B EB5 EREREENRERCERARNKE -

HERER

KPI'B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. Procurement Practices and

BB A MUE1R B5.1

wiE s D MHEREA -

Supplier Management

REEMLHEREE

KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of suppliers  Procurement Practices and

MR EMIEIE B5.2 where the practices are being implemented, and how they are implemented Supplier Management
and monitored. REEHRMHEERER
WA ERERHEENEDN MENTEBENNHERHE - AR
AREPORTRERTE -

KPIB5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental and social risks along Procurement Practices and

FR A RIS B5.3

the supply chain, and how they are implemented and monitored.
HLABAZEEREGERGNRERLERBROED - AR
HERTRERE -

Supplier Management

RBEMRHEREE

RATRRZERERAR o

R FFR
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
RE -HERERBRE (F)

BB MIEIE B5.4

products and services when selecting suppliers, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

AREA SECTION/REMARKS
i) 1 Fid
KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally preferable Procurement Practices and

Supplier Management

REEARKERER

HREREHEARRESARRER LRENEN  AREERTRE
BIE o
ASPECT B6 General Disclosure PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY
PRODUCT Information on: OPERATING PRACTICES
RESPONSIBILITY (a) the policies; and EmALT
[ EB6 (b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant & B 187l
ERER impact on the issuer
relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters
relating to products and services provided and methods of redress.
—RIKE
FREMREENMRENERELZ S  BE BEX
MEEEURBRAEREBETAREATEN
( ) BE R
(b) BFHETABERZENBBERERAD
HEH -
KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety and Product Quality and Safety and

R ENIEIE B6.1

health reasons.
BESBERER i@ﬁwﬁéﬁﬁiﬁ%%
BhmALKSE S

Recall Mechanism
EREELE KBRS

KPI B6.2
BRSHAIETR B6.2

Number of products and service related complaints received and how they
are dealt with.

BREBRERMRBORFHRE REHT L -

Customer Service and Rights
Protection
BFRBLERRE

KPI B6.3
W45 WIBIE B6.3

Description of practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual
property rights.
it EgERREANBEREBNED -

Protection of Intellectual
Property
REMNHER

KPI B6.4
R E ISR B .4

Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures.

HlEERTREREREUIER -

Product Quality and Safety and
Recall Mechanism

ERBERE2RAEKS

KPI B6.5
BREMIER B6.5

Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, and how they
are implemented and monitored.

HIRBEERRELALBEE  UREBERIREEE -

Customer Service and Rights
Protection

RP RS RERRE
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

RIE -HERERBRE (F)
AREA SECTION/REMARKS
BE ) F
ASPECT B7 General Disclosure Integrity and Sound Governance
ANTI-CORRUPTION Information on: EBREAR
BHEB7 (a) the policies; and
R&E (b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.
—REE
AR LBE PR BFEREBEER
HETABEAZEMN
(@ BE: &
(b) BFHETABERZENEBERRLAD
HOEFY o
KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought Integrity and Sound Governance

R ENIEIE BT

against the issuer or its employees during the reporting period and the

outcomes of the cases.

RERAREETAREEERHYCDELENES

R o

EEAE 0L QDS EEA

1 J%s:l/l:l

KPI B7.2
BRENIER B2

Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures, and
how they are implemented and monitored.

HiahBEHLERRER  URABRTRERTE -

Integrity and Sound Governance

1 ERVAN
B = /A

KPI B7.3
BRENIEIE BT.3

Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and staff.

HAAESRE TREMNRESET -

Integrity and Sound Governance

1 J%CI/D

COMMUNITY ASPECT # &
B8 COMMUNITY General Disclosure COMMUNITY INVESTMENT
INVESTMENT Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the tEREE
[EEB8 communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take into
HERE consideration the communities' interests.
—RRE
ARNMHBE2ERTHRETALEMELEZEM
BREXBEZHEZRMBAFNBE -
KPI BS.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental concerns, labour COMMUNITY INVESTMENT
R ENIEIS BS.1 needs, health, culture, sport). HERE
EIARER (0HE RREE SIFK BE-
Xit - 8E8) -

KPI B8.2
BASHAIETR BS.2

Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area.

EEIHEMPAER (WMERAKR) -

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT
HRRE

RATRRZERERAR o

R FFR
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
% 3L 2 BT 3R &

e

Ernst & Young TXKEFEIEEFR Tel E3E: +852 2846 9888
27/F, One Taikoo Place & BHIAFREBEI799% Fax BHE: +852 2868 4432
§* 979 King’s Road Rbth— 271 ey.com

Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

To the shareholders of Neo-Neon Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Neo-Neon
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
set out on pages 106 to 255, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit
addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of
our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address
the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)
BYRAMBRSE (&)

FARETEE
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)
BYRAMBRSE (&)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (cContinued)

Key audit matter

BREETER

FERETEEm@W

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMNEFNAHBERRT T HETEE

Impairment allowance of trade and bills receivables, loan receivable and other receivables

FEWE GRS RN FIE - B E R A i fE K 568 A9 A

As at 31 December 2022, trade and bills receivables
amounted to RMB128.8 million, loan receivable amounted
to RMB142.3 million and other receivables amounted to
RMB3.8 million, representing 15.9% of total assets.

RZEBE_—F+-_A=+—"H8 EBUREFRZILREKVKER
RARB1288BET BRIRERRARKI1423BE TH
Hi W RIBERARKISEE L (FEELER15.9% °

Significant management judgement and estimation are
required in assessing the expected credit losses (“ECL") for
the trade and bills receivables, loan receivable and other
receivables. In developing the ECL methodology, the Group
is required to consider reasonable and supportable
information including ageing of the balance, existence of
disputes, fair value of collateral, recent historical payment
patterns and applicable published ratings in order to
determine an unbiased estimate. Significant judgement is
also required to adjust the loss rate for forecast economic
conditions.

A EIE B R SR R E W R - S R E A FE YR IA
WEPHEEER ((EHEEFRD FEEBERLERX
HE R hE - HIETRBEEBEN AR BE£EAZE
RERER REETFCAS ERLOAAEE IO
BAENRKREXARBANDEHIRSECEREGERER
NEE R - AEBEXRITARBALEERIEL
BARHE -

The significant accounting judgements and estimates and
disclosure of the balances of trade and bills receivables,
other receivables and loan receivable are included in notes
3, 20, 21 and 22 to the consolidated financial statements.
EHARBEWESEAREREE  EMERFBRERER
EHMEASTHE RGETUREZRSERNGE T BHRE
BMEEE3 ~ MH5E20 ~ MHEE21 KRB EE22 o
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In evaluating management’s estimation of impairment
allowance, our procedures included:

B EEBRERERINEFEHE

e Tested on a sample basis the accuracy of the
ageing information of the Group’s trade and bills
receivables balances and obtained confirmations
for selected trade and bills receivables, loan
receivable and other receivables on a sample basis;

o HfHEAN BEXEERUKESIERERIREKREE
HEHRNERER TR HEERERE 5K
KR EWEE - & WS TR H e U R I8 B S FE
K s

e Obtained an understanding of the controls over
the approval, recording and monitoring of the
trade and bills receivables and loan receivable and
assessed such controls;

o EMHEWREZEFIERREWERREKEREL
OB R BRI RIS IER T B - WRT AR F IR
I

e Engaged our internal valuation expert to review
management’s ECL calculation model and test the
underlying information including ageing
information generated by the Group’s financial
reporting system, probability of default and loss
given default as well as the forward-looking
factors with reference to the related publicly
available information;

s ZREBMOANEEEREHNERENAHEE
FERABERYAS SEENBREEREL
WERIRER BERBXREBENBEREARS2EN
BARAEERNAIREREZSZRBER

e Evaluated on the sample basis the reasonableness
of loss rate assigned to individual debtors given
the information available to the Group over the
credibility of these debtors such as their repayment
history; and

o RN BEEETVESAUZSFERANGELEX
ZER (PIMERLE)  MEREDKTEED
ARNBBRXNEENL &

e Assessed the adequacy of disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements.

o HAGRAMBHBRNEBEREZI RN -



KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter
BERETSE

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)
BYRAMBRSE (&)

FAREFTEE @)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMWEFNAEERETSRETRE

Goodwill impairment assessment on cash-generating units (“CGUs")

BEeELEN([RLELEN ) HWEERETE

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had goodwill at a
carrying amount of RMB88.6 million. Management of the
Group determines the recoverable amounts of each of the
CGUs to which the goodwill is allocated with the
assistance of an independent external valuer.

RZZEZZF+ZA=+—H  E5ENHEREER
ARH836EE L BEEEEEEABIINBMEERMD
B TEERERIEENSREELEVNAI B SR -

The impairment assessment of goodwill is significant to
our audit due to (i) the significance of the carrying amount
as at 31 December 2022; and (ii) the determination of the
recoverable amounts of each CGUs to which the goodwill
is allocated requires significant management’s judgements
and estimates.
BENBEMFEHRMANEAMNSIHETER  REWT
WRZZBEZZF+_A=+—HOEREENEZE  K&ii)
ErBEH o EENRAeEAEUNAOKERTE
B8 B L EARHE K fkET -

The significant accounting judgements and estimates and
the disclosure of the balance of goodwill are included in
notes 3 and 17 to the consolidated financial statements.
BB ERNERGHE MAEFURBEEHNGES
BTSRRI T3 R EE17 ©

In evaluating management’s impairment assessment
of goodwill, our procedures included:

B EEEmEREMNENEFEE

e Engaged our internal valuation expert to evaluate
the appropriateness of the methodologies adopted
by management and the discount rates applied;

s ZAHBMOANEEZERIHEERBRA 2T A
MITREHREN

e Evaluated the external valuer’s objectivity,
competence and independence;

o FHEIMEBMEMBZTEM  BERE I MBI

e Reviewed the key assumptions based on our
knowledge of the Group’s business and industry
trend and by benchmarking against independent
data;

e REHMYE EXKEXEBRITEBENTHRIE
38 BB T BUR L BUA R B R R R

e Tested a selection of data inputs underpinning the
cash flow forecasts against appropriate supporting
evidence, such as historical or market available
information, to assess their accuracy and reliability;
and

o LEEZERE(WMELIMGAAER) AHZ#EIR
mE TR PTER 28 ABIE - AT ERE R
ATEMN &

e Assessed the adequacy of disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements.

o HEFEMBHRMRNEBREZAIIE -

BAARRIEREBRRAG o —_T-_FFf
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)
BYRAMBRSE (&)

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE
ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of
the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liqguidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in

discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)
BYRAMBRSE (&)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)
BYRAMBRSE (&)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Ms. Leung Yin.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

24 March 2023
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

N2

A4S 3L
:%/T\I:I 8 fm

Year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —"F+_A=+—HILFE

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
ok ARET T ARBEF T
CONTINUING OPERATIONS FEREEK
REVENUE A 5 927,506 863,857
Cost of sales $HE KA (579,858) (628,453)
Gross profit E X 347,648 235,404
Other income, gains and losses, net  EfbUg A - Y25 & 518 5%
8 5 60,487 20,795
Reversal of provision/(provision) of  J&l, {& & [ # &,
impairment, net (BB F58 6 2,371 (23,965)
Selling and distribution expenses HEMRDHERAY (202,883) (161,523)
Administrative expenses THBAX (103,614) (101,680)
Finance costs B RS AR X 7 (3,346) (3,903)
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX FROM SIS E TSR BR T AT
CONTINUING OPERATIONS mFL(EE) 6 100,663 (34,872)
Income tax expense Frig®i = i 10 (14,882) (15,579)
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR BERSEEBNER
FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS %%l (&iE) 85,781 (50,451)
DISCONTINUED OPERATION BRIEEEEK
Loss for the year from BRI
a discontinued operation B A B 18 11 (35,899) (220,779)
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR ERBEAN(EE) 49,882 (271,230)
Attributable to: AT ALY
Owners of the parent ISI/NEIE ¥ =N 48,771 (272,178)
Non-controlling interests FEPE IR A 1,111 948
49,882 (271,230)
EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE BAREBERER
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY BB AEWN
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE SEREFN,(EFE)
PARENT 13
Basic and diluted EAN#E
— For profit/(loss) for the year —FEREF(EE) RMB2.33 cents RMB(12.99) cents
AR#2339  AR®(12.99)%
— For profit/(loss) from —RERERK RMB4.04 cents  RMB(2.45) cents
continuing operations wm A, (E18) AR¥4.04% AR ¥(2.45)5%
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COI\/IPREHENSIVE INCOI\/IE
el L O

Year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+-_A=+—HIFE

2022 2021
—E-= T —%F
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR¥E TR ARBTT
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR FRBEF,(BB) 49,882 (271,230)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/ Hf2EUW A (&8) :
(LOSS):
Other comprehensive (loss)/income R BRI ER EE
that may be reclassified to profit or BEMEMEE (BEB),RA -
loss in subsequent periods:
Exchange differences: ME N EEE
Exchange differences on translation ~ BREBRINEBEL 2 EH =5
of foreign operations (70,190) 26,443
Deregistration of subsidiaries BUHE B A A 779 -
Net other comprehensive (loss)/income 1% 4 AR AT RE E#T 5
that may be reclassified to profit or BaaHEMEE
loss in subsequent periods (B8] WA F5E (69,411) 26,443
Exchange differences: ME N R
Exchange differences on translation ~ RNARMEEE ZE K E5E
of the Company 125,165 (39,994)
Net other comprehensive income/(loss) REEHE T2 EF L EEEE
that will not be reclassified to profit ~ M EMEEU A (EE) FE
or loss in subsequent periods 125,165 (39,994)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/ FEHMZ2EKA (FHR) -
(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX lIBRFH 1B 55,754 (13,551)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/ FEZEWA (FE) A%
(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR 105,636 (284,781)
Attributable to: AT AT FELL
Owners of the parent ISTNEIEZF PN 103,123 (285,620)
Non-controlling interests FEVE IR HE & 2,513 839
105,636 (284,781)
RARERERERA T _FER
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

wa BB R R

31 December 2022 —_E - ~—F+=-H=+—H

2022 2021
—E-= T —%F
Notes RMB’'000 RMB’'000
e AR T T ARET T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BREREE 14 33,924 37,815
Investment properties wEWE 15 73,509 67,470
Right-of-use assets FREEE 16(a) 58,015 55,473
Goodwill Bk 17 88,567 81,079
Other intangible assets HEMhmpEE 18 22,249 17,366
Other assets Hib&E 21 - 1,578
Financial assets at fair value through #Z R A BEFFAEBZED
profit or loss ERMEE 23 132,024 134,648
Deferred tax assets EERIBEE E 29 22,345 14,027
Total non-current assets EREBEELE 430,633 409,456
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories FE 19 176,172 163,828
Trade and bills receivables FEWE 55018 R B E
S 20 128,818 141,546
Loan receivable B E 3k 22 142,270 130,218
Prepayments, other receivables TRATRR - EAth FE YRR
and other assets LEMEE 21 49,691 84,188
Financial assets at fair value through &2 AR EBET AERN
profit or loss TREE 23 17,997 16,433
Cash held on behalf of clients REFEAENE 24 - 9,175
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEY 24 783,264 698,422
Total current assets REEERE 1,298,212 1,243,810
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBAE
Trade payables ERE S ERK 25 59,189 92,783
Other payables and accruals H fth FE T I FE ST FRIE 26 108,092 72,896
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FERITER 27 - 36,660
Lease liabilities HEAE 16(b) 10,009 11,887
Tax payable JE T B I8 13,745 13,850
Provision B 28 5,792 5,722
Total current liabilities nEBEES 196,827 233,798
NET CURRENT ASSETS MEEEFE 1,101,385 1,010,012
TOTAL ASSETS LESS EERERRBAER
CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,532,018 1,419,468
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)
REMBRRRE (E)
31 December 2022 — - —®+_-A=+—H

2022 2021
—E-= T —%F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
k=3 AR T ARET T
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREBEME
Lease liabilities HEaE 16(b) 39,736 34,256
Deferred tax liabilities BERIBEE 29 10,150 8,716
Total non-current liabilities EmEEaERRE 49,886 42,972
Net assets BEFHE 1,482,132 1,376,496
EQUITY X
Equity attributable to owners of the ~ AR R A A EIGHERS
parent
Issued capital BT A 30 185,672 185,672
Reserves & 32 1,287,749 1,184,626
1,473,421 1,370,298
Non-controlling interests FEFE R = 8,711 6,198
Total equity i E 1,482,132 1,376,496
Gao Zhi Liang Wuquan
=35 REZ
Director Director
EZE EZE

RARRERERLAF o —ZE-__FF% 109



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
Year ended 31 December 2022 HHE T __4+_A=+—HBIEFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

SRAREARE

Fair value
reserve of
financial
assets at
fair value
through
Capital Share Share Exchange other Asset Non-
Share Share  redemption Special  compensation option  fluctuation  comprehensive  revaluation Other  Accumulated controlling Total
capital premium reserve eserve Teserve reserve reserve income reserve Teserve losses Total interests equity
BOABEA
EREEUAY
s o SHEEY EEER FER
i RitEE itk HHRE  BORREE  BRERE EXRBRE  QARERR L] RbEE BitkE it B Bu4E
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000
ARBTR  ARMTR  ARBTR  ARETR  ARBTR  ARMTR  ARMTR ARBTR  ARMTR  ARBTR  ARETR  ARBTR  ARMTR  ARBTR
(note 30) (note 32) (note 32) (note 32) (note 32) (note 31) (note 32) (note 32) (note 32) (note 32)
(K&t30) (Kit3) (i3n) (i) (3 (K1) (Kit3) (Kit3) (i) (32

At 1 January 2022 HoioE-f-B 185,672 2415132 2146 55,238 50,024 2250 (305,119) (419) 31235 (9,100) (1,056,761) 1370298 6,198 1,376,496
Profit for the year Emiil - - - - - - - - - - ®m ®m 1,111 1988
Other comprehensive EngiaEn)/(E8):
incomeloss) for the year:
Eichange difeences on BERNRELL
ranslaton offoreign operations Ef8 - - - - - - (10813) - - - - (10813) 63 (70,190)
Bichange difeences on EOEEE PR
trandlaton of the Company - - - - - - 125,165 - - - - 125,165 - 125,165
Deregistation o subsidaries AIRRENT - - - - - - - - - - - - m m

Total comprehensieincome~~ EAREAAEE

forthe year - - - - - - 54,352 - - - ®m 10313 258 105,636
Deregistration of subsidaris VA ERMEAT - - - - - - - 49 - - (419) - - -
At 31 December 2012 i ik g e 185,672 2415132 1,146* 55,238 50,024¢ 2,250% (250,767)* - 31,35 (9,00 (1,008,409 1413421 81 148,132
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (CONTINUED)
BE % ()

=)
i

AR

-

= N/

Az
Year ended 31 December 2022 E T - —F+-_A=+—HIFE
Attributable to owners of the parent
SNTREARE
Fair value
resenve of
financia
assets at
fair value
through
Capital Share Share Eichange ofher Asset Non-
Share Treasury Share ~ redemption Special  compensation opfion fluctuation ~ comprehensive  revaluation Other ~ Accumulated controling Total
apital shares premium resene Tesene fesene resene fesene income Tesene fesere losses Total interests equiy
FOABEA
Gk
SRERY
Bt ERRA BhEE  RRERE EARE  RhEREE BREGE  EYRERE  DAEERE  pREMEE EE b i faii i Lt
RNB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RNB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RVB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RNB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RVB'000 RMB'000
ARBTL  ARETR  ABMTR  ARETR  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARRTRL  ARMTR  ARETR ABMTR  ARETR ARMTR  ARMTR  ARRTR  ARMTR
(note 30) (note 32) (note 32) {note 32) (note 32) (note 31) (note 32) (note 32) (note 32) (note 32)
(Hit30) ) 7 N <) NN /A N (1 N =27 I =) N 7 (<)
At 1 January 2021 RZEZ-F-A-8 185,676 19 2415147 AL 55,038 5004 225 (291,677) 9 31,35 9,100 (784,583 1,655,918 5359 1861217
Profitoss) forthe year /(58 - - - - - - - - - (m1m) (.17 948 30
Other comprehensive income/ ~ ERER2EHA/ (58
(loss for the year:
Exchange differences on BERNEER B2
translation of foreign
operations - - - 26,552 - - 26552 (109) 26483
Exchange differences on BRRREEE RS 2E
translation of the Company - - - (39.994) - - (39,994 (39,994
Totel comprehensive ncomel ~ £R2EN) /| BE)48
(loss for the year - - - (13482 - (m,178) (285,620) 839 (284781)
Cancellation of reasuryshares B R13 (15430)
(note 30) ) 19 (19 - - - - - -
At 31 December 2021 WoR-%+2f=1-A 185,672 - 4513 2,146 55,238 50,024¢ 22504 (305,119)* (M9 31.035¢ (9,000 (1,056,761} 1370298 6,19 1376,4%

*

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of  *
RMB1,287,749,000 (2021: RMB1,184,626,000) in the consolidated

statement of financial position.

ZEMBREE

BEUBRARPNGEEFEE
AR #1,287,749,0007T (—Z & —

1,184,626,0007C) °

R RRZEERERA R

==&

—F: ARH

FER
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CONSOUDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
n‘/-.r\ = EE/ % /)1 E %‘:Z

Year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - F+-_A=+—HILFE
2022 2021
—E-= —TZ—F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
iokz3 AR®T T ARBTT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING K& ZEFfESHELSKE
ACTIVITIES
Profit/(loss) before tax: BB ADER,(EE)
From continuing operations REBEEEER 100,663 (34,872)
From a discontinued operation RE DRI EER 11 (36,056) (222,014)
Adjustments for: MATIHBELFE
Finance costs B 15 A AR 3,476 4,198
Bank interest income IRITH B UA (17,775) (2,333)
Other interest income H A F B WA (2) (3)
Interest income recognised for MW E EEHERE
money lending business MR A - (6,103)
Depreciation of property, plant ME - BEREZEITE
and equipment 6 10,452 17,409
Depreciation of right-of-use assets {FAREEENE 6 13,048 14,667
Amortisation of other intangible b A B 5
assets 6 2,768 3,612
Amortisation of deferred i TE B R X 2N 4 5
development costs 6 2,741 6,452
Amortisation of government grants — BUAT i B §5 - (383)
Changes in fair value of REMELIALBEE
investment properties 5 (1,546) 6,023
Change in fair value of contingent ~ EfT s ANREBERALEE
consideration payable b=y 5 - (429)
Fair value losses/(gains) of EARBEFABREN
financial assets at fair value TREECANEE
through profit or loss EiE (W) 2,583 (5,529)
Dividend income from financial EARBEFABREN
assets at fair value through profit TREEREKA
or loss (2,775) (257)
Losses/(gains) on disposal of items — H&EWE - ME & EE
of property, plant and equipment  THHB Z E1E, (W) 44 (233)
Loss on disposal of an item of HEFAEEEIEE
right-of-use asset 2 B8 - 982
Write-down of inventories to net GFEMRZTEIRFE
realisable value 6 22,798 49,649
Impairment losses on financial SRAECREEE
assets 6 11,780 91,902
Impairment loss on goodwill B REEE 6 - 103,021
Impairment loss on intangible assets #E /2 & & 2 5B &5 18 6 - 7,989
Write-off of other intangible assets  #ifl & E b E 2 & & 6 - 342
Operating profit before working BEESEEHATH
capital changes %&ﬁ il 112,199 34,090

Neo-Neon Holdings Limited e Annual Report 2022



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

Year ended 31 December 2022 HEZ T - —F+_A=+—HILtFE

HERERER (&)

2022 2021
—s=-= T —F
Note RMB’'000 RMB'000
iokia ARET T ARET T
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING R ZHFERLSRE (F)
ACTIVITIES (Continued)
Increase in inventories FEHEM (20,960) (53,307)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and B E 5 5RIE & EREE
bills receivables A (# ) 24,070 (16,377)
Decrease in loan receivable e E FOm > - 4,193
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, FEF 3 « H {th fig Uy 3008 &7
other receivables and other assets ~ E M &EER L, (L) 21,539 (7,523)
Decrease/(increase) in cash heldon REFPEHENR SR L
behalf of clients () 9,175 (6,529)
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables JEE 5 8RFIE I, CR4) (38,996) 11,525
Increase/(decrease) in other payables H th F& 1< Kz JE 5+ F A hn,~
and accruals CRA) 27,961 (5,195)
Decrease in provision B (289) (440)
Cash generated from/(used in) e/ (A RE
operations 134,699 (39,563)
Interest paid EAH S (1,569) (1,472)
Hong Kong profits tax paid EREENER (65) (881)
Overseas taxes paid B8N I8 (16,755) (24,279)
Net cash flows from/(used in) wEEEETE,(FTA)
operating activities REmEFH 116,310 (66,195)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REZBHFEBSRESRE
ACTIVITIES
Bank interest received 2 UERTTH A 17,775 2,333
Other interest received B UH b F B 2 3
Purchase of items of property, plant EEWE% - BE &
and equipment REIER (5,841) (8,366)
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEWE - BE K&
property, plant and equipment RBIEEB TSR 267 1,116
Additions to other intangible assets RE EMEFEE (4,233) (5,557)
Proceeds from disposal of financial H&E#Z AR EE AEZR
assets at fair value through H) & B & EFT 1S 3R
profit or loss - 31,205
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries + 4 & 1 & i B 2 7 15
in prior year IR - 275,073
Settlement of amounts due from EEBBELENBAR
related companies in relation to FE UK BEESE R B ERIB
the disposal of subsidiaries - 401,056
Dividend received from financial BUIE AR EBEF ABR
assets at fair value through profit or K& B & Z A I8
loss 2,775 257
Payment on contingent consideration J&fs 8k 93 1 (& B9 15 3¢
payable 33 - (13,540)
Increase in non-pledged time BRSR | EIREBB = A
deposits with maturity of more than #)3E K 48 & HA 17 20 1€ 0
three months were acquired (76,704) -
Net cash flows from/(used in) REFEFE (A
investing activities HEeEREFHE (65,959) 683,580
BAARRIEREBRRAG o —_T-_FFf

if k-
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
Poias

W

SHETRER (4

Year ended 31 December 2022 HilE —Z — —

22— s

FH+-A=+—RLLFE

2022 2021
FE== —E - —F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
iokz3 AR®T T ARET T
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING METHMERERE
ACTIVITIES
New bank loans FIGIRITE RN 106,723 64,503
Repayment of bank loans EBEERITERK (145,077) (118,448)
Principal portion of lease payments T & FAE 25 34(c) (11,989) (12,538)
Interest paid EH B (1,907) (2,726)
Repayment of a loan from EBEHKIERATER
the ultimate holding company - (254,619)
Net cash flows used in financing By &R ENFT A
activities REemEFRA (52,250) (323,828)
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN ﬁ%&iﬂ%%fﬁ%
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS W) i EE (1,899) 293,557
Cash and cash equivalents at E’\‘E%ﬂﬁ'ﬁﬁﬁ)}
beginning of year ReEED 698,422 408,485
Effect of foreign exchange rate HNESTE R BB R BT E
changes, net 10,037 (3,620)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RERHNBEER
AT END OF YEAR REZEEY 24 706,560 698,422
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH BRe& R RS S EYE &
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS kit
Cash and bank balances fﬁi K ARTT K 84 24 581,239 321,632
Non-pledged time deposits with SRIHBALHR=MEA
original maturity of less than three E’J?Fﬁﬁﬁm,ﬁﬂﬁw
months when acquired 125,321 376,790
Cash and cash equivalents as stated IR&REXRFIMIIA S LI
in the statement of cash flows EEEY 706,560 698,422
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Neo-Neon Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company with limited
liability. The registered office address of the Company is Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands, and the Company’s head office and
principal place of business is located at Unit 2101, 21/F.,
Golden Centre, 188 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) were engaged in the following
principal activities:

° manufacture and trading of lighting products
o provision of lighting solutions

° provision of asset management services*

° provision of investment advisory services*

° provision of securities trading services*

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the holding
company and the ultimate holding company of the Company is
Resuccess Investments Limited and B 5D AR QA
("Tsinghua Tongfang Co., Limited”), which are incorporated in
the British Virigin Islands and the People’s Republic of China
("the PRC"), respectively.

* These activities were suspended and collectively classified as a
discontinued operation during the year ended 31 December 2021.
Further details of the discontinued operation are included in note 11
of this annual report.

RATRRZERERAR o

e IR R

31 December 2022 —E - —F+=-HA=+—H
1.

TXREEESR

RARRERERAR (RAF] R
HEeEBHETMAKLAERREERA
A) o AN N A 7 A 3¥ S5 R b i A Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681,
Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands * "R R E R £ B & E B
MR EBEBEHET188R S EF L211E
2101 % ©

FA-ARBREKE QR (FEIAK
SEDREEUATEZES:

BEERRENES
o  RHERABRLER

s RHBETHERS:
s RHKREBERWRS
s RHUBEFRZRH*

KRAREERE ARAZERRAER
BRI A B] BResuccess Investments
Limited & & 75 B 17 B BR 22 & + 7% M &
RAIDHRNEBELBESRPEAR
HFE ([ ])FMAL -

 HEEDEABRE-T-—%+-A
S+ ALFREAEEEER— D
A—EERLEEES - EMERILE
B2 — B MR A ERK 11X
B -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REMBHERRME (F)

31 December 2022 — - —F+_-A=+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

1. tEREEER @

FEMBARNER
ARREEMBARAFBELT :

follows:
Percentage of equity
attributable to the Company
AAREERRR
Place of
incorporation/ Issued ordinary/
registration registered
Name and business share capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
ERBL/ BRAEE/
8 BRREBLY AR E& B TEED
Guangdong Tongfang Science the PRC US$300,000,000 - 100%  Manufacture and sale of
Park Company Limited lighting products
(“Tongfang Science Park")*
ERAAMERAR A H 300,000,000% 7 BAEMHERHEE
(TRAREE])
Guangdong Tongfang lllumination the PRC US$30,000,000 - 100%  Manufacture and sale of
Company Limited* lighting products
BERASEHAERAR" HE 30,000,000% 7 BAERMHERHE
Hong Kong Star Bright Lighting ~ Hong Kong HK$150,000,000 - 100%  Trading of lighting
Limited products
BEERRAGRAA B 150,000,000/ 7T BRAEMES
American Lighting, Inc. United States of US$7,944,505 - 97.7%  Provision of lighting
America (“USA") solution
American Lighting, Inc. EHEERE 7,944,505% 7T HERARALE
([&E])
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUE )

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

follows: (Continued)

REMBEBRME (F)
31 December 2022 — - —®+_-A=+—H

1. tEREEER @

BHEKEBRATINER @
AAREEMBARGBOT « (&)

Percentage of equity
attributable to the Company

ARAEERER N
Place of
incorporation/ Issued ordinary/
registration registered
Name and business share capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
FRAL/ BRTEE/
£ BORERBY TfRA E# Mg TEED
Tivoli, LLC USA US$4,500,000 - 97.7%  Provision of lighting
solution
Tivoli, LLC xH 4,500,000 7T HIERBRATR
Novelty Lights, LLC USA Nil - 97.7%  Trading of lighting products
Novelty Lights, LLC xH £3 EAERES
Neo-Neon (Vietnam) Development  Vietnam US$28,000,000 - 100%  Manufacture and sale of
Company Limited lighting products
Neo-Neon (Vietnam) HiEg 28,000,000 7T RUERZEREE
Development Company
Limited
* Registered as a wholly-foreign-owned enterprise under the law of the * RIEFBEARELAIIEBELE
PRC.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the directors of the Company, principally
affected the results for the year or formed a substantial portion
of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors of the
Company, result in particulars of excessive length.

FRINRARAESRATIEFER
FEEESNBAEEFEEEAD
PHARRMBAR - ARG EER
AREREEMMBAFTFBEEERIX
BRILE °

RATRRZERERRR o —T__FFRH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

=RVAN
A

2.1

BB ERME (F)

31 December 2022 —E - —F+=-H=+—H

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
(which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA"), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, except for investments
properties and financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss which have been measured at fair value. The financial
statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB") and all values
are rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise
indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2022. A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is
achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over the
investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current
ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

Neo-Neon Holdings Limited e Annual Report 2022
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBERRME ()
31 December 2022 —E - ~—F+=-H=+—H

2.1 REEE @)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting
rights results in control. When the Company has, directly or
indirectly, less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of
an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an
investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders
of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(c)  the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and
continue to be consolidated until the date that such control
ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group
and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All
intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control described above. A
change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss
of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

SmEEXEm)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBBRRKE (E)
31 December 2022 —E - —F+=-H=+—H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii)
the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting
surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of
components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or accumulated losses, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for the

first time for the current year’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework

Amendments to HKAS 16

Onerous Contracts - Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract
Amendments to HKFRS 1,

Amendments to HKAS 37

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020
accompanying HKFRS 16,
and HKAS 41

Neo-Neon Holdings Limited e Annual Report 2022

Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before Intended Use

HKFRS 9, Illustrative Examples
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

The nature and the impact of the revised HKFRSs that are
applicable to the Group are described below:

(a)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 replace a reference to the
previous Framework for the Preparation and Presentation
of Financial Statements with a reference to the Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting (the “Conceptual
Framework”) issued in June 2018 without significantly
changing its requirements. The amendments also add to
HKFRS 3 an exception to its recognition principle for an
entity to refer to the Conceptual Framework to determine
what constitutes an asset or a liability. The exception
specifies that, for liabilities and contingent liabilities that
would be within the scope of HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21
if they were incurred separately rather than assumed in a
business combination, an entity applying HKFRS 3 should
refer to HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 respectively instead
of the Conceptual Framework. Furthermore, the
amendments clarify that contingent assets do not qualify
for recognition at the acquisition date. The Group has
applied the amendments prospectively to business
combinations that occurred on or after 1 January 2022.
As there were no business combination during the year,
the amendments did not have any impact on the financial
position and performance of the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit an entity from
deducting from the cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment any proceeds from selling items produced
while bringing that asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management. Instead, an entity recognises
the proceeds from selling any such items, and the cost of
those items as determined by HKAS 2 Inventories, in profit
or loss. The Group has applied the amendments
retrospectively to items of property, plant and equipment
made available for use on or after 1 January 2021. Since
there was no sale of items produced prior to the property,
plant and equipment being available for use, the
amendments did not have any impact on the financial
position or performance of the Group.

GEMBRRME (&)

31 December 2022 —E - ~—F+=-H=+—H
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBERERMET (&)
31 December 2022 —E - —F+=-H=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(o]

Amendments to HKAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of
assessing whether a contract is onerous under HKAS 37,
the cost of fulfilling the contract comprises the costs that
relate directly to the contract. Costs that relate directly to
a contract include both the incremental costs of fulfilling
that contract (e.g., direct labour and materials) and an
allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling
that contract (e.g., an allocation of the depreciation
charge for an item of property, plant and equipment used
in fulfilling the contract as well as contract management
and supervision costs). General and administrative costs
do not relate directly to a contract and are excluded
unless they are explicitly chargeable to the counterparty
under the contract. The Group has applied the
amendments prospectively to contracts for which it has
not yet fulfilled all its obligations at 1 January 2022 and
no onerous contracts were identified. Therefore, the
amendments did not have any impact on the financial
position or performance of the Group.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 sets out
amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, lllustrative Examples
accompanying HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41. Details of the
amendment that is applicable to the Group are as follows:

o HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that
an entity includes when assessing whether the terms
of a new or modified financial liability are
substantially different from the terms of the original
financial liability. These fees include only those paid
or received between the borrower and the lender,
including fees paid or received by either the
borrower or lender on the other’s behalf. The Group
has applied the amendment prospectively from 1
January 2022. As there was no modification or
exchange of the Group’s financial liabilities during
the year, the amendment did not have any impact
on the financial position or performance of the
Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in

these financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28 (2011)

Amendments to HKFRS 16

HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKFRS 17

Amendment to HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1 and

HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 12

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback?
Insurance Contracts’

Insurance Contracts’>

Initial Application of HKFRS 17 and
HKFRS 9 — Comparative
Information®

Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current (the “2020
Amendments”)* 4

Non-current Liabilities with Covenants
(the “2022 Amendments”)?

Disclosure of Accounting Policies’

Definition of Accounting Estimates’

Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction’

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024

3 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption

4 As a consequence of the 2022 Amendments, the effective date of the

2020 Amendments was deferred to annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2024. In addition, as a consequence of the 2020
Amendments and 2022 Amendments, Hong Kong Interpretation 5
Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification by the Borrower
of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause was
revised to align the corresponding wording with no change in

conclusion

2 As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17 issued in October
2020, HKFRS 4 was amended to extend the temporary exemption that
permits insurers to apply HKAS 39 rather than HKFRS 9 for annual
periods beginning before 1 January 2023

g An entity that chooses to apply the transition option relating to the
classification overlay set out in this amendment shall apply it on initial

application of HKFRS 17
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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BB ERME (F)

31 December 2022 —E - —F+=-H=+—H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(Continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to
be applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and in
HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution of
assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture.
The amendments require a full recognition of a gain or loss
resulting from a downstream transaction when the sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or
joint venture constitutes a business. For a transaction involving
assets that do not constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting
from the transaction is recognised in the investor’s profit or loss
only to the extent of the unrelated investor’s interest in that
associate or joint venture. The amendments are to be applied
prospectively. The previous mandatory effective date of
amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) was removed by
the HKICPA in January 2016 and a new mandatory effective
date will be determined after the completion of a broader
review of accounting for associates and joint ventures.
However, the amendments are available for adoption now.

Amendments to HKFRS 16 specify the requirements that a
seller-lessee uses in measuring the lease liability arising in a sale
and leaseback transaction to ensure the seller-lessee does not
recognise any amount of the gain or loss that relates to the
right of use it retains. The amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024 and shall be
applied retrospectively to sale and leaseback transactions
entered into after the date of initial application of HKFRS 16
(i.e., 1 January 2019). Earlier application is permitted. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact
on the Group’s financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBERRME ()
31 December 2022 —E - ~—F+=-H=+—H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG 23 EEMERARERNEEY

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current clarify the requirements for classifying liabilities
as current or non-current, in particular the determination over
whether an entity has a right to defer settlement of the
liabilities for at least 12 months after the reporting period.
Classification of a liability is unaffected by the likelihood that
the entity will exercise its right to defer settlement of the
liability. The amendments also clarify the situations that are
considered a settlement of a liability. In 2022, the HKICPA
issued the 2022 Amendments to further clarify that, among
covenants of a liability arising from a loan arrangement, only
those with which an entity must comply on or before the
reporting date affect the classification of that liability as current
or non-current. In addition, the 2022 Amendments require
additional disclosures by an entity that classifies liabilities arising
from loan arrangements as non-current when it has a right to
defer settlement of those liabilities that are subject to the entity
complying with future covenants within 12 months after the
reporting period. The amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024 and shall be
applied retrospectively. Earlier application is permitted. An
entity that applies the 2020 Amendments early is required to
apply simultaneously the 2022 Amendments, and vice versa.
The Group is currently assessing the impact of the amendments
and whether existing loan agreements may require revision.
Based on a preliminary assessment, the amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group'’s financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies
require entities to disclose their material accounting policy
information rather than their significant accounting policies.
Accounting policy information is material if, when considered
together with other information included in an entity’s financial
statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence decisions
that the primary users of general purpose financial statements
make on the basis of those financial statements. Amendments
to HKFRS Practice Statement 2 provide non-mandatory guidance
on how to apply the concept of materiality to accounting policy
disclosures. Amendments to HKAS 1 are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and earlier
application is permitted. Since the guidance provided in the
amendments to HKFRS Practice Statement 2 is non-mandatory,
an effective date for these amendments is not necessary. The
Group is currently revisiting the accounting policy disclosures to
ensure consistency with the amendments.
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 8 clarify the distinction between changes
in accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies.
Accounting estimates are defined as monetary amounts in
financial statements that are subject to measurement
uncertainty. The amendments also clarify how entities use
measurement techniques and inputs to develop accounting
estimates. The amendments are effective for annual reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and apply to
changes in accounting policies and changes in accounting
estimates that occur on or after the start of that period. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendments are not expected to
have any significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 12 narrow the scope of the initial
recognition exception in HKAS 12 so that it no longer applies to
transactions that give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences, such as leases and decommissioning
obligations. Therefore, entities are required to recognise a
deferred tax asset (provided that sufficient taxable profit is
available) and a deferred tax liability for temporary differences
arising from these transactions. The amendments are effective
for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023 and shall be applied to transactions related to leases and
decommissioning obligations at the beginning of the earliest
comparative period presented, with any cumulative effect
recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained
profits or other component of equity as appropriate at that
date. In addition, the amendments shall be applied prospectively
to transactions other than leases and decommissioning
obligations. Earlier application is permitted.

The Group has applied the initial recognition exception and did
not recognise a deferred tax asset and a deferred tax liability
for temporary differences for transactions related to leases.
Upon initial application of these amendments, the Group will
recognise deferred tax for all temporary differences related to
leases at the beginning of the earliest comparative period
presented. During the year, the Group has performed a detailed
assessment on the impact of amendments to HKAS 12. The
Group has estimated that it will recognise a deferred tax asset
of HK$719,274 for deductible temporary differences associated
with lease liabilities and a deferred tax liability of HK$693,434
for taxable temporary differences associated with right-of-use
assets, and recognise the cumulative effect of initially applying
the amendments as an adjustment to retained profits at 1
January 2022.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 ERETHENHE

POLICIES

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business combination, the
Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests
in the acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle
their holders to a proportionate share of net assets in the event
of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components of
non-controlling interests are measured at fair value.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when the
acquired set of activities and assets includes an input and a
substantive process that together significantly contribute to the
ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition
date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in
host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair
value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of
the Group's previously held equity interests in the acquiree over
the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the
sum of this consideration and other items is lower than the fair
value of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after
reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.
The Group performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as
at 31 December. For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the
acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group's
cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that
are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group
are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to
which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less
than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a
subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on the disposal.
Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured based
on the relative value of the operation disposed of and the
portion of the cash-generating unit retained.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBERRME ()
31 December 2022 —E - ~—F+=-H=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 ERETHENEE @)

POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties and financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss at fair value at the end
of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer
the liability takes place either in the principal market for the
asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the
most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The
principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible
by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured
using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a

whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets

for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either directly or

indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value

measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the

end of each reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBERRME ()
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXRETHERNEE @

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, deferred tax assets, financial assets and investment
properties), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An
asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or
cash-generating unit's value in use and its fair value less costs
of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in
which case the recoverable amount is determined for the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. In testing a
cash-generating unit for impairment, a portion of the carrying
amount of a corporate asset (e.g. a headquarters building) is
allocated to an individual cash-generating unit if it can be
allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis or, otherwise, to
the smallest group of cash-generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises in
those expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset
other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of
that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of any
depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an
impairment loss is credited to the statement of profit or loss in
the period in which it arises.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

or

the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person

(i)

(ii)
(iii)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is @ member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services
to the Group or to the parent of the Group.

Neo-Neon Holdings Limited e Annual Report 2022

24 EX

A 75
£ T8

(a)

%

FEHHENEE @

AT BETERESLAEE
B RERE T

BT RTRALTH T A ALRE
BRIUNKEKRE - B

(i)

(ii)
(iii)

HBAKBAENRKARE
il

HBAKBEERTED &

REAEBEHHEBRAFNEE
ERERE

WNEZ B B8 B DA T — IR IR AT
AR SRR T

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(viii)

EREAR —EEMNBEQ
Al A %’AET (Fmm—%
BOBQF] - HBRBNA
EMBARNBERRLE

ZERRAEEARN-E=

HEEERE

—EBAS=FMARA

A R-—ERARE=HH
N\

’_‘_‘ﬂﬁﬂ

ZERARAEBREESRME
ﬂi%zli'%lf'ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ’b-\ﬁ“ﬁ’]
B B M%7 AR B RFE

E I

i

BX bufi(a)EPRAR
Yl g LR -

> 8y
"

TR AT EX(a)()EF IR
T MATEERTFEN
&F%EA T (ZE
RAMEEEREE

WUSM}E‘M}

SmMEIEN
)
%

BE - REBK AR
SEERKERRRAEH
RAEEERARRTEIEE
BABRR -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
SREMBERERMET (B)
31 December 2022 — - —®+_-A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 ERETHENEE @)

POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. When an
item of property, plant and equipment is classified as held for
sale or when it is part of a disposal group classified as held for
sale, it is not depreciated and is accounted for in accordance
with HKFRS 5. The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition
and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the statement of profit or
loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a
replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful
lives and depreciates them accordingly.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBmRERMET (B)
31 December 2022 —E - —F+=-H=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation (Continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off
the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its
residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual
rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings 5%
Leasehold improvements 20% — 25%
Plant and machinery 10%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 15% — 20%
Motor vehicles 20%
Moulds 20%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at
each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the
year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the net
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBERRME ()
31 December 2022 —E - ~—F+=-H=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 ERETHENEE @)

POLICIES (continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including the leasehold property held as a right-of-use asset
which would otherwise meet the definition of an investment
property) held to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation, rather than for use in the production or supply of
goods or services or for administrative purposes; or for sale in
the ordinary course of business. Such properties are measured
initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value,
which reflects market conditions at the end of the reporting
period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in the statement of profit or
loss in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss in the year of the retirement or disposal.

If a property occupied by the Group as an owner-occupied
property becomes an investment property, the Group accounts
for such property in accordance with the policy stated under
“Property, plant and equipment and depreciation” for owned
property and/or accounts for such property in accordance with
the policy stated under “Right-of-use assets” for property held
as a right-of-use asset up to the date of change in use, and any
difference at that date between the carrying amount and the
fair value of the property is dealt with as movement in asset
revaluation reserve if there is a gain, or charged to the
statement of profit or loss if there is a loss. On disposal of the
transferred asset, the relevant portion of the asset revaluation
reserve realised in respect of previous valuation is transferred to
accumulated losses as a movement in reserves.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBmRERMET (B)
31 December 2022 —E - —F+=-H=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwiill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is the fair value at the date of acquisition.
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either
finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are
subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period
and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a
finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Patents

Purchased patents are stated at cost less any impairment losses
and are amortised on the straight-line basis over their estimated

useful lives of 10 years.

Software

Purchased software is stated at cost less any impairment losses
and is amortised on the straight-line basis over the estimated

useful life of 1 to 5 years.

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to the statement of profit or loss

as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate
the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so
that it will be available for use or sale, its intention to complete
and its ability to use or sell the asset, how the asset will
generate future economic benefits, the availability of resources
to complete the project and the ability to measure reliably the
expenditure during the development. Product development
expenditure which does not meet these criteria is expensed

when incurred.

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised using the straight-line
basis over the commercial lives of the underlying products not
exceeding 5 years, commencing from the date when the

products are put into commercial production.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is,
or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to
make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the
right to use the underlying assets.

(a)

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset is
available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at
cost, less any accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement
of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes
the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct
costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received.
Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated
useful lives of the assets as follows:

Leasehold land
Offices and warehouses

49 to 50 years
2 to 7 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by
the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise
of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the
estimated useful life of the asset.

When a right-of-use asset meets the definition of
investment property, it is included in investment
properties. The corresponding right-of-use asset is initially
measured at cost, and subsequently measured at fair
value, in accordance with the Group’s policy for
“investment properties”.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

(=)

BB ERME (F)

POLICIES (continued)

Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

(b) Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date
of the lease at the present value of lease payments to be
made over the lease term. The lease payments include
fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts
expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The
lease payments also include the exercise price of a
purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the
Group and payments of penalties for termination of a
lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising the
option to terminate the lease. The variable lease payments
that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised
as an expense in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in
the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is
increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced
for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in
lease payments (e.g., a change to future lease payments
resulting from a change in an index or rate) or a change in
assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)
(c) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of office and
warehouses (that is those leases that have a lease term of
12 months or less from the commencement date and do
not contain a purchase option).

Lease payments on short-term leases are recognised as
expenses on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception
(or when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as
either an operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are
classified as operating leases. When a contract contains lease
and non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each component on a relative
stand-alone selling price basis. Rental income is accounted for
on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in
revenue in the statement of profit or loss due to its operating
nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same
basis as rental income.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee are
accounted for as finance leases.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost and fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL").

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for managing
them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the
Group has applied the practical expedient of not adjusting the
effect of a significant financing component, the Group initially
measures a financial asset at its fair value, plus in the case of a
financial asset not at FVTPL, transaction costs. Trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or for
which the Group has applied the practical expedient are
measured at the transaction price determined under HKFRS 15
in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue
recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income (“"FVTOCI"), it needs to give rise to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the
principal amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows
that are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value
through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REUMBHERRME (F)

31 December 2022 — - —®+_-A=+—H
24 EX

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING FEHHENEE @

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers
to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash
flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will
result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the
financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified and
measured at amortised cost are held within a business model
with the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows, while financial assets classified and
measured at FVTOCI are held within a business model with the
objective of both holding to collect contractual cash flows and
selling. Financial assets which are not held within the
aforementioned business models are classified and measured at
fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt
instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to
impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in the statement
of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or
impaired.
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31 December 2022 —E - —F+=-H=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets designated at FVTOCI (equity
investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify
irrevocably its equity investments as equity investments
designated at FVTOCI when they meet the definition of equity
under HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not
held for trading. The classification is determined on an
instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to
the statement of profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as
other income in the statement of profit or loss when the right
of payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured
reliably, except when the Group benefits from such proceeds as
a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset, in which
case such gains are recorded in other comprehensive income.
Equity investments designated at FVTOCI are not subject to
impairment assessment.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets at FVTPL are carried in the statement of
financial position at fair value with net changes in fair value
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity
investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected to
classify at FVTOCI. Dividends on equity investments classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are also
recognised as other income in the statement of profit or loss
when the right of payment has been established, it is probable
that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will
flow to the Group and the amount of the dividend can be
measured reliably.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBERRME ()
31 December 2022 —E - ~—F+=-H=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 ERETHENEE @)

POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’'s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

. the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a
third party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and
either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of
the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk and
rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Group
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the
rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount
of consideration that the Group could be required to repay.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
("ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at FVTPL. ECLs are
based on the difference between the contractual cash flows
due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at an approximation
of the original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows
will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other
credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that
result from default events that are possible within the next 12
months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which
there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses
expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of
the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit
risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since
initial recognition. When making the assessment, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort,
including historical and forward-looking information. The Group
considers that there has been a significant increase in credit risk
when contractual payments are more than 30 days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain
cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset to be in
default when internal or external information indicates that the
Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual
amounts in full before taking into account any credit
enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is written
off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the
contractual cash flows.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EX

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

General approach (Continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment
under the general approach and they are classified within the
following stages for measurement of ECLs except for trade
receivables which apply the simplified approach as detailed
below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition but
that are not credit-impaired financial assets and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or when the Group applies the practical expedient
of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing component,
the Group applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs.
Under the simplified approach, the Group does not track
changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance
based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on its historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors and the economic environment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

24 EXSTTHENEE @)
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Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as loans
and borrowings and payables.

EEREBEVIRAABERR
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All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in
the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.
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The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other
payables, interest-bearing bank borrowings and lease liabilities.

R E

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on TRAGBNREMAERTEROTHE
their classification as follows: ifiE :

Subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and BEBHEEA BN ETHBEE (BEHRE
borrowings) %)
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After initial recognition, trade and other payables and
interest-bearing bank borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised
as well as through the effective interest rate amortisation
process.

At E RN B A REAK R TR
FEE URERMNEmEaMNER
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Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in finance costs in the statement of
profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 ERETHENEE @)

POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms
of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the
difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Treasury shares

Own equity instruments which are reacquired and held by the
Company or the Group (treasury shares) are recognised directly
in equity at cost. No gain or loss is recognised in the statement
of profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of
the Group’s own equity instruments.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the weighted average basis and, in
the case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
overheads. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling
prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in nature
to cash, which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of the
reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of time is
included in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

The Group provides for warranties in relation to the sale of
certain lighting products for general repairs of defects occurring
during the warranty period. Provisions for these assurance-type
warranties granted by the Group are recognised based on sales
volume and past experience of the level of repairs and returns,
discounted to their present values as appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBERRME ()
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 ERETHENEE @)

POLICIES (continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and an associate, when
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Frig %

8B IE N B R AT Bt - B
B8 25 LA 1 HE SRR B AR B B9 BT 18 B
B350 (IR E b 2 E A R B B 7 7R
%) R -

B EHREERARE  HEEEA
SEEEMAEBRRRITHRERED
B RERBEHRAFESEBRKER
tEEEOBRE (RFOE)  RBEHA
MBEEREEXNTHBE RN TR

S s
=T =5 o
Al -

I 5E 719 B IR R B R R 1R 5 B K
BERABOBMERT SR ENES
5 ) BB T > P 10 T 75 5 5 2 4 5 98
A o

BEERIBEABIRA A BRGNS E
R EERR - T IR

e EEMBAEIRAAE-BAILIFE
BattNXshERERABERX
BEIREMEL BRRXSZH
WA E & FIE KB R T A
HEE &

. REANELTEBEADNE
AARMERHE S EET S -
TR EE AT
B3 0 2 A AT R 46 R A A
TEHEE -

BAARRIEREBRRAG o —_T-_FFf

149



150
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and
any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can

be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;

and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which

the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the
end of each reporting period and are recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be

recovered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 ERETHENEE @)

POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and
only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax
assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity
or different taxable entities which intend either to settle current
tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets
are expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on
a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, for which it is
intended to compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to
a deferred income account and is released to the statement of
profit or loss over the expected useful life of the relevant asset
by equal annual instalments or deducted from the carrying
amount of the asset and released to profit or loss by way of a
reduced depreciation charge.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBHERRME (R)
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

(a)

(b)

(c)

Sale of lighting products

Revenue from the sale of lighting products is recognised
at the point in time when control of the asset is
transferred to the customer, generally on delivery of the
lighting products.

Rights of return

For contracts which provide a customer with a right to
return the goods within a specified period, the expected
value method is used to estimate the goods that will not
be returned because this method best predicts the amount
of variable consideration to which the Group will be
entitled. The requirements in HKFRS 15 on constraining
estimates of variable consideration are applied in order to
determine the amount of variable consideration that can
be included in the transaction price. For goods that are
expected to be returned, instead of revenue, a refund
liability is recognised. An inventory (and the corresponding
adjustment to cost of sales) is also recognised for the right
to recover products from a customer.

Provision of advisory and asset management
services

Revenue from the provision of advisory and asset
management services is recognised over time when the
services are rendered. Fees for asset management services
are calculated based on a fixed percentage of the value of
assets managed and deducted from the customer’s
account balance on a regular basis as mutually agreed.

Provision of agency services

Revenue from the provision of agency services is
recognised at the point in time when the transactions
have been completed.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING FEHHENEE @

POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued) ONE7AC )
Revenue from other sources B g A 3R

Interest revenue is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected
life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Other income

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the
lease terms.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment has been established.

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for
goods or services transferred to the customer. If the Group
performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before
the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a
contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is
conditional. Contract assets are subject to impairment
assessment, details of which are included in the accounting
policies for impairment of financial assets.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or
a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before
the Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract
liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group performs
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Refund liabilities

A refund liability is recognised for the obligation to refund
some or all of the consideration received (or receivable) from a
customer and is measured at the amount the Group ultimately
expects it will have to return to the customer. The Group
updates its estimates of refund liabilities (and the corresponding
change in the transaction price) at the end of each reporting
period.

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payments, whereby employees render
services in exchange for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for
grants after 7 November 2002 is measured by reference to the
fair value at the date at which they are granted. The fair value
is determined by an external valuer using a binomial model,
further details of which are given in note 31 to the financial
statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in employee
benefit expense, together with a corresponding increase in
equity, over the period in which the performance and/or service
conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for
equity-settled transactions at the end of each reporting period
until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting
period has expired and the Group’s best estimate of the number
of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or
credit to the statement of profit or loss for a period represents
the movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at the
beginning and end of that period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 ERETHENEE @)

POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payments (Continued)

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken
into account when determining the grant date fair value of
awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being met is
assessed as part of the Group’s best estimate of the number of
equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market performance
conditions are reflected within the grant date fair value. Any
other conditions attached to an award, but without an
associated service requirement, are considered to be
non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in
the fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing
of an award unless there are also service and/or performance
conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met, no
expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or
non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been
modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In
addition, an expense is recognised for any modification that
increases the total fair value of the share-based payments, or is
otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the date
of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This
includes any award where non-vesting conditions within the
control of either the Group or the employee are not met.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled award,
and is designated as a replacement award on the date that it is
granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they
were a modification of the original award, as described in the
previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per
share.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Other employee benefits

Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the statement of
profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest
fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute 10% to 20% of their
payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The contributions
are charged to the statement of profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the central pension
scheme.

The Group offers qualified employees in the USA the
opportunity to participate in a defined contribution retirement
plan qualifying under the provisions of section 401(k) of the
Internal Revenue Code (the “401(k) plan”). The 401(k) plan is
managed by an independent trustee. The 401(k) plan is an
optional benefit, the only obligation of the 401(k) plan with
respect to the retirement benefit plan is to comply with the
guidelines under the plan. The Group offers a match
contribution up to 4% of the employees’ eligible compensation,
subject to a cap of US$6,000 per year for certain employees.
Employer matching contributions vest upon receipt or are
subject to a specific vesting schedule.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBERRME ()
31 December 2022 —E - ~—F+=-H=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 ERETHENEE @)

POLICIES (continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All
other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they
are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs
that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed
final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s memorandum and articles of
association grant the directors the authority to declare interim
dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are recognised
immediately as a liability when they are proposed and declared.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in RMB. Each entity in
the Group determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity are measured
using that functional currency. The functional currency of the
Company is Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"). Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially
recorded using their respective functional currency rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at
the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of
the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in the statement

of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of a
non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line with
the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of
the item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair
value gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income
or profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive

income or profit or loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a
non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to an
advance consideration, the date of initial transaction is the date
on which the Group initially recognises the non-monetary asset
or non-monetary liability arising from the advance
consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in
advance, the Group determines the transaction date for each

payment or receipt of the advance consideration.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBERRME ()
31 December 2022 —E - ~—F+=-H=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 ERETHENEE @)

POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

The functional currencies of the Company and certain overseas
subsidiaries are currencies other than the RMB. As at the end of
the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities
are translated into RMB at the exchange rates prevailing at the
end of the reporting period and their statements of profit or
loss are translated into RMB at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation
and any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities arising on acquisition are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at the
closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of the Company and overseas subsidiaries are
translated into RMB at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of
the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of the Company
and overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are
translated into RMB at the weighted average exchange rates for
the year.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on
an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use
and fair value less cost of disposal of the cash-generating units
to which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value in use
and fair value less cost of disposal requires the Group to make
an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the
cash-generating units and also to choose a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.
The carrying amount of goodwill at 31 December 2022 was
RMB88,567,000 (2021: RMB81,079,000). Further details are
given in note 17 to the financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Provision for expected credit losses on trade and
bills receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade
and bills receivables. The provision rates are based on days past
due and historical repayment pattern.

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to
adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking
information. For instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e.,
gross domestic product) are expected to deteriorate over the
next year which can lead to an increased number of defaults in
the manufacturing sector, the historical default rates are
adjusted. At each reporting date, the historical observed default
rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates
are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed
default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a
significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes
in circumstances and forecast economic conditions. The Group’s
historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic
conditions may also not be representative of a customer’s
actual default in the future. The information about the ECLs on
the Group's trade and bills receivables is disclosed in note 20 to
the financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Provision for expected credit losses on other and
loan receivables

The measurement of expected credit losses under HKFRS 9
requires judgement, in particular, the estimation of the amount
and timing of future cash flows and collateral values when
determining expected credit losses and the assessment of a
significant increase in credit risk. These estimates are driven by
a number of factors, such as risks of default, loss given default
and collateral recovery, changes in which can result in different
levels of allowances.

The Group's expected credit loss calculations on other and loan
receivables are based on assumptions about risks of default and
loss given default. The Group uses judgement in making these
assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment
calculations, based on credit risks of the debtors or comparable
companies in the market, existing market conditions as well as
forward looking estimates (such as gross domestic product and
market volatility) at the end of each reporting period. It has
been the Group’s policy to regularly review its models in the
context of actual loss experience and adjust when necessary.
Further details of the Group’s other and loan receivables and
the key assumptions and inputs used for impairment
calculations are given in notes 21 and 22 to the financial
statements, respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Write-down of inventories to net realisable value

Management reviews the condition of inventories of the Group
and writes down the carrying amounts of obsolete and
slow-moving inventories items which are identified as no longer
suitable for sale or use to their respective net realisable values.
The Group estimates the net realisable value for such
inventories based primarily on the latest invoice prices and
current market conditions at the end of the reporting period.

The identification of obsolete and slow-moving inventory items
requires the use of judgements and estimates. Where the
expectation is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact on the carrying values of inventories and
the write-down of inventories recognised in the periods in
which such estimates have been made. The carrying amount of
inventories at 31 December 2022 was RMB176,172,000 (2021:
RMB163,828,000).

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

In the absence of current prices in an active market for similar
properties, the Group considers information from a variety of
sources, including:

(a) current prices in an active market for properties of a
different nature, condition or location, adjusted to reflect
those differences; and

(b) recent prices of similar properties on less active markets,
with adjustments to reflect any changes in economic
conditions since the dates of the transactions that
occurred at those prices.

The carrying amount of investment properties at 31 December
2022 was RMB73,509,000 (2021: RMB67,470,000). Further
details, including the key assumptions used for fair value
measurement and a sensitivity analysis, are given in note 15 to
the financial statements.
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4,

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business
units based on their products and services and has two
reportable operating segments as follows:

o the PRC lighting segment consists of the research and
development, manufacture of lighting products in the PRC
and distribution of lighting products in the PRC and
overseas; and

o the USA lighting segment consists of the manufacture and
trading of lighting products in the USA.

As at 31 December 2021, the Securities Group (as defined in
Note 11 to the financial statements) was classified as a
discontinued operation. With the Securities Group being
classified as a discontinued operation, the securities segment
which consisted of asset management services, investment
advisory services and securities trading services is no longer
included in the note for operation segment information.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on reportable segment profit/
(loss), which is a measure of adjusted profit/(loss) before tax
from continuing operations. The adjusted profit/(loss) before
tax from continuing operations is measured consistently with
the Group’s profit/(loss) before tax from continuing operations
except that bank interest income, non-lease-related finance
costs, government grants, as well as unallocated corporate
income and gains and expenses are excluded from this
measurement.

Segment assets exclude deferred tax assets, cash and cash
equivalents and other unallocated head office and corporate
assets as these assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude interest-bearing bank borrowings,
tax payable, deferred tax liabilities and other unallocated head
office and corporate liabilities as these liabilities are managed
on a group basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference
to the selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the
then prevailing market prices.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBEBRME (F)
31 December 2022 — - —®+_-A=+—H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. BEZBER @
(Continued)
Year ended 31 December 2022 BE-F-_—_F+-A=+—-HL#F
B
PRC USA
lighting lighting Total
"l B B XERS Mgt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETTT ARET T
Segment revenue (note 5): 2 EUA (HFEES)
Sales to external customers HINAEPZHER 171,554 755,952 927,506
Intersegment sales S ERHE 13,022 - 13,022
184,576 755,952 940,528
Reconciliation: HiE -
Elimination of intersegment sales ME D HEHEE (13,022)
Revenue WA 927,506
Segment results DEEE 3,228 68,554 71,782
Reconciliation: Eof 3
Interest income and unallocated | B T K 2 B A
income and gains Rz 41,708
Finance costs (other than intereston B AR (FAE B EHH L
lease liabilities) BR5M (1,907)
Government grants B8 1,708
Unallocated expenses AAEZH (12,628)
Profit before tax from continuing BELEEBORBIANRT
operations 100,663
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REeMBBMRME (F)
31 December 2022 — - —F+_-A=+—H

N

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, REDSIPER @)

(Continued)

Year ended 31 December 2022 (Continued) BE-_2-_—_H+-A=t—-HLHF

E (&)
PRC USA
lighting lighting Total
H B AR BB ZERH @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AR TR AR T AR T
Segment assets AHEE 334,023 425,659 759,682
Reconciliation: Hi
Deferred tax assets EEHBEE 22,345
Cash and cash equivalents RekBeZEEY 783,264
Corporate and other unallocated assets 22 &) Ktk B & & 163,554
Total assets BEE 1,728,845
Segment liabilities PHEE 41,012 175,268 216,280
Reconciliation: #Hik -
Tax payable e 178 13,745
Deferred tax liabilities EXEHEBEE 10,150
Corporate and other unallocated RAIREMKRDEAR
liabilities 6,538
Total liabilities BEESE 246,713
PRC USA
lighting lighting Unallocated Total
T AR A ZERH AOE @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR AR TR AR TR AR TR
Other segment information HEKLEEEN
from continuing operations: H 4 HER :
(Reversal of impairment)/ CRMEE (BRFHE),/
impairment losses on HEBRTE
financial assets, net (1,884) (1,840) 1,353 (2,371)
Provision for inventories included st ADEFER K2
in cost of inventories sold FEERE 5,866 16,932 - 22,798
Depreciation and amortisation ~ #72 [z $4 11,652 13,876 96 25,624
Capital expenditure* CENGE 8,133 1,941 = 10,074
& Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and @ BRRAXBEDE BERZEMNEL

BENRE -

equipment and intangible assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBEBRME (F)
31 December 2022 — - —®+_-A=+—H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

4, RBREDSIER @)

Year ended 31 December 2021 BE_ZT-_—F+-_A=t+—HL#F
IS
PRC USA
lighting lighting Total
B R A EeifREE aat
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFIT AREFIL ARBFIT
Segment revenue (note 5): 2 EUA (HFEES)
Sales to external customers HIREP ZHER 147,425 716,432 863,857
Intersegment sales DEEEE 48,525 - 48,525
195,950 716,432 912,382
Reconciliation: #HEE
Elimination of intersegment sales ME D HEHEE (48,525)
Revenue N 863,857
Segment results DEEE (86,875) 61,118 (25,757)
Reconciliation: B
Interest income and unallocated FEWMARESE
income and gains N € 2,637
Finance costs (other than intereston ~ BT A (HEEED
lease liabilities) FEBRIMN (2,668)
Government grants B8 10,364
Unallocated expenses AABEZH (19,448)
Loss before tax from continuing BELEEBNRTIAER
operations (34,872)
RAERREBRERAT o —T_- —F&£R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REMBHERRME (F)

31 December 2022 —ZT - —F+ - =

+—8

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

4., BEHIER @)

Year ended 31 December 2021 (Continued) B _ T -+ -_A=+—8I1t&F
(&)
PRC USA
lighting lighting Total
F B R ZEEH st
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFTT ARBEFTT ARETTT
Segment assets AHEE 449,421 394,665 844,086
Reconciliation: Hi -
Elimination of intersegment receivables i $ 7 & f f& U 7R 78 (81,008)
Deferred tax assets ERHIEEE 14,027
Cash and cash equivalents Be kR EEY 698,422
Corporate and other unallocated assets ‘A R Et A DB EE 177,739
Total assets BmEE 1,653,266
Segment liabilities SHEE 34,982 164,650 199,632
Reconciliation: ik -
Elimination of intersegment payables 1l # 7 &5 & FE 1 5t 8 (81,008)
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FERITER 36,660
Tax payable eI TR 13,850
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBEE 8,716
Corporate and other unallocated ARREMADEEE
liabilities 98,920
Total liabilities BEER 276,770
PRC USA
lighting lighting Unallocated Total
B A B L ROE st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFT AREFT ARETT
Other segment information BELEERN
from continuing operations: A2 HEH
Impairment losses/(reversal of CREAERERE
impairment) on financial assets /(& E) 15,483 (2,243) = 13,240
Impairment losses on FEREENEER
non-financial assets 2,669 8,056 - 10,725
Provision for inventories included s AZEFEMAZ
in cost of inventories sold FERE 38,566 11,083 - 49,649
Depreciation and amortisation FEREH 22,352 13,719 1,135 37,206
Capital expenditure* AR 9,629 4,020 = 13,649
& Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and * BEAMXBEYE  BEREEBENEY

equipment and intangible assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBEBRME (F)
31 December 2022 — - —®+_-A=+—H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, BEFEHER @)
(Continued)
Geographical information wEER
(a) Revenue from external customers (a) XEINIREFZKA
2022 2021
—=E-= T —F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T AREFT
North America it = 882,426 812,431
Europe &M 29,294 26,208
The PRC H 5,880 7,632
Asia (excluding the PRC) DM (TBEEFRE) 8,519 16,143
Other countries B ETE 1,387 1,443
927,506 863,857

The revenue information above is based on the locations

FRRABHEREFREME

of the customers.

(b) Non-current assets

mE °

(b) FHEBEE

2022 2021

—s=-= T —4F

RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR®ET ARETIT

North America i3 146,866 129,487
The PRC F 120,719 125,187
Asia (excluding the PRC) M (B IEFRE) 8,679 6,107
276,264 260,781

LASERBEEEHEREERM
EuEmME BETFBEeIA
MELEFIBEE °

The non-current asset information above is based on the
locations of the assets and excludes financial instruments
and deferred tax assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

=)
)

MEmEAME (F)

31 December 2022 — - —F+_-A=+—H

4,

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

Information about major customers

During the year ended 31 December 2022, revenue generated
from customer A by the USA lighting segment amounting to
approximately RMB102,734,000 accounted for over 10% of the
Group's revenue.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, revenue generated
from customer A and customer B by the USA lighting segment
amounting to approximately RMB98,662,000 and
RMB93,025,000 accounted for over 10% of the Group's
revenue.

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND
LOSSES, NET

5.

A

KResER @)

FHREIEFEFZEH

HE-_ZT-_—_F+-_A=+—HLHF
[E-REERBASTHNEFARKA
“ 5 AR #102,734,0007T - (RN EE
WARBIE10% °

HEe—_ZT-—F+_-_A=+—HI#%F
B KEEBEBHAITNEFARTF
BHY UL A 9 Bl 49 & A R 98,662,000
B A R#93,025,0007T 15 AN EE U A
BiB10% °

WA~ HtEBA ~ WERES
BFEE

An analysis of revenue is as follows: WASHTAT
2022 2021
—_E=-= T
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR T AREF T
Revenue from contracts with customers BEEAHWA 927,506 863,857
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBEBRME (F)
31 December 2022 — - —®+_-A=+—H

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND
LOSSES, NET (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers

(i) Disaggregated revenue information

Year ended 31 December 2022

5. WA HMA >~ IRERE
BEHEm

BEFEHRA

(i) BABEHHH

BE-_2-__f+_-A=t-—H

LHEE
PRC USA
Segments lighting lighting Total
28 " B R A ZEBH @5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBTR ARBTR
Types of goods or services  ERBRHFER
Sale of lighting products HERAEMD 171,554 755,952 927,506
Geographic markets i35 T 35
North America bl S 126,474 755,952 882,426
Europe B 29,294 - 29,294
The PRC HE 5,880 - 5,880
Asia (excluding the PRC) TN (TEERE) 8,519 - 8,519
Other countries HAEIR 1,387 - 1,387
Total revenue from contracts EPEHMARE
with customers 171,554 755,952 927,506
Timing of revenue recognition A # 528 &
Goods transferred and services REHEEHEZEMR
rendered at a point in time RERS 171,554 755,952 927,506
RARRZEBREBRAG o« —T__FFH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REeMBBMRME (F)
31 December 2022 — - —F+_-A=+—H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND 5. WA HMWA > RERE
LOSSES, NET (Continued) BEHEm
Revenue from contracts with customers BEEEHWMA @®)
(Continued)
(i) Disaggregated revenue information (Continued) (i) WAEZFIBEAH (&)
Year ended 31 December 2021 Bz —4%+-_A=+—H
IHFE
PRC USA
Segments lighting lighting Total
baRl B R AR EXERH Bt
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000

ARBTT AREBTR ARETT

Types of goods or services  ERBRBHER

Sale of lighting products HERHAEMD 147,425 716,432 863,857
Geographic markets 133 T 35

North America BIES 95,999 716,432 812,431
Europe B 26,208 - 26,208
The PRC H e 7,632 - 7,632
Asia (excluding the PRC) SN (TEERE) 16,143 - 16,143
Other countries HiER 1,443 - 1,443

Total revenue from contracts BEEEHWALE
with customers 147,425 716,432 863,857

Timing of revenue recognition I§{ A %52 65 8
Goods transferred and services RESEZER SR
rendered at a point in time RAR MR 147,425 716,432 863,857

17/ 2 Neo-Neon Holdings Limited e Annual Report 2022



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBERME (F)

31 December 2022 — - —®+_-A=+—H

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND 5. WA ﬂﬂu&)k B RS
LOSSES, NET (continued) =] *%‘E
Revenue from contracts with customers EEEHWA (#)
(Continued)
(i) Disaggregated revenue information (Continued) (i) WAEZFIBAH (&)
The following table shows the amounts of revenue TRIRIRAERE AR ER U
recognised in the current reporting period that were Ae# GIARSHVNENEE)

included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of the
reporting period:

2022 2021
—=E_C —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARBTIT

Revenue recognised that was included AR HRYI =T A
in contract liabilities at the beginning A% & &2 2 ERWA :
of the reporting period:

Sale of lighting products THE RAAE @ 2,922 4,999
(ii) Performance obligations (i) BHEF

Information about the Group’s performance obligations is AEBRBOBETERBMBAT -
summarised below:
Sale of lighting products 7 B AR B an
The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of BAE TR TRRIEE B ERK
the lighting products and payment is generally due within — MR R ES021808 A
30 to 180 days from delivery, except for new customers, DR —MREEAR

where payment in advance is normally required.

RATRRZERERRR o —T__FFRH

=



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REeMBBMRME (F)
31 December 2022 — - —F+_-A=+—H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND 5. WA EHMKBA > FERE

LOSSES, NET (continued)

BEERE @

2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt aF ARBT R ARETT
Other income H g A
Bank interest income RITF B HA 17,760 2,316
Dividend income from financial BRARBEFABEY
assets at FVTPL SREEZREBA 2,412 -
Government grants* 8K # Bh 1,708 10,364
Gross rental income from investment R E W ELLHER
property operating leases: He M AL :
Lease payments, including fixed HENZ  BEEENK
payments 7,338 6,568
Reversal of aged other payables BEREREMENSR
and accruals* fEET R IE! - 4,037
Others Hity 7,420 4,480
36,638 27,765
Gains and losses, net KBEREEFHE
Fair value gains/(losses) on KEWMERRERE 15
investments properties, net W (E18) F5 1,546 (6,023)
Gain on disposal on financial HERAABEFARRN
assets at FVTPL SREAE W - 3,750
Gains on disposal of items of HEME - WERZHEER
property, plant and equipment 2 Wia 12 233
Fair value (losses)/gains of financial ERABEAEBZASE
assets at FVTPL, net BEZAREE
(B#8), W= FiE (2,624) 349
Foreign exchange differences, net SN %= 58 % 58 24,915 (5,708)
Change in fair value of contingent ~ JEF s AR EZ 33
consideration payable NREEEE - 429
23,849 (6,970)
60,487 20,795
* There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to these * B B R R R R
grants. BEHE-
# The amount represented one-off reversal of certain aged other # e AENREETEER S EN

payables and accruals. M FERTFRIE ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBBRRKE (E)
31 December 2022 — - —®+_-A=+—H

6. PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX 6. BRBIAIER(EBR)
The Group's profit/(loss) before tax from continuing operations AREEBRBBEREEBNRBMES
is arrived at after charging (crediting): (B#E) DMk GEA) U TEEEE
B
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
Notes RMB’'000 RMB’'000

g3 AR® T ARETTT

Cost of inventories sold BEEFEMNRAR 556,707 576,651
Depreciation of property, plant mE - BERRBITE

and equipment 10,032 16,339
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ~ {fAEEEITE 10,091 11,799
Research and development costs: HEERK -

Deferred expenditure amortised* B3 5 IR R S 18 2,741 6,452
Amortisation of other intangible Hthmp & Edis

assets™* 2,760 2,616
Additional provision** BHONE 28 353 2,153
Lease payments not included in the fEMREABHRFA 16(c)

measurement of lease liabilities SoFiEN-"X DN 215 471
Auditor’s remuneration % SRl BN & 2,224 2,750

Employee benefit expense (including EE®@AMEAL (BIEEER

directors’ and chief executive's FETHABZ
remuneration (note 8)) o (FT=E8))
Wages and salaries TENHS 143,495 133,316
Pension scheme contributions*** RIREFT B TR ** 5,895 6,554
149,390 139,870
Direct operating expenses (including 7% & BB £ B 1% &
repairs and maintenance) arising MENEELERE
from rental-earning investment (BIEFERMEE)
properties 553 520
Write-off of other intangible assets  #ifl $% £ i ## i & &= 18 - 342
(Reversal of provision)/provision of & @& EREE B
impairment losses on financial (BEBE), BEFE -
assets, net:
Trade and bills receivables W E 5 B8R R % B U R K (3,305) 2,852
Other receivables H fb fE UG F IR 934 10,388
Impairment loss on intangible assets 4& 2 & = il (E &5 18 - 2,669
Impairment loss on goodwill HEREEE 17 - 8,056
(2,371) 23,965
Write-down of inventories to net FEMRE R FE
realisable value** 22,798 49,649

RARRKERERLAG o —ZT__FF#%H 1/5



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBHERRME (F)

31 December 2022 — - —F+_-A=+—H

6. PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX (Continued) 6. BREANEA (EE) @
The Group's loss before tax from a discontinued operation is AEFEDKRIEREEBORBRIEE
arrived at after charging: THEEHBRIA T S EZEB
2022 2021
—E-= —T=—F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000

g3 AR® T ARETTT

Depreciation of property, plant and ¥ - &= R R EIFTE

equipment 420 1,070
Depreciation of right-of-use assets {FRAEEENE 2,957 2,868
Amortisation of other intangible H b R & 8

assets 8 996

Employee benefit expense (including EERA A (BEEER

directors’ and chief executive’s FETHAB ZFH M
remuneration (note 8)) (FfF7E8))
Wages and salaries TEEH & 11,969 31,836
Pension scheme contributions* ** RIREET I+ 1,291 2,535
13,260 34,371
Impairment losses on financial TREEREEETE:
assets, net:
Trade and bills receivables ERE ZERREWEE 159 117
Other receivables H fb fE UG FRIE 13,992 47,274
Loan receivable il = 22 - 31,271
Impairment loss on intangible assets 4& /2 & & Jal (E &5 18 - 5,320
Impairment loss on goodwill AEREEE 17 - 94,965
14,151 178,947
* The amortisation of deferred development costs and other intangible * i?\??_kﬁﬁﬁfﬁﬁﬁﬁ’r@ﬂﬁ/ﬁéﬂﬁﬁﬁ
assets for the year is included in “Administrative expenses” in the HETAGABREERITTEAZIA -
consolidated statement of profit or loss.
** Included in “Cost of sales” in the consolidated statement of profit or > HAmAERRIEEREIR -
loss.
***  There are no forfeited contributions that may be used by the Group ok WEBRINERTBEAEBNEESH
as the employer to reduce the existing level of contributions. AR B AT EHFOKE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBEBRME (F)
31 December 2022 — - —®+_-A=+—H

7. FINANCE COSTS 7. BMBEAE
An analysis of finance costs from continuing operations is as REBLEEBNM BRI ADITOT
follows:
2022 2021
—F=-= —EF_—F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® T ARETTT

Interest on bank loans RITERHNE 1,907 1,447
Interest on a loan from the ultimate BRI AR ERFE
holding company - 1,221
Interest on lease liabilities HEBENE 1,439 1,235
3,346 3,903
S /= = +
8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8. EERETETBAEZHM
REMUNERATION
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, FAN BESRFETHRABZFHHIR
disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) B ETRA - FBQAEH E383(1)
and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of (@) QOROBUERAR(HEES
the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of FlemER) BOIE —SWENOT -

Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

2022 2021
- T

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBTT

Fees we 1,026 1,238
Other emoluments: HEi < -
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e RN EYEA 903 889
Performance related bonuses I ICAL 158 50
Pension scheme contributions BRIREET B 15 9
2,102 2,186
No share option was granted to directors during the years BE_ZT-__fR-F-_—%+=A
ended 31 December 2022 and 2021. =+—HLEFE BMERESERHMT

A 8 B HE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REeMBBMRME (F)
31 December 2022 — - —F+_-A=+—H

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8. EERTETHAEZHM
REMUNERATION (continued) (#8)
(a) Independent non-executive directors (a) BYFHITEE
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors FALXNTEBIFNTEST 2N
during the year were as follows: W
2022 2021
—E-C —E—F
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR® T ARETTT

Mr. Fan Ren Da, Anthony BLoESE 342 332

Mr. Liu Tian Min BRRELE 342 332

Ms. Li Ming Qi ERA L 342 332

1,026 996
There were no other emoluments payable to the FAREENBELFATES
PANNAE S S, .

independent non-executive directors during the year HigMe (Z2-—F &)
(2021: Nil).
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
REMUNERATION (continued)

(b) Executive directors and chief executive

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REMBEBRME (F)
31 December 2022 — - —F+_-HF=+—H

8. EERFETHAEBZHM

(%)

(b) BTEERETEITHAER

Salaries,

allowances Performance- Pension
and benefits related scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses contributions remuneration
)=3::954 3] BRI
re ENEF BB FTEIMN EMax
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AR¥ETR AR®Tz AR®Trx AR®T:
2022 —EC-CF
Executive director and HOEZR
the chief executive: TETHAE:
Mr. Gao Zhi St - - - - -
Executive director: HTES:
Mr. Liu Zhigang ABMESE - 903 158 15 1,076
Non-executive directors: ~ 3EHITES
Mr. Zhou Hai Ying EhESs - - - - -
Mr. Liang Wu Quan 2R2%HE - - - - -
- 903 158 15 1,076
RAARRERERAT o —T - —FFER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REeMBBMRME (F)
31 December 2022 — - —F+_-A=+—H

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8. EERTETHAEZHM
REMUNERATION (continued) (&)
(b) Executive directors and chief executive (b) ITEERETETHAE
(Continued) (4&)
Salaries,
allowances  Performance- Pension
and benefits related scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses  contributions  remuneration
2ER F32 RAK

e ENEA BBEL  HERR FHeE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTL  ARBTR ARETRT ARETT ARETR

2021 —E--F
Executive director and HTEERFENHAG
the chief executive:

Mr. Gao Zhi BEkE - - - - -
Executive director: HIES:
Mr. Liu Zhigang ARMESE - 889 50 9 948

Non-executive directors:  3FH{TEE

Mr. Seah Han Leong HERRE(RZE=—
(resigned on 25/6/2021)  ®XAZTHARL) 242 - - - 242
Mr. Zhou Hai Ying BeELE - - - - _
Mr. Liang Wu Quan ZRAAE(RZT=—
(appointed on 25/6/2021)  FXA-THBEZ
) - - - : -
242 889 50 9 1,190
There was no arrangement under which a director or the FABMBEEREIEZITBRAEBN
chief executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration RUFBRET MM -

during the year.
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FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBEBRME (F)
31 December 2022 — - —®+_-A=+—H

9. EEEREHES

The five highest paid employees of the Group during the year FA AEEREERFEELTE
did not include any directors (2021: Nil). Details of the SEMEE (ZE_—F:8) R
remuneration for the year of the five (2021: five) highest paid AZ(ZEZ—F:ARB)WIHEARA
employees who are non-directors of the Company are as EENHRATGEENHHMET
follows:
2022 2021
—E-— —E=—
RMB'000 RMB’'000

ARBTR ARETTT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EMNEWEF 9,939 8,549
Performance-related bonuses FKIBMEBEICA 600 516
Pension scheme contributions RIKREET B K 583 665
11,122 9,730
The number of non-director highest paid employees whose YMENTEEN S SHIEEEES
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows: AEWMT

Number of employees

EE A

2022 2021

—=E-= —E-—F

HK$1,500,000 to HK$2,500,000 1,500,000/ 7T £2,500,0007% 7T 3 3

HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7L £3,000,0007% 7T 2 2

5 5
No share options were granted to the non-director and REz—_T-_= —E-_—F+=
non-chief executive highest paid employees in respect of their A=Z+-—BIFE S5HFEEEN
services to the Group during the years ended 31 December IFEBTHRAEREMERERB A
2022 and 2021. Certain non-director and non-chief executive EEMERTANERE B THSH
highest paid employees were granted share options in prior FEERIFZTETHRABEERNBRE
years, in respect of their services to the Group, under the share FERRAAEEREREMBEAAR
option scheme of a subsidiary of the Company, further details Al—EBARRERETEERE
of which are set out in note 31 to the financial statements. Pt E— P HFBHRT B RERN T

S

RATRRZERERRDR o —T— —FFH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBBRRKE (E)
31 December 2022 — - —F+_-A=+—H

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2021: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in
Hong Kong during the year. For the Group’s subsidiaries
established in the USA, income tax is calculated at the rate of
24.8% (2021: 24.7%). For the Group’s subsidiary established in
Vietnam, income tax is calculated at the rate of 20.0% (2021:
20.0%). Tax on profits assessable in the PRC has been
calculated at the applicable PRC corporate income tax (“CIT")
rate of 25.0% (2021: 25.0%). Taxes on profits assessable
elsewhere have been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in
the jurisdictions in which the Group operates.

10. FTBHEX

ERNEGHEFRNEERBEE ZEF
fE R R A M16.5% (Z 8 = — 4
16.5% ) 5T 4% o A 5 B 7 E Bk 32 F9 B
BARIMFIERIE24.8% (T - —4F:
247% ) MBI EFE - REBRBEX
SHBARRMEHE20.0% (ZF
T :20.0%) M KRFE - R E
EERERFENOHRBZERASHD
EMEH ((EMBEH]) B E25.0%
ZEZ—F 1 25.0%)FE c REM
FELERRBEMNOBIBIZAEEL
EREREAERBEANETTE -

2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETIT
Current — Hong Kong EH-FB
Charge for the year FAZH 579 881
Underprovision in prior years BEFEREBETR 102 -
Current — Elsewhere BEHI—-HM s
Charge for the year FRZW 23,870 17,592
(Over)/underprovision in prior years BEFEE (BERE), B
BT R (3,579) 9
Deferred tax EEF IR (6,090) (2,903)
Total tax charge for the year from SELE XN FEANRIE
continuing operations S B 14,882 15,579
Total tax credit for the year from ERIEREEEBNTR
a discontinued operation I BB RE (157) (1,235)
14,725 14,344
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10.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit/(loss)
before tax at the statutory rates for the jurisdictions in which
the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense/
(credit) at the effective tax rates is as follows:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUE )
REMBERME (F)

31 December 2022 — - —®+_-A=+—H

10. FISHBEX @

ERERZHEMBARMEREER
HEE R R EORBATNER, (BER)
MEARERY  BRERREAE

MBIERX, (ER) WEERMNT :

2022 2021
—®8=-= —E-—fF
RMB'000 RMB’'000
AR¥ T ARBTT
Profit/(loss) before tax for continuing BEGEEBNBRIR
operations wm Al (&) 100,663 (34,872)
Loss before tax from discontinuing BRI E B
operations bR B AT ES 18 (36,056) (222,014)
64,607 (256,886)
Tax at the statutory/applicable rates of BRARAEARREEES
different jurisdictions AN RN E 18,111 (39,016)
Income not subject to tax BEZEHRBA (3,165) (367)
Expenses not deductible for tax AR X 6,376 33,075
Tax losses utilised from previous periods EABA M RIBEE (6,436) -
Tax losses not recognised RERTIEEHE 3,316 20,643
Adjustments in respect of current tax of R BT HR 2 BN
previous periods (3,477) 9
Tax charge at the Group’s effective rate RAEEEBRBEFE
GORTR El 14,725 14,344
Tax charge from continuing operations BECEXEBRERD R
at the effective rate EHfELE 14,882 15,579
Tax credit from a discontinued operation PRI EEBIRERN X
at the effective rate FEMRIEER R (157) (1,235)
RATRRZERERRDR o —T— —FFH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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BB ERME (F)

31 December 2022 —E - —F+=-H=+—H

10.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

Tax audit conducted by the Inland Revenue
Department (“IRD”) in Hong Kong

IRD is conducting a tax audit to the Group for the year of
assessment back from year of assessment 2005/06. On 26
March 2012, the IRD issued protective profits tax assessments
in aggregate of HK$5,250,000 (approximately equivalent to
RMB4,388,000) relating to the year of assessment 2005/06,
that is, for the financial year ended 31 December 2005, against
certain subsidiaries of the Company. The Group lodged
objections to the IRD against these protective assessments.

On 8 March 2013, the IRD additionally issued protective profits
tax assessments in aggregate of HK$5,425,000 (approximately
equivalent to RMB4,535,000) relating to the year of assessment
2006/07, that is, for the financial year ended 31 December 2006,
against certain subsidiaries of the Company. The Group lodged
objections to the IRD against these protective assessments.

On 14 March 2014, the IRD additionally issued estimated profits
tax assessments in aggregate of HK$28,425,000 (approximately
equivalent to RMB23,760,000) relating to the year of
assessment 2007/08, that is, for the financial year ended 31
December 2007, against certain subsidiaries of the Company.
The Group lodged objections to the IRD against these estimated
assessments.

On 9 January 2015 and 27 March 2015, the IRD additionally
issued protective profits tax assessments in aggregate of
HK$35,838,000 (approximately equivalent to RMB29,957,000)
relating to the year of assessment 2008/09, that is, for the
financial year ended 31 December 2008, against certain
subsidiaries of the Company. The Group lodged objections to
the IRD against these protective assessments.

On 31 December 2015, the IRD additionally issued protective
profits tax assessments in aggregate of HK$24,288,000
(approximately equivalent to RMB20,302,000) relating to the
year of assessment 2009/10, that is, for the financial year ended
31 December 2009, against certain subsidiaries of the
Company. The Group lodged objections to the IRD against
these protective assessments.
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10.

Fr 8 Bi5 2 (m

ERHBR (BBER) ETH
B i

REpYAre@g—_22H, /=%
ERAHFEETBHBIZ - R2F
——ZF=ZAZ+ B BREBAMAE
NAETHERAGRN TR,/ —-F
ERFBEE(EE-_TTRFE+=
A=Z+—BHILBBFE) ZREEFE
i T 7% 48 28 55,250,000 7T (&
R AR #4,388,0007T) © A 5% B 5L i
REEIHERNRERBREZRE -

RZZT—Z=ZF=ZANA BERRT
AEARRRETHBRARR-_ZTZT X
S CETHFHEE (MEE TN
F+_A=+—BHUEFHRFEE) 2RE
MRS R TR 42 % A 5,425,000 7T (49
HE W ARKL535000T) - KEE
RZREETHRERNREBIRERY -

R_ZT—NEZA+HA HERS
ﬁ/AﬁEZIS'AET%Hﬁ%@aTEG:EZ\
+/ ZEZENFHEEE BEHE=
+tFE+ A=+ RULYEREE) 2&
5T FI 15 R ST 42 %8 528,425,000 7T
(#HE N AR23,760,0007T) ° A
EERZEAIHERREREER
4 o

R-ZE—RF—ANBER-_Z—1F
—AZt++tH MEBSOTAMBAEAR
AATHBARR-ZZN,/ —_TZ
NWEEFE(BEE-_ZENEFE+_A
Z+—HIEVBRFE) ZREEFEH
ST %1 48 %8 535,838,000/ T (X E R
AR #29,957,0007T) ° AN & B 5% R
BEUHFRERRERIREERY -

WR—ZZE—FRAE+-_A=+—8" %
KRBTAMGARGE THER A
RZEZTH,/ —E—TFHEE (A
HE-_ZTZTZAF+-_A=+—81
FHREE) 2REEFNESHRIHR A
524,288,000 T (WHEHERARE
20,302,0007T) ° 25 B 5t 5% R 5 14 &1
HERREBRERY -



10.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUE

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

Tax audit conducted by the Inland Revenue
Department (“IRD”) in Hong Kong (Continued)

On 29 December 2016, the IRD additionally issued protective
profits tax assessments in aggregate of HK$47,305,500
(approximately equivalent to RMB39,543,000) relating to the
year of assessment 2010/11, that is, for the financial year ended
31 March 2011, against certain subsidiaries of the Company.
The Group lodged objections to the IRD against these protective
assessments.

On 28 December 2017, the IRD additionally issued protective
profits tax assessments in aggregate of HK$2,779,500
(approximately equivalent to RMB2,323,000) relating to the
year of assessment 2011/12, that is, for the financial year ended
31 March 2012, against certain subsidiaries of the Company.
The Group lodged objections to the IRD against these protective
assessments.

On 30 January 2019, the IRD additionally issued protective
profits tax assessments in aggregate of HK$6,229,000
(approximately equivalent to RMB5,519,000) relating to the
year of assessment 2012/13, that is, for the financial year ended
31 March 2013, against certain subsidiaries of the Company.
The Group lodged objections to the IRD against these protective
assessments.

On 12 March 2020, the IRD additionally issued protective
profits tax assessments in aggregate of HK$834,000
(approximately equivalent to RMB702,000) relating to the year
of assessment 2013/14, that is, for the financial year ended 31
March 2014, against certain subsidiaries of the Company. The
Group lodged objections to the IRD against these protective
assessments.

On 8 January 2021, the IRD additionally issued protective profits
tax assessments in aggregate of HK$678,000 (approximately
equivalent to RMB571,000) relating to the year of assessment
2014/15, that is, for the financial period ended 31 December
2014, against certain subsidiaries of the Company. The Group
lodged objections to the IRD against these protective
assessments.

)
GEMBRRME (&)

31 December 2022 —E - ~—F+=-H=+—H

10. FR1SBiFA X (m

EBFRER (BKER] E1TH
Bl S ()

RZE—XRNE+_A=-+hIH HKE
BREOTAMARREFTHBRARNRS
T2/ ——FHEFEBEHE=
T——F A=+ HULIHKREE)Z
IR B 1% 7 15 B 5 54 48 %8 £47,305,500
I (#)EE R AR #39,543,0000T) °
AEBERZREHIRERARBEBHIE
ERE e

R-F—tE+-A-+N\R - B
RSETAGAATETHERRNS
T/ CE - HEEE (DRES

E——_FZA=ZF+—HUEFHRFE)Z
IREE 715 7 57 T2 48 %8 52,779,500/8
TT (488 N AR #2,323,0005T) ° &
EERZRBEUETIHENTEERIEE
[ o

RZE—NF—A=1+HB HERS
TRAMARRAETHBEBRAANR-E
——/ZE—=FHHEE@EE=Z
—ZEZAZ+-BUMBEE) 2R
FE M FI) 15 76 AT B 48 58 56,229,00075 7T
(%88 AR ¥5,519,0005T) ° A&
ERZAREETIRERNTEERRER
4 o

RZE-_ZTF=ZA+-H HRERBS
ARHEARBETHBARNR-ZE
— =/ NHHEEE(AHEE_Z
—MNEZA=Z+—BLEFHRFE) ZR
ﬁa\ﬁu ST AR 4258 5834,0008 7T (49
HE N ARE702,0007T) © A% @5t
ZREHIRERNRERIREERY -

%:;:*E*ﬂﬂﬁ'ﬁ%%%ﬁ
AEARRRETHEBARNR T —M
S IE-AFEFEE (REE-Z—N
F+-_AZ+— ALY HRERE) 2RE
MR 15 B AT B 48 B8 2678,00058 7T (49
HE N AR®S71,0007T) © AN & B 37t
ZREUHTIRERNRERIRERY -
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10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

Tax audit conducted by the Inland Revenue
Department (“IRD”) in Hong Kong (Continued)

On 16 March 2022, the IRD additionally issued protective
profits tax assessments in aggregate of HK$678,000
(approximately equivalent to RMB554,000) relating to the year
of assessment 2015/16, that is, for the financial period ended
31 December 2015, against certain subsidiaries of the
Company. The Group lodged objections to the IRD against
these protective assessments.

Up to 31 December 2022, the IRD had issued protective profits
tax assessments in an aggregate amount of HK$157,730,000
(approximately equivalent to RMB134,342,000) for the years of
assessment from 2005/06 to 2015/16. The Group has lodged
objections against these protective profits tax assessments
and the IRD has agreed to hold over the tax demanded for
these years of assessment on the condition that the Group
purchased tax reserve certificates in an aggregate amount of
HK$30,500,000 (approximately equivalent to RMB27,245,000)
(2021: HK$30,500,000 (approximately equivalent to
RMB24,937,000)), which has been recorded as tax reserve
certificates under “Prepayments, other receivables and other
assets” in note 21 to the financial statements. The directors of
the Company are of the opinion that no Hong Kong profits tax
is payable by the Group as the subsidiaries in question did not
carry on any business, nor derive any profits, in Hong Kong.
Accordingly, no additional provision for Hong Kong profits tax
is considered necessary in respect of the tax audit.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUE

11. DISCONTINUED OPERATION

On 7 December 2021, the Company announced the decision to
suspend its business of regulated activity under the Securities
and Futures Ordinance of Tongfang Securities, an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and ceased to take
on new clients with effect from 8 December 2021 and would
gradually terminate the relationship with its existing clients
in respect of the business of type 1 regulated activity.
Furthermore, the board of directors of the Company has
determined to suspend asset management services, investment
advisory services and money lending business carried out by
Tongfang Securities, its subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries
(collectively known as the “Securities Group”) during the prior
year. As a result, the Securities Group was classified as a
discontinued operation. With the Securities Group being
classified as a discontinued operation, the securities segment
which consisted of asset management services, investment
advisory services and securities trading is no longer included in
the note for operating segment information.

The results of the Securities Group for the year are presented
below:

)
REMBHRERME (F)

31 December 2022 — - —®+_-A=+—H

11. CRIEREEK

RZE-_—F+=AtH &2
MRTEEADRMEE %éW%
HE-%%-%&%;MWETZX
EEEHES B -_FE=-—F1+=A
NBREEFELESHER  UHEPK
TEBERFEFIBAIEEEHER
FTHEMER N RRBEEER
iiﬁ&* FHEAFES  EHB
NEIRBAREMNBRAR (KBAIEHE
Dﬁ%%é?"ﬁ%% WEEH
B EmEZL At BHFEED
MADKRIKEEETR- “%%%E
DHEAERIEKEEER BEEES
E@HE%% REZHARBREEHFRHH

BHIDHTHBIALEDTERD
Waf"

EFEEFANEEZI/0T :

2022 2021

=== - —4F

RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARET T ARET T

Revenue N 423 10,672

Other income, gains and losses, net HMA -~ Wk EEFE (2,264) 7,087

Provision for impairment, net (note 6) LB B E R R (M 7E6) (14,151) (178,947)

Selling and distribution expenses HERDHMAX - (2,673)

Administrative expenses ITHFH X (19,934) (57,858)

Finance costs B 7 Ak A (130) (295)
Loss before tax from the discontinued B4R 11 48 2 575 1 B B AT IS

operation B (36,056) (222,014)

Income tax credit S H 157 1,235

Loss for the year from the discontinued PRI EEBH
operation FREIE (35,899) (220,779)

BARRERERA o T _FFW
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
l'/T\ = Eﬁﬁ%#&%ﬁﬁuf (n,\)

31 December 2022 — - —F+_-A=+—H

11. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (continued) M. ERLRBREXE @
The net cash flows incurred by the Securities Group are as BHREEREGENHRSREFHEOT
follows:
2022 2021
—E=-= - —F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥T ARBETT
Operating activities K EE) (18,530) (30,735)
Investing activities WEEE 380 31,222
Financing activities BEED (31,368) (82,332)
Net cash outflow RE&mt 55 (49,518) (81,845)
Loss per share: T EE
Basic and diluted, from the AERKREE  Raa &It RMB(1.71) cents  RMB(10.54) cents
discontinued operation TS AEENINS ARBO054)D
The calculations of basic and diluted loss per share from the REERIKEEBFNTRERN K&
discontinued operation are based on: BEEENTERER
2022 2021
- —E-—F
Loss attributable to ordinary equity & E D& IF QB EBH RMB RMB
holders of the parent from the BRAREBEAFAA AR AR
discontinued operation FE(hEE 35,899,000 220,779,000
Weighted average number of AR EGRERREEE
ordinary shares in issue during the BRAFEEBRITEER
year used in the basic and diluted niEFH 8 (HEE13)
loss per share calculation (note 13) 2,094,465,417 2,094,465,417
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13.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

DIVIDENDS

The Directors did not recommend the declaration of any
dividend for the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The calculation of the basic earnings/(loss) per share amount is
based on the profit/(loss) for the year attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the parent, and the weighted average number
of ordinary shares of 2,094,465,417 (2021: 2,094,465,417) in
issue during the year.

The computation of diluted earnings/(loss) per share does not
assume the exercise of a subsidiary of the Company’s
outstanding share options for the years ended 31 December
2022 and 2021 because the exercise price of those share
options was higher than the price of a subsidiary of the
Company’s share during the years.

The Company had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in
issue during the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

REUMBHERRME (F)

31 December 2022 — - —®+_-A=+—H

12.

13.

[ g=\

EETEZREBEE_TS__FR_F
T+ - A=+—HLEEKME
AR & o

BRAAEEREREARE
BRERN(BHE)

BREARAEF (BB BT E HRIE
HRRE@ERERE ABRGFERNRT
(BB RERD 17T L @A A hnE
F1982,094,465,4170% (Z B = —4 :
2,094,465,4170%) 51 & -

HEe_Z-_—_Frk-_FT=—F+=A
=+—BHLEFE BREAQFAWBEAQ
AMRTEERENTEESRZSE
FEARARARMKMBARBRGHFEEM
& Al HESREERF, (BE)
Bl R RS % SRR EIT(E -

ARaREBEE-_TE-_—_FR_FT - —
F+ - A=+ HIFELEEEH
BEBRK-

2022 2021
—s=-= =
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AREBT T ARETIT
Profit/(loss) attributable to ordinary equity Al S SRERKEFRF
gy =1 g 1\ = stz
holders of the parent, used in the basic (Eﬁgz H;fﬁﬁﬁ GORSIASIRS
and diluted earnings/(loss) per share @;ﬁ*ﬁg‘éﬁé;%ﬁ
calculation A a 48,771 (272,178)
Attributable to: JEAh
Continuing operations SEEEE 84,670 (51,399)
Discontinued operation ERIEREER (35,899) (220,779)
48,771 (272,178)
RARREREEAT o —E-_FFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ReMBHRRME (F)

31 December 2022 — - —F+_-A=+—H

13. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE PARENT (continued)

13. BRAEERESEAEM

BRER (BB @
2022 2021
—E=-= T
Number of Number of
shares shares
B2 & H gvE 2 qE]

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue during the year used in
the basic and diluted earnings/(loss)
per share calculation

AEESRERREERATN,
(BR)BEANFACD S
178 i A 9 N S 19 21

2,094,465,417 2,094,465,417

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14. ¥ - BERRE

Furniture,
Leasehold ~ Plantand fixtures and Motor
Buildings improvements  machinery  equipment vehicles Moulds Total
HE
i3
BT AELE HRERES R¥%fE RE BB it
RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT  ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
31 December 2022 ZEIZE+CZAZ+-H
At 1 January 2022: R-B--E-f-R:
Cost WA 80,407 53,360 102,638 26,542 11,215 4,951 279,113
Accumulated depreciation 2iTE (68,657) (42,865  (94547)  (22,691) (8222) (4316)  (241,298)
Net carrying amount FEEE 11,750 10,495 8,091 3,851 2,993 635 37,815
At 1 January 2022, net of R-Z--f5-F-B°
accumulated depreciation NREGE 11,750 10,495 8,091 3,851 2,993 635 37,815
Additions FE - 3,362 785 1,355 36 303 5,841
Disposals HE - (1) (196) (61) - (53) (311)
Depreciation provided during ~ £REHE
the year (2,086) (3.752) (1,729) (1,611) (933) (341) (10452
Exchange realignment EXEE % 25 265 261 29 2 1,031
At 31 December 2022, net of A—E--E+-RA=1-R-
accumulated depreciation TR EiHE 9,688 10,329 7,216 3,795 2325 571 33,924
At 31 December 2022; R-F--#+-A=+-R:
Cost WA 80,456 58,927 108,473 28,878 11,550 5,338 293,622
Accumulated depreciation ZitE (70,768) (48598) (101,257 (25,083) (9,225) (4767)  (259,698)
Net carrying amount KE%E 9,688 10,329 7,216 3,79 2,325 571 33,924
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBEBRME (F)
31 December 2022 — - —®+_-A=+—H

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

14. V¥ - BERRZRE @

Furniture,
Leasehold Plantand fixtures and Motor
Buildings improvements  machinery  equipment vehicles Moulds Total
friE
EEkE
BF HERE BELES Rk kS [E4 it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARBTR ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETI
31 December 2021 “ET-EtZR=1-H
At 1 January 2021: WZEZ-§-A-R:
Cost A 79,714 51,750 107,167 32,951 10,562 4573 286,717
Accumulated depreciation ZiHE (67287)  (32,7%)  (97.976)  (28,010) (8,641) (3883)  (238,587)
Net carrying amount EHFE 12,427 18,960 9,191 4941 1,921 690 48,130
At 1 January 2021, net of RZZZ-5-f-R Hk
accumulated depreciation ZitiE 12,427 18,960 9,191 4,941 1,921 690 48,130
Additions AE 695 2,389 1M 1,221 2,455 495 8,366
Disposals e - (17) (230) (167) (404) (65) (883)
Depreciation provided during ERiEAE
the year (1,370) (10,786) (1,785) (2,062) (924) (482) (17,409)
Exchange realignment R % ) (51) (19) (82) (55) B3) (389)
At 31 December 2021, net of \EC-E+ZA=+-H-
accumulated depreciation NE2HAE 11,750 10,495 8,091 3,851 2,993 635 37,815
At 31 December 2021: RZE--E+ZA=z1-H:
Cost A 80,407 53,360 102,638 26,542 11,215 4,951 279,113
Accumulated depreciation ZiHE (68,657) (42,865  (4547)  (22,691) (8,222) (4316)  (241,298)
Net carrying amount EHFE 11,750 10,495 8,091 3,851 2,993 635 37815
RAERRBERERAR « —F-—FFH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BEMBRRME (&)

31 December 2022 —E - —F+=-H=+—H

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 15. REW=*
Commercial Industrial
properties properties Total
[HEZ2ES TEME BEr
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT
Carrying amount at 1 January 2021 RZZ=Z—F—H—H®
fREE 37,018 37,423 74,441
Net losses from fair value adjustment R HERH A 5 EEH
recognised in profit or loss HEEEFRE (2,066) (3,957) (6,023)
Exchange realignment (ERAEEE S (724) (224) (948)
Carrying amount at 31 December WZ-ZT-—F+_-A
2021 and 1 January 2022 [ el = ==
—A—BMEEE 34,228 33,242 67,470
Net gains/(losses) from fair value REZBROAREEBR
adjustment recognised in Bl (EE)F8
profit or loss (1,513) 3,059 1,546
Exchange realignment BE A EE 2,247 2,246 4,493
Carrying amount at 31 December RZE-—F+— A
2022 =+ —HHKREE 34,962 38,547 73,509
The Group's investment properties consist of 19 (2021: 19) AEENRENER P B K e

commercial properties in the PRC and Dubai and 11 (2021: 11)
industrial properties in Vietnam and the PRC. The directors of
the Company determined that the Group’s investment
properties consist of different classes of assets based on the
nature, characteristics and risks of each property. The Group's
investment properties were revalued on 31 December 2022
based on valuations performed by Roma Appraisals Limited, an
independent professionally qualified valuer.

The investment properties are leased to third parties under

operating leases, further summary details of which are included
in note 16 to the financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBEBRME (F)
31 December 2022 — - —®+_-A=+—H

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 15. REWE w0
Fair value hierarchy AREBEER
The following table illustrates the fair value measurement TRHAAREEREMEN AR EE
hierarchy of the Group's investment properties: AERER

Fair value measurement
as at 31 December 2022 using
R-®==Ft=A=+-AN

ARABEFERA

Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
EEME EATER EATTEE
HRE BANE BAYE
(B—4R) (B=8) (B=4) @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETR AR®T R ARET R

Recurring fair value measurement for: & HEA L BEFE
Investment properties REWE - - 73,509 73,509

Fair value measurement
as at 31 December 2021 using
RZFZ-F+ZA=1T—8H

AnEEFERA
Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

aRmE  BEAUBE EATUEER
MEE BABR BARE

(&) (=) (B=H) st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTE ARETRT ARETRT AR%TR

Recurring fair value measurement for: & HEA L BEFE

Investment properties REME - = 67,470 67,470
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value EW; %*%&éﬁi%f%&ZF&Jjﬁ,ﬁ’&ﬁ
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers ?Tﬁﬁ'zﬁ%ﬁé CRERNEAABE
into or out of Level 3 (2021: Nil). RFEBARBL (ZF_—F:8) -

RARKIERBRAR o —TE- —FEHf 193



194

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

AN

Fiy

(=)

MEmEAME (F)

31 December 2022 — - —F+_-A=+—H

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised within

15. BEWY ¥ )

NREERE&K @

AABEBRE=ZRKD>ENLAREE

|

Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy: FTEHER
Commercial Industrial
properties properties Total
[SEZ2ES TEWME BEr
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFT AREBTT
Carrying amount at 1 January 2021 RZZ=_—F—AF—HK
REE 37,018 37,423 74,441
Net losses from fair value adjustment R 1E25 HER A A 72 B E
recognised in profit or loss BEEFH (2,066) (3,957) (6,023)
Exchange realignment ME 5% (724) (224) (948)
Carrying amount at 31 December RZEZ—F+=HA
2021 and 1 January 2022 =t+—-BRk=Z%=Z
—A—BWKEE 34,228 33,242 67,470
Net gains/(losses) from fair value REZBRHARERBA
adjustment recognised in Bl (EBE) 78
profit or loss (1,513) 3,059 1,546
Exchange realignment ER AR 2,247 2,246 4,493
Carrying amount at RZBEZZF+=A
31 December 2022 =+—BHKREE 34,962 38,547 73,509
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15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBBRRKE (E)
31 December 2022 — - —®+_-A=+—H

15. REWZE @)

Set out below is a summary of the valuation techniques used
and the key inputs to the valuation of investment properties:

DA 8 3508 ) 3 L5 PR 0 £ LA
REBHABRBHES :

Range or weighted average

EERMETHE
Valuation techniques Significant unobservable inputs 2022 2021
EER EXTTBEERAYE ZBICZF “E--F
Commercial properties Direct comparison approach Prevailing market price (per sq.m.) RMB24,303 to RMB20,673 to
RMB34,161 RMB38,087
[EEZ/ES ERLBE ERmE(ETAK) AE¥23037Z AR¥20673TE
AR¥34,1617 AR 38,0877
Industrial properties Depreciated replacement Construction cost (per sq.m.) RMB1,257 to RMB1,093 to
cost approach RMB1,580 RMB1,448
I5m% REEENAZ BEKAR(BFHK) AE¥1257TE  AR¥1,0931%
AR%1,5807C AR#1,4487C

Direct comparison approach

Fair value of investment properties is generally derived using
the direct comparison method.

The valuation was arrived at by adopting the direct comparison
approach with reference to the recent transactions of similar
properties under the prevailing property market conditions. A
significant increase (decrease) in the prevailing market price in
isolation would result in a significant increase (decrease) in the
fair value of the investment properties.

Depreciated replacement cost approach

The depreciated replacement cost approach considers the cost
to reproduce or replace in new condition the property appraised
in accordance with current construction costs for similar
property in the locality, with allowance for accrued depreciation
as evidenced by observed condition or obsolescence, whether
arising from physical, functional or economic causes. A
significant increase (decrease) in cost of construction would
result in a significant increase (decrease) in the fair values of
completed investment properties.

BEELLBS

REMENAABEBTEREREL
BOARTH -

ZEEL2ERBEMWETRTEUD
EHIRXSRMBERLEBORER -
ERTMEEBAEENCORD) EEH
BREMERAAEBEKREEZNORD) »

FEEERAE

FEEERNEDREREAEUD
ERBENEERAZ B EYEER
BATHEEXBERA  REHK
BERARNKELRR(TREDE
T RE A B IE i T 5l 2 ) P RE B RO B ST
PrEERE o R AEFAIRE I OBl )
HERERTRENERAARBEANRE
BamORD) -

RATRRZERERRDR o —T— —FFH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BEMBERRMWE (K)

31 December 2022 — - —F+_-A=+—H

16. LEASES

The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for various properties used in its
operations. Lump sum payments were made upfront to acquire
the leased land from the owners with lease periods of 49 to 50
years, and no ongoing payments will be made under the terms
of these land leases. Leases of offices and warehouses generally
have lease terms between 2 and 7 years. Generally, the Group
is restricted from assigning and subleasing the leased assets
outside the Group. There is a lease contract that includes an
extension option, which is further discussed below.

(a) Right-of-use assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets
and the movements during the year are as follows:

16. HE

AEBEREBAA

AEEREETERNZEYERE
HEAHY AEEEXN—REMK
ABHEA ABRGHEE L HE R4
E50F  WRETHERAKEFTE
HFBENK - PRAEREENEH—
BNF2ETHE - —KRME - AKET
BRAKB 2D IRABHEEEE
—HHEERNERENEER HR

TX -

(a) FHEEE
AEBFRAEEENEEAENLT
WEEBH T -

Leasehold Offices and

land warehouses Total
HELH HAEMEE HET
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARETT ARBTT

As at 1 January 2021 WZZE-—F—H—H 12,897 20,341 33,238
Additions RNE - 18,888 18,888
Modification T - 19,365 19,365
Disposal k= (982) - (982)
Depreciation charges MERY (360) (14,307) (14,667)
Exchange realignment P R (24) (345) (369)
As at 31 December 2021 and RZEBZ—F+_H
1 January 2022 [ bl = =i

—H—H 11,531 43,942 55,473
Modification EE - 11,871 11,871
Depreciation charges TERY (353) (12,695) (13,048)
Exchange realignment (A= 233 3,486 3,719
As at 31 December 2022 A —

=or—1z] 11,411 46,604 58,015
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBEBRME (F)
31 December 2022 — - —®+_-A=+—H

16. LEASES (continued) 16. #HE @)

(b) HERE
REAENREERFAESHN

(b) Lease liabilities

The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements

during the year are as follows:

T

2022 2021

—E=-= T

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARBTT

Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BA/RHEE 46,143 20,828

New leases WAl EE - 18,888

Modification &5 11,871 19,365
Accretion of interest recognised FAERIER A

during the year 1,569 1,472

Payments (NEA (13,558) (14,010)

Exchange realignment (ERzIERES 3,720 (400)

Carrying amount at 31 December R+ A=+—BREAE 49,745 46,143

Analysed into: DA

Current portion BIHAER 7 10,009 11,887

Non-current portion JEENEAES 39,736 34,256

49,745 46,143

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note

41 to the financial statements.

HEBENIIHBEOMEERY

HmE W TS -

RATRRZERERAR o

R FFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REeMBBMRME (F)
31 December 2022 — - —F+_-A=+—H

16. LEASES (Continued)

(o)

(e)

16. HE @)

The amounts recognised in profit or loss in (c) REZERBERZNEERE
relation to leases are as follows: MIEWR
2022 2021
—E:-= —E-—
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBFT  AREBFT
Interest on lease liabilities HEBEMNE 1,569 1,472
Depreciation charge of right-of-use TRAEEEFTERX
assets 13,048 14,667
Expense relating to short-term leases HEHAERBENMX
(included in administrative expense) (FREATTHRA) 215 471
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 7182k A fEGR KO 48 58 14,832 16,610

(d) The total cash outflow for leases is (d) HENRSRHAERSE
disclosed in note 34(c) to the financial A B 75 3R] 3R Mt 5E34(c) °
statements.

Extension option (e) EHRER
The Group had a lease contract that included an extension %ﬁﬁ/\\tfgﬁj@ﬁ%é\kﬂj
option in prior year. This option was negotiated by fﬁﬁ%/ﬁﬂi&%{f?o EZEI}EETEEE
. L . EREERANELIEREHEEEE
management to provide flexibility in managing the 48 A BN B ) TS SR AR o
leased-asset portfolio and it was aligned with the Group’s NEAEETHERSANES SR
business needs. No lease contracts have extension options BERE. TYXHINLEETES
in the current year. Set out below were the undiscounted REAERRAREEREZE
potential future rental payments relating to periods T A MR EEARN RITRE
following the exercise date of extension option that were ERREE XM
not included in the lease terms in the prior year:
Payable Payable
within after
2021 five years five years Total
—T-—fF EFRXN Fi S AN 5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ETFTT ARETF T ARETF T
Extension option expected TEHiAREITEZ
not to be exercised BRI 1,734 10,405 12,139
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBBRRKE (E)
31 December 2022 — - —®+_-A=+—H

16. LEASES (Continued) 16. & =)

The Group as a lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note 15) consisting
of 16 commercial properties in the PRC and Dubai and 8
industrial properties in Vietnam and the PRC under operating
lease arrangements. The terms of the leases generally require
the tenants to pay security deposits. Rental income recognised
by the Group during the year was RMB7,338,000 (2021:
RMB6,568,000), details of which are included in note 5 to the
financial statements.

At 31 December 2022, the undiscounted leases payments
receivable by the Group in future periods under non-cancellable
operating leases with its tenants are as follows:

AEBERHAA

AEBRBEEKLEHELTHEHEERE
Y (H5E15)  BIEAR PR K @EF
MIEEEYERURBE LS BEH
NETEYWE-HEF—REBERERE
BCREZAFE AEEBRFRNERL
HeaWABARE?,338,000T (=F
——%: AR#¥6,568,0007T) © HF1E
B B IS SRR P RS o

R-ZE-_—_F+-_F=+—H X&
EREHEBLPIIVMNT AL 2
ERARRBAEERNARITRBENK
m

2022 2021

—E-= —E-—
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR F T
Within one year —FR 7.132 9,727
After one year but within two years —FIREMFNR 6,529 9,195
After two years but within three years MFEBRE=FR 976 9,117
After three years but within four years —FBRENFR 1,025 405
After four years but within five years WERERFNR 1,010 397
After five years hFE& 728 1,109
17,400 29,950

RATRRZERERRDR o —T— —FFH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REMBHERRME (F)

31 December 2022 — - —F+_-A=+—H

17. GOODWILL 17. B8
RMB’'000
ARBFT
At 1 January 2021: RZE=-—F—A—A8:
Cost (DN 207,208
Accumulated impairment ZETRE (20,027)
Net carrying amount REFE 187,181
Cost at 1 January 2021, net of accumulated RZEZ—F—A—HBHOKE -
impairment Mk 25HRE 187,181
Impairment during the year FRBAE (103,021)
Exchange realignment PE 7 58 2 (3,081)
Net carrying amount at 31 December 2021 R_E_—F+_A=+—H
B BR EDFE 81,079
At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 RZEZ—F+ZA=+—HBK
T —%—HA—H:
Cost B 7R 201,809
Accumulated impairment ZEHRE (120,730)
Net carrying amount REFE 81,079
Cost at 1 January 2022, net of accumulated RZEBEZ_—_F—A—HHEE -
impairment Mk RFHRE 81,079
Exchange realignment HE H, 8 B 7,488
Net carrying amount at 31 December 2022 RZE-_—_F+-_A=+—8H
0B FE 88,567
At 31 December 2022: RZE-_Z_F+—A=+—8:
Cost (%N 220,470
Accumulated impairment ZEtRE (131,903)
Net carrying amount REFE 88,567
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17. GOODWILL (Continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBERRME ()
31 December 2022 —E - ~—F+=-H=+—H

17. BE @)

Impairment testing of goodwill

Goodwill acquired through business combinations is allocated
to the following cash-generating units for impairment testing:

° USA lighting cash-generating unit for Novelty Lights, LLC;

° USA lighting cash-generating unit for Tivoli, LLC (fully
impaired in 2021); and

o Securities cash-generating unit (fully impaired in 2021)

USA lighting cash-generating unit for Novelty
Lights, LLC

The recoverable amount of this USA lighting cash-generating
unit has been determined based on a value in use calculation
using cash flow projections based on financial budgets covering
a five-year period approved by senior management. The
discount rate applied to the cash flow projections is 9.09%
(2021: 11.51%). The growth rate used to extrapolate the cash
flows beyond the five-year period is 2.2% (2021: 2.9%).

USA lighting cash-generating unit for Tivoli, LLC
(fully impaired in 2021)

The recoverable amount of this USA lighting cash-generating
unit has been determined based on a value in use calculation
using cash flow projections based on financial budgets covering
a five-year period approved by senior management. The
discount rate applied to the cash flow projections for the year
ended 31 December 2021 was 11.04%. The growth rate used
to extrapolate the cash flows for the year ended 31 December
2021 beyond the five-year period was 2.9%.

During the prior year, the Group performed its annual
impairment test as at 31 December 2021. As the estimated
recoverable amount of USA lighting cash-generating unit for
Tivoli, LLC of approximately RMB19.2 million was lower than its
carrying amount due to the continuing impact by covid-19
pandemic that the demand for architectural and theater
LED-based products in USA decreased, in the opinion of the
directors of the Company, full impairment was required as at
31 December 2021. As a result, an impairment loss of
RMB8,056,000 was recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss during the prior year (note 6).

R (E R

EREBAHEANTEE
THEEASMETRENR

D EE

. ZERBRHRSEELEN (5
Novelty Lights, LLCTI 5 )

FEERRAAIR ¢ E L BN (FiTivoli,
LLCME) (R - —F2HR
E): &

s BrHESELAEN(R-FT—-—
ii%ﬁmﬂﬁ)

EEREHRTELEN (5
Novelty Lights, LLCT] &)

ZEBBBARcEAEMNNTRE £
BhEBRReELEMNZFERAEET
BT O FAEEAENBRESRE
BEEMEZEFHUBRBEEERZ
Bernemilsd -Re A FT
AR R A9.09% (T — — &
11.51%) - ARHH AT RRE R E
FIEREAE2 2% (CE-—4F:29%) °

AR B IE £EF EAV (BETivoli,
LLCHE)(R=FE=—F2Z B E)

ZEBEBAREESBMHNA KE£5E
ET?E”fEéFEET\iZﬁﬁHF{E?r%
BE FREBEFENREBESREREE
HE AFEHPRER f/lfuujziﬁimb
EEAGE -REBEE_T_—F+_A
—t+—HLEFE RerREEANFAAN
MBBEER/NN0M4% REBEE_T-—F
TZA=T—BILEE AREERE
BREREAIEREAE2.9% °

REFE AEEBETHZ-F
T+ -_A=Zt+—HOFEREN
HA-BAREFTEREBENRESE X
B EEMZITALEDERM BT
[& - =B PREAIR & & 4 B U (FiTivoli,
LLCME) M B BEHOARE
192BEE T ERERAEBE AAFE
ERBR _ZE-—F+_-_A=+—H
BERBRE At ELFENGZEE
Bk 2R ARYS 056,0007T B 5
B8 (fisEe6) ©

BARRERERA o T _FFW
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

AN

Fiy

(=)

MEmEAME (F)

31 December 2022 — - —F+_-A=+—H

17. GOODWILL (Continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill (Continued)

Securities cash-generating unit (fully impaired in
2021)

The recoverable amount of the Securities cash-generating unit
has been determined based on fair value less costs of disposal
using cash flow projections based on financial budgets covering
a five-year period approved by senior management. The
discount rate applied to the cash flow projections for the year
ended 31 December 2021 was 13.9%. The growth rate used to
extrapolate the cash flows of the financial services for the year
ended 31 December 2021 beyond the five-year period was
2.0%.

During the prior year, due to the fluctuation of the capital
market and change in the Group's strategy and outlook of the
securities cash-generating unit (as detailed in note 11 to the
financial statements), management reassessed the recoverable
amount of this cash-generating unit was approximately RMB300
million which was lower than its carrying amount. Accordingly,
an additional impairment of RMB94,965,000 was recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss during the prior
year (note 6).

The carrying amount of goodwill allocated to the cash-generating
unit is as follows:

17. BE @)

BHERE A @)

BFELHTEFEN(R=-F=-—
F2EBE)

BERCEALAEMNTRE S5 L
BRECELESBUZAABERDENK
REE DABERHEEKANTRIE
SREEEMN A AFHTRIEEE
HrzBREeREBASEH REBEE-Z
——F+-_A=+-—BLEFE RE
METRRFTAMENIRE A13.9%  REL
EE-_—F+_A=+—HILEFE"
BREBAFESBRBRERSAED
HEEKE20% -

REFE BREAMSNESH AL
AEBYUESRSELEEMUNERBE
LAis 88 (FEHRY B HRENT
M) BEEEBEVNTEZReELESM
RA el BEHAARKI00EET
BERERMEE - At BINEEORAE
A R #94,965,000T B 7 £ F EE 4L
GiEmRER (Miske) o

PEEZBRCELENNBENERER
BT -

2022 2021
—E-= —EF-—F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®ET T ARBTT
USA lighting cash-generating unit for FERBPARSEESN
Novelty Lights, LLC (BNovelty Lights, LLCi1 &) 88,567 81,079
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBERRME ()
31 December 2022 —E - ~—F+=-H=+—H

17. GOODWILL (Continued) 17. BE @)

Impairment testing of goodwill (Continued)

Assumptions were used in the cash flow projections of the USA
Lighting and Securities cash-generating units for 31 December
2022 and 2021. The following describes each key assumption
on which management has based its cash flow projections to
undertake impairment testing of goodwill:

Budgeted gross margins — The basis used to determine the
value assigned to the budgeted gross margins is the average
gross margins achieved in the year immediately before the
budget year, increased for expected efficiency improvements,
and expected market development.

Discount rates — The discount rates used are before tax and
reflect specific risks relating to the relevant units.

Growth rates — The growth rates are determined with reference
to the growth rate for the relevant units, adjusted for relevant
businesses and market development, and economic condition.

The values assigned to the key assumptions on market
development of USA lighting and securities industries, budgeted
gross margins, discount rates and growth rates are consistent
with external information sources.

BHERE RS @)

FE—E - _FR_FT—F+=A
T+ BEERPEAEFBESELE
VMRS REEABERT BRE - U
THEEEEAETEHERMENH -
FRETRSRAEBABIELNTE
R

BEENX-NBEEFEM—FFAE
MFHEMNELER RETREE
MENEE BEEMNXIZBEHOR
RYGE RIS ERMIE N o

BERE PR MR E ARBE Y
B4 18 37 [ 6t 54 BB 7 4 B 0 5

g o
ZoN

BEX-BRXZ2EZHEMELNEER
RORHEEBEBRTSERAR
RBERRRERE °

HXBERAMRBHFTEZTSERREZ
FREE BEEME  RBR X R
RO EREINRERRRE B -

BAARRIEREBRRAG o —_T-_FFf
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REeMBBMRME (F)
31 December 2022 — - —F+_-A=+—H

18. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

18. Htt B EE

Deferred
Securities development
Patent licences Software costs Total
E4i] BHEER g BREAA @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBT R ARETR AR%ETR ARETR
31 December 2022 —E--E+ZA=+-H
At 1 January 2022: R-ZE--#-f-R:
Cost KA 47,654 10,220 6,921 42,500 107,295
Accumulated amortisation 2t & (43,703) (10,220) (5.120) (30,886) (89,929)
Net carrying amount REFE 3,951 - 1,801 11,614 17,366
Cost at 1 January 2022, net of RZEZZ5-A-BH
accumulated amortisation A 1R 25HEE 3 3,951 - 1,801 11,614 17,366
Additions RE - - 812 3,421 4,233
Amortisation provided during the year Iz (1,186) - (1,582) 2.714) (5,509)
Exchange realignment ERAE 1,047 - 125 4,987 6,159
At 31 December 2022 i —a
+-A=+-H° 3,812 - 1,156 17,281 22,249
At 31 December 2022: RZBZZF
+-R=1+-8:
Cost A 51,639 11,166 8,304 45,922 117,031
Accumulated amortisation KB (47,827) (11,166) (7.148) (28,641) (94,782)
Net carrying amount REFE 3,812 - 1,156 17,281 22,249
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBEBRME (F)
31 December 2022 — - —®+_-A=+—H

18. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 18. Hitt M & E @)
Deferred
Securities development
Patent licences Software costs Total
B
) BHER g RER A @it

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTL  ARRTR  ARETR  ARRTT  ARETR

31 December 2021 ZEZ-£4+ZF=1-H
At 1 January 2021: RZZZ-5-A-H:

Cost A 50,366 10,521 7,088 37,394 105,369

Accumulated amortisation RErEE (43,352) (4,040) (3,850) (18,436) (69,678)
Net carrying amount RHFE 7,014 6,481 3,238 18,958 35,691
Cost at 1 January 2021, net of R-E--F—F—Hf

accumulated amortisation AR R BGHEH 7,014 6,481 3,238 18,958 35,691
Additions RE - - 109 5,448 5,557
Amortisation provided during the year & PzHH2 4 (1,127) (996) (1,489) (6,452) (10,064)
Write-off ik - - - (342) (342)
Impairment during the year ERRE - (5,320) - (2,669) (7,989)
Exchange realignment [ 5% (1,936) (165) (57) (3,329) (5,487)
At 31 December 2021 i

+-f=t+-8 3,951 - 1,801 11,614 17,366
At 31 December 2021 W-Z--F
T-A=+-8:

Cost A 47,654 10,220 6,921 42,500 107,295

Accumulated amortisation Kt (43,703) (10,220) (5,120) (30,886) (89,929)
Net carrying amount RHFE 3,951 - 1,801 11,614 17,366
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBERME (E)

31 December 2022 — - —F+_-A=+—H

19. INVENTORIES

19. 78

2022 2021

—E-= T —%F

RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARBT T AREF T

Raw materials R R 24,534 30,894
Work in progress £ & 6,003 8,319
Finished goods BIK on 145,635 124,615
176,172 163,828

At 31 December 2022, the Group’s inventories with a carrying
amount of RMB148,613,000 (2021: RMB121,071,000) were
pledged as security for the Group’s bank loans and certain
banking facilities granted to the Group, as further detailed in
note 27(a) to the financial statements.

R-ZZE-_—_F+-_A=+—H 4%
BER®EEAAR148,613,0000T (=
T - —4F: AR%121,071,0007T)
FEEHEBEALASERTER LR
AEBERH A TRITHENER

20. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

#E—BFBHENERKRME27(@)

20. EREZRRAREKRREE

2022 2021

—=E-= —E-—4F

RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARET AREF T

Trade receivables B E 5 BRI 134,582 148,632
Bills receivables FEUR ZE iE 126 577
Less: Impairment loss on trade receivables & : EUCE 5 B8R FORE B 18 (5,890) (7,660)
Less: Impairment loss on bills receivables & : B E B REEE - (3)
128,818 141,546

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on
credit, except for new customers, where payment in advance is
normally required. The credit period is generally one month,
extending up to six months for major customers.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBERRME ()
31 December 2022 —E - ~—F+=-H=+—H

20. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued) 20. EWESREREKREE @)

PRC and USA lighting segments

Each customer has a maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to
maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables and has
a credit control department to minimise credit risk. Overdue
balances are reviewed regularly by senior management. In view
of the aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s trade
receivables relate to a large number of diversified customers,
there is no significant concentration of credit risk. The Group
does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over
its trade receivable balances. Trade receivables are
non-interest-bearing.

Securities segment

Each customer has a maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to
maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables and has
a credit control department to minimise credit risk. Overdue
balances are reviewed regularly by senior management. At the
end of the reporting period, the Group had certain
concentration of credit risk as 100% and 100% (2021: 60%
and 100%) of the total gross trade receivables was due from
the Group’s largest customer and the five largest customers,
respectively. The Group has suspended the business during the
prior year, as further detailed in note 11 to the financial
statements. The Group does not hold collateral over its trade
receivable balances. Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.

Included in the Group’s trade receivables are amounts due
from the Group’s related parties of RMB2,061,000 (2021:
RMB3,841,000) which are repayable on credit terms similar to
those offered to the major customers of the Group.

At 31 December 2022, the Group’s receivables with a carrying
amount of RMB75,581,000 (2021: RMB78,071,000) were
pledged as security for the Group’s bank loans and certain
banking facilities granted to the Group, as further detailed in
note 27 to the financial statements.

B Iz 3% Bl FR B 0 P

EEFERREEEE AKHEN
BEEHEREERERIE WEY
FEEENBASEERREERE -
BHAERESAETEEEHEN &
REARAEEERKVEZRFNEKE
EZRLEFPAR AKEATHFEE
REERBREFEL - AREREHHE
e E 5 8R4 R4 B A =X
HEEER - BFRESER AT

B o
1SN

& %508

ERFAEEEEERE ASBHN
BRI E R EEERRTE  WiET
EEZESTUABEERBRBEERIE -
Mg EeREEETHEN R
MEBHR AREWRE SRR BET
DRIBE100%K100% (—F — —F ¢
60% & 100% ) BER A EBHZ AR
FARBEFEFRE BAURASEE®RE—
THMEFREFEERR AEEBEN LEF
EEEFELEER E—PHFBHNH
BmEMEI - AEBERHHEWE
SERGEHFERETR -BWE SR
KETEE °

AEEMNEUNESERBRERASE
B B 5 r B AR 2,061,0005T (=
T~ —4F : AR¥3,841,0005T) @ AR
HEAEEFTEZRFPEREBERUMNEG

ERRER -

R-_ZTE-_—_F+-_A=+—H &£
B REE A ARKT75,581,000C (ZF
——%F: AR¥78,071,0007T) H JE Ut
HECHBERAESERITER LR
AEERHZAETFRITMENER
- BER T BREM 27

BAARRIEREBRRAG o —_T-_FFf
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REeMBBMRME (F)
31 December 2022 — - —F+_-A=+—H

20. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

An ageing analysis of the trade and bills receivables as at the
end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date and net

20. EREZFEREKREE @

REZZAHIASHRNRER RO E
WE ZRAR M ERRER (B EREE)

of loss allowance, is as follows: MR DT :
2022 2021
—E-CE —E--F
Lighting Securities Total Lighting Securities Total
RE # it FRHR E5 it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETR ARETR ARETR AREFT ARETR
Within 1 month 1AL A 55,683 - 55,683 125,622 265 125,887
1to 2 months 122/ A 35,797 - 35,797 5,722 - 5,722
210 3 months 223 A 15,915 - 15,915 4,349 - 4,349
310 6 months 3Z6fHA 14,126 - 14,126 2,447 - 2,447
Over 6 months 6EAM L 7,297 - 1,297 3,115 26 3,141
128,818 - 128,818 141,255 291 141,546

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade

BWESEAEERRENFERR

and bills receivables are as follows: BEEHOT
2022 2021
—EC-CE “E--F

Lighting Securities Total Lighting Securities Total

R #5 @t R & @it

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

AR¥TT ARETR ARBTR AREFT AREFT AREFTL

At beginning of the year 1A% 7,535 128 7,663 6,278 147 6,425
(Reversal)/provision of ~ (&Rl) /&f&iE

impairment losses, net ~ E5#E/5 (3,305) 159 (3,146) 2,852 117 2,969

Amount written off as  #UE A a1 E

uncollectable inkaks (148) - (148) (1,101) - (1,101)

Exchange realignment  [E 5% 1,508 13 1,521 (494) (136) (630)

At end of the year RER 5,590 300 5,890 7,535 128 7,663
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUE

20. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

PRC and USA lighting segments

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date
using a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses.
The provision rates are based on days past due and historical
repayment pattern. The calculation reflects the probability-weighted
outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and
supportable information that is available at the reporting date
about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions. Generally, trade receivables are written
off if past due for more than one year and are not subject to
enforcement activity.

Securities segment

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date
using a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses.
The provision rates are based on days past due and
historical repayment pattern. The calculation reflects the
probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money and
reasonable and supportable information that is available at the
reporting date about past events, current conditions and
forecasts of future economic conditions.

20. EWWE ZF

)
REMBHRERME (F)

31 December 2022 — - —®+_-A=+—H

RIEN EWRE =

FEREERBDH

NERERMRAREERETRE
AU EEHEEEBEE BEX
DERBHBBLEEERRXEE -
ZAERMAARMELR  E¥D
NEEBEELRRNREHHATENE#B
A=E B ARRREEMRNTE
AMEERATEER . —BME - &
WESEFNaBa—FRrRBEAR
PR 7 58 il #0177 )% B BI 7 LA 88 -

& %508

EHREAMRBBEEEETRHE
oM UETEBRHEEBER - BEX
L Eéﬁﬁ?@ﬁ)%ﬂ%(&iﬂﬁﬁ?ﬂﬁ‘ﬁ
BE - et B R EARKRINELS
Eﬁ@ﬁ’]ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ&ﬁé#&%ﬁ,ﬁﬁT
EE@%@E%E‘%%%%&*I%@‘
RRTEBIEN S IE R A SEE K »

7,3*

BARRERERA o T _FFW
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REeMBBMRME (F)
31 December 2022 — - —F+_-A=+—H

20. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued) 20. BEWEZREREBRERE @
Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure ATEINERBEREIELOBBAR
on the Group's trade and bills receivables using a provision SEEVESRAREEREEER
matrix: ey & x
As at 31 December 2022 R-ZBZZf+=ZH=+—H

Past due
ki
Current to
Less than Tto3  3months  1yearto  2yearsto Over
PRC and USA lighting segments 1 month months  to 1 year 2 years 3 years 3 years Total
HHz
TERZERES SR 12388 3fRZ1E 122§ 183% IFNL 5t
Expected credit loss rate RHCERER 0.22% 142% 299% 5.83% 7.84% 94.12%
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000)  BRELE (\RHTTT) 105,285 13,528 8,794 1,108 605 5088 134,408
Expected credit losses (RMB'000) EHEEFR(ARET) 234 192 263 65 4 4,789 5,590
Past due
Ik
Current to
Less than Tto3  3months  1yearto  2yearsto Over
Securities segment 1 month months  to 1year 2 years 3 years 3 years Total
HLE:
#5089 HMBA  1E3BR EAEMF 122F 223 3FNL #it
Expected credit loss rate BHEEERE NAFRER NATER NATER NATER NATER 100%
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) RELE(ARSTT) - - - - - 300 300
Expected credit losses (RMB'000) EHEEBE(ARETT) - - - - - 300 300
As at 31 December 2021 R-E-—F+_A=+—H
Past due
B
Current to
Less than 1103 3months Tyearto  2yearsto Over
PRC and USA lighting segments 1 month months to 1 year 2 years 3 years 3 years Total
I
HERXERASS SRMER 1BER EAEIE 1225 123 3ENE &t
Expected credit loss rate RHEERER 0.46% 247% 4.04% 6.43% 736%  9247%
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) RELE(ARSTT) 126,202 10,326 2,847 1,991 489 6,935 148,790
Expected credit losses (RMB'000) EHEEFR(ARET) 588 255 15 128 36 6413 7535
Past due
Ik
Current to
Less than Tto3 3 months Tyearto  2yearsto Over
Securities segment 1 month months to 1 year 2 years 3 years 3 years Total
S
EeE N | SMBA 1BER 3EAEIE 1225 223 3ENE @t
Expected credit loss rate BHEEHRE 536% NATER NATEE  NATER 81.29%  NATER
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) RELE(ARSTT) 280 = = 3 139 = 419
Expected credit losses (RMB'000) BHEEEBR(ARETT) 15 = - z 113 = 128
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBEBRME (F)
31 December 2022 — - —®+_-A=+—H

21. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

21. B - HEKRFERE

OTHER ASSETS ft & &
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR® T ARET T
Prepayments TET 5K 6,681 16,850
Deposits Ze 2,197 5,441
Other receivables H b pE W FR IR 81,504 83,439
Value added tax recoverable AT Y [o] 18 E B 9,803 14,064
Tax reserve certificates 5 27,245 24,937
127,430 144,731
Less: Impairment allowance B OR B RS (77,739) (58,965)
49,691 85,766
Current portion BIHEAER 5 (49,691) (84,188)
Non-current portion JEBNEA R & - 1,578
RAARRERERAT o —T - —FFER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBBRRKE (E)
31 December 2022 — - —F+_-A=+—H

21. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 21. AR EttEWFEBRHE

OTHER ASSETS (continued)

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of other
receivables are as follows:

&= @)

Hi UGB EERREZSHMT

2022 2021
—_==-= T —%F
RMB'000 RMB’'000

AR®B T ARETTT

At beginning of the year REH] 58,965 8,504
Impairment losses, net B E 1 F R 14,926 57,662
Amount written off as uncollectable OB & AT B & B8 - (5,465)
Exchange realignment ME 5 R 3,848 (1,736)
At end of year RER 77,739 58,965

During the year ended 31 December 2022, RMB14,926,000
(2021: RMB57,662,000) was impaired for expected credit losses
on other receivables. The provision rates are based on published
credit rating. The calculation reflects the probability-weighted
outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and
supportable information that is available at the reporting date
about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions.

Deposits and other receivables mainly represented rental
deposits and promissory note receivable. Where applicable, an
impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date by
considering the probability of default of comparable companies
with published credit ratings. As at 31 December 2022, the
probability of default applied ranged from 0.08% to 100%
(2021: 0% to 100%) and the loss given default was estimated
to be ranged from 56.8% to 100% (2021: 57% to 100%). The
loss rate is adjusted to reflect the current conditions and
forecasts of future economic conditions, as appropriate.
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22. LOAN RECEIVABLE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBEBRME (F)
31 December 2022 — - —®+_-A=+—H

22. EIRE R

2022 2021

—E-= T

RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR®T T ARET T

Loan receivable JE W & 3K 176,606 161,646
Less: Impairment allowance ORI E R (34,336) (31,428)
142,270 130,218

The movement in the loss allowance for impairment of loan
receivable is as follows:

U EFREBBRRBEESNT

2022 2021

—E-= T —F

RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARYEF T ARBTT

At beginning of the year REH 31,428 627
Impairment losses (note 6) A E R (Mi5Ee) - 31,271
Exchange realignment BE 53 2 2,908 (470)
At end of year RER 34,336 31,428

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, loan receivable represented
the money lent to a customer by Tongfang Finance Limited, an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company which is
principally engaged in money lending business. The loan
receivable bore interest rate at 8% p.a. (2021: 8% p.a) and was
overdue since 2020. The loan receivable amounting to
RMB176,606,000 (2021: RMB161,646,000) was secured by
certain properties, other investments, listed securities, private
equities of the borrower and personal guarantees. The balance
is classified as a financial asset at amortised cost. Management
performs continuous assessment on the recoverability of the
loan receivable.

Management has performed credit risk assessment by
performing background search on the borrower, financial
analysis on the companies for which the borrower has pledged
the equity shares and property search on pledged properties.

RZEBEZZFRZZE=_—F+=A
Zt+—H EREFEFTEREEE
¥BNARRHE2ENBRARRBS
MBEERAREB T 2R ZHIE-
JEWE RIZFEHNMRI% (ZT - —F:
8% )EE WEH_-_ZE _TEMLEHE -
JEUE A R¥176,606,0007T (=&
——F: ARM161,646,0007T) LA &
HAMETYE - EMEE . EmE
5 Ko FL B R DA R A PE AR EHE 3 o
EHROBARBERATENESHE
E-ERERHETGHEWE NI
[ -

BEEEABAEERANERER
ER/WNCE T SN0 NCIE: By PR i
LHEBERDENDERE ETTEERE
Rz AF A o

RATRRZERERRDR o —T— —FFH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBHERRME (R)

31 December 2022 —E - —F+=-H=+—H

22. LOAN RECEIVABLE (Continued)

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date by
considering the expected credit losses, which are estimated by
applying the probability of default approach with reference to
the risks of default of the borrower or comparable companies.
For the loan receivable which is secured by second charge on
properties and/or share charges, management also takes into
account the mitigating effect of the value of this collateral in
the ECL analysis. As at 31 December 2022, the probability of
default applied of loan receivable was 100% (2021: 100%). As
at 31 December 2022, the loan receivable was fully covered by
collateral with an aggregate fair value of approximately
RMB150.3 million after deducting any outstanding first
mortgage loan balances. Therefore, no impairment was
considered necessary during the year. As at 31 December 2021,
as the aggregate fair value of the collateral after deducting any
outstanding first mortgage loan balances was approximately
RMB130.2 million which was lower than the carrying amount,
an impairment loss of RMB31,271,000 was recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss during the prior year
(note 6).

An ageing analysis of the loan receivable as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the maturity date and net of loss
allowance, is as follows:

22. EWWE R =

AEBERNESHREAHEEBRLEE
BRETHRE> T MBEHEEEISE
Th2EERTARA LR FHEDER
BIEREHB KL T A - BAAYD
X¥E_ERE SKBROHERABEIFN
BURERME EEENREHEES
BAOMENREEEREZIEFEDER
MEE R_TE-__F+_A=+—
H BRERMEANELNEEX A
100% (ZZE=—F :100%) - R =%
——F+=ZA=+—H EREXRH
NRABEBEHOARKIS0IEE LY
KEyW2EEEZE - At FARAEHE
ﬁﬁﬁo%:g__¢+:ﬂz+—
CHRERUN AR BEREEN
%Eﬂ* BENE—RBERESE
HEARBKI1302B88 T BERAE®
B LFEEGABETZRERARE
31,271,0007C B R (B &5 18 (P 526) ©

RIBRH B &m0 RS B R A UL
ERCNBREBEREE) WEREDTNOT

2022 2021

—EB-C —FE-—F

RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR T AREF T

On demand R ESK 142,270 130,218
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NOTESTOTHECONSOUDATEDFWANCMLSUWEMENTS(CONHNUE
REMBBRRME (B
31 December 2022 — - —®+_-A=+—H

23. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

23. BARBEFARENEHM

)
i)

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS BE
2022 2021
—EgE=-= -
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
Jiokia ARET T ARBETIT
Listed equity investments, BRAnEBEFEN (i)
at fair value IR E 15,585 14,226
Other unlisted investments, EAREETEDN (ii)
at fair value HEMIFELMRE 134,436 136,855
150,021 151,081
Non-current unlisted investments, BARBETEN
at fair value JEBDERIE EHIRE (132,024) (134,648)
Current portion B HAZ6 17,997 16,433
Notes: BT -

(i) The above equity investments were classified as financial assets at

FVTPL as they were held for trading.

(ii) The unlisted investments included unlisted equity and fund were
mandatorily classified as financial assets at FVTPL as their contractual
cash flows were not solely payments of principal and interest as at 31

December 2022 and 2021.

(i) LABREREARBEEEMOBAREA

REEFABSENEREE -

(i) RZTEZZFRZZFE=-Z—F+=A
=+—HA FETHRERESPIEEDN
LM EREANB S RENIEES

XNAERAE BRI BREAR
BEABZ m%ﬂﬁé
RATREZEERERA DN =20 = G G
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

AN

Fiy

(=)

MEmEAME (F)

31 December 2022 — - —F+_-A=+—H

24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2. BERAEEEY

2022 2021

—E-= T

RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARET T ARBEF T

Cash and bank balances B e MIRTTHE % 581,239 330,807
Time deposits TEHIF S 202,025 376,790
Less: Cash held on behalf of clients B REEPEEMNES - (9,175)
Cash and cash equivalents RehREeEEY 783,264 698,422

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances of
the Group denominated in RMB amounted to RMB410,135,000
(2021: RMB388,332,000). The RMB is not freely convertible
into other currencies, however, under Mainland China’s Foreign
Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement
and Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the
Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies
through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange
business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits were made for
varying periods of between one day and three months
depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group,
and earned interest at the respective short term time deposit
rates. The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy banks
with no recent history of default.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

25. TRADE PAYABLES

REMBEBRME (F)
31 December 2022 — - —®+_-A=+—H

25. EREZER®

2022 2021
—E-= T —%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR  ARETR
Trade payables JETE 5 BRAK 59,189 83,562
Accounts payables to securities clients JERTRE & P RIA - 9,221
59,189 92,783
An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the BRI R A 8 D AR E IR0
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: NEZERFOREDOT -
2022 2021
—E-CE —E--fF
Accounts Accounts
payables to payables to
securities Trade securities Trade
clients payables Total clients payables Total
&S ENEZ ERES e
BEFRAE R L EFHE &t EE
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTR  AR®TR

AE®TT  ARETR  ARETR  ARET:R

Within 1 month EAMUA - 41,311 41,311 9,221 44,030 53,251
110 2 months 1£2[8 A8 - 5,498 5,498 - 11,063 11,063
2 t0 3 months 223 A - 1,524 1,524 - 3,997 3,997
3 t0 6 months 3%6fEA - 7,181 7,181 - 19,264 19,264
6 months to 1 year 6lAAZIE - 2,445 2,445 - 2,261 2,261
Over 1 year 150 E - 1,230 1,230 - 2,947 2,947

- 59,189 59,189 9,221 83,562 92,783

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally
settled within terms of 90 days.

e 8 5 RA AT SR —RRNI0K

o
A 4 N

R RRZEERERA R

R FFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REeMBBMRME (F)
31 December 2022 — - —F+_-A=+—H

26. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

26. HMEN R EFTRIE

2022 2021
—E-= T —%F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
Bt AR TR ARBTT
Sundry payables and accruals FETE FE A FRIE & FEET IR (a) 96,439 60,448
Contract liabilities AHaE (b) 2,434 2,922
Refund liabilities RHRAE 9,219 9,526
108,092 72,896
Notes: W& -
(@) Sundry payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average term (a) MEEMNRETE  FHHARS=E
of three months. A
(b)  Details of contract liabilities are as follows: (b) EBHEBENFBEOT :
31 December 31 December 1 January
2022 2021 2021
e —E-—F —E-F
+=A=+—-8 +=ZA=+—8 —A—8
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
AREFTR ARBFTT ARBFT
Short-term advances received from customers Y B & = 2 B 51
Sale of goods HEEm 2,434 2,922 4,999

EHEEREEREFRNBEAERD
EHBRR  —_FE_FRZT—F4
HNEBERD DN EZHERRZEFRRT
REHRBREFEHATRD -

Contract liabilities include short-term advances received from
customers to deliver lighting products. The decrease in contract
liabilities in 2022 and 2021 was mainly due to the decrease in
short-term advances received from customers in relation to
uncompleted contracts at the end of the years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ReMBERME (F)

31 December 2022 — - —®+_-A=+—H

27. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS 27. ST RRITER
2022 2021
—E-CE —E--F
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate% Maturity RMB'000 rate% Maturity RMB'000
ERFEY L= ARBTR EBMZEY 5|58 AREFT
Current HNE
Bank loans - secured  ETER-EHA London
Interbank
Offered Rate
(“LIBOR")
CECO 2022
- - - (SES Y S 36,660

The maturity of the above bank borrowings is as follows:

ERSRITERDBBMEREAT

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—%F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBT R ARBTT
Analysed into: DA
Within one year or on demand R—F AR ERE - 36,660

Note:

The Group’s bank borrowings and certain banking facilities are secured by

B

AEEMRITERAARENTETAENE

charges over certain assets of the Group as follows: IEHER

2022 2021

—=s=-= T —F

RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR T ARETT

Inventories (note 19) & (ME19) 148,613 121,071

Trade receivables (note 20) JEUE SR (K E20) 75,581 78,071
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31 December 2022 — - —F+_-A=+—H

28. PROVISION 28. &
2022 2021
—E-= T
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARBEF T
At 1 January n—HA—H 5,722 6,259
Additional provision (note 6) g A (M 5t6) 353 2,153
Amounts utilised during the year FRNEBHEE (642) (2,593)
Exchange realignment BE 5 359 (97)
At 31 December W+=—A=+—8 5,792 5,722

During the prior years, the Group received notices served by the
People’s Court in the PRC, which were initiated by independent
trading parties to demand remedies for the loss arising from
early termination of rental agreements and termination of
transfer of inventory agreement, where relevant. In the opinion
of the directors of the Company, as the courts’ decisions have
been finalised for most of the legal proceedings, the Group has
utilised the related provision to settle the outstanding claims
during the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

The Group provides warranties ranging from three to five years
to its customers for US lighting products for general repairs of
defects occurring during the warranty period. The amount of
the provision for the warranties is estimated based on sales
volumes and past experience of the level of repairs and returns.
The estimation basis is reviewed on an ongoing basis and
revised where appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBEBRME (F)
31 December 2022 — - —®+_-A=+—H

29. DEFERRED TAX 29. RIER 18

Taiwan Depreciation Fair value
withholding ~ Fairvalue allowance  adjustments
taxon adjustments i excess of on
undistributed  on intangible related  investment  Inventory
eamings assets  depreciation  properties provision Others Total
AEAOE  BVAZ  BEEE  BANE
B DhEE  FE2  QAEE
REENH /% NERR A% HERR At st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RIMB'000
ARETR  ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR AR%ETR
At1 January 2021 RZZZ-5-f-8 (2,776) (1,079 (6,572) (6,711) 4711 13,420 993
Deferred tax credited/(charged) o~ FWEA/ (B E) BER
the statement of profit or loss HELHE
during the year - 971 (1,462) 555 2,308 1,766 4138
Exchange realignment 7% 79 106 167 288 (134) (326) 180
At 31 December 2021 and \ZZZ-%512f
at 1 January 2022 =t-HEk
R-2--%-F-H (2,697) ) (7,867) (5,868) 6,885 14,860 5,311
Deferred tax credited/(charged) o~ FME A/ (K &) BER
the statement of profit or loss HELHE
during the year - - (2,203) (634) 4114 4970 6,247
Exchange realignment EXEE (250) (244) (824) (457) 760 1652 637
At 31 December 2022 R-E--f+-A=1+-H (2,947) (246) (10,894) (6,959) 11,759 21,482 12,195
RARRERBRAR o —ZE__FFH 221



222
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31 December 2022 —E - —F+=-H=+—H

29. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities have not been offset for the
purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement of
financial position as they relate to different tax authorities. The

9. IRIER 1B (@)

REINNHEEPBRAEME - ARE
EMBEEENRBESRTRARGEHE
Rt BB HEHE - HUBREZH

following is the analysis of the deferred taxation balances for BURERIBAE ST -
financial reporting purposes:
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARET T ARBTT
Deferred tax assets REFRIEE = 22,345 14,027
Deferred tax liabilities RERIBE A E (10,150) (8,716)
12,195 5,311

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of
RMB348,494,000 (2021: RMB329,034,000) that are available
indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits of the
companies in which the losses arose. The Group also has
tax losses arising in the PRC of RMB21,794,000 (2021:
RMB60,137,000) that will expire in one to ten years (2021: one
to five years) for offsetting against future taxable profits.

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of
these losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been
loss-making for some time and it is not considered probable
that taxable profits will be available against which the tax losses
can be utilised.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established in
the PRC. The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008
and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty
between the PRC and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors.
For the Group, the applicable rate is 5%. As at 31 December
2022 and 2021, no unrecognised deferred tax for the
withholding taxes as there was no such earnings for its
subsidiaries to distribute in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUE )

29. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

As 31 December 2022, no deferred tax has been recognised for
withholding taxes that would be payable on the unremitted
earnings of RMB220,490,000 (2021: RMB173,071,000) that are
subject to withholding taxes of subsidiaries of the Group
established in the USA. In the opinion of directors of the
Company, the Group’s fund will be retained in the USA for the
expansion of the Group's operation, so it is not probable that
its subsidiaries will distribute such earning in the foreseeable
future.

Pursuant to the Taiwan Corporate Income Tax Law, a 5%
withholding tax on undistributed earnings tax rate and 21% is
levied on dividends declared to a non-resident recipient from
the foreign investment enterprises established in Taiwan. The
requirement is effective from 1 January 2018.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the
payment of dividend by the subsidiary to its shareholders.

REMBEBRME (F)
31 December 2022 — - —®+_-A=+—H

29. EEHIE (&)

RZZBZ—F+-A=+—8 W&
AEEBREBRKIMNMBRAENTE
OB B oK BE &R A R #220,490,000
T (ZEZ—%F: AR®173,071,000
TO)FTEAMEINRERELERIE - &
RAIEERAE TEEZESBRT
REE - WERAEE 2 ZE - At -
EHEARET KA LR A TE B R 2K
DIRBEAATF -

BREBEEECEMSHE BADIKEA
R % 8 T8 F0 8 I 3t 1A 3E /& R AR
BREENILHINEDERNRE K
21%WEMNH -ZREB T —N\F
—A—HBER-

M B A =) A E % BROR AR B A 4 B S
FisfigR -

30. SHARE CAPITAL 30. A
2022 2021
—E=-= —ET - —F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERx FET
Authorised: JETE ¢
5,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 5,000,000,000/% & I E 1B
HK$0.10 each 0.107 JT /Y & i X 500,000 500,000
2022 2021
—E—-= T4
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T AREEFIT
Issued and fully paid: ERITERERE :
2,094,465,417 (2021: 2,094,465,417) 2,094,465,417% (==&
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 Z—4 :2,094,465,417
(2021: HK$0.10) each H&)i%@ﬁo 108 7T
= _—E‘E 0. 10/%71:)
FOR=R L 185,672 185,672
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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31 December 2022 —E - —F+=-H=+—H

30. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

31.

A summary of movements in the Company’s share capital is as
follows:

30. RN ()

Number of
shares in issue Share capital
E&TRHG
2A R 2%
RMB’000
AR®BTR
At 1 January 2021, 31 December 2021, RZ-ZZE-_—F—H—H -
1 January 2022 and 31 December 2022 Z—FT=—F+=H
=—+—\ ==
—A—BRkZZT-C
+ZA=+—H 2,094,465,417 185,672

Note: The Company did not purchase any shares in the current year (2021:
Nil). The purchased shares of 40,000 were cancelled during the prior
year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Share option scheme of the Company

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was
adopted pursuant to a shareholders’ written resolution passed
on 20 November 2006 for the primary purpose of providing
incentives to and recognising significant contributions from
directors and eligible employees. The Scheme became effective
on 15 December 2006 and the options issued pursuant to the
Scheme will expire no later than ten years from the date of
grant of the option. Under the Scheme, the board of directors
of the Company may grant options to eligible employees,
including directors of the Company and its subsidiaries, to
subscribe for shares in the Company. Additionally, the Company
may, from time to time, grant share options to outside third
parties for settlement in respect of goods or services to the
Company and for the purpose of rewarding their contribution
to the long-term success of the Group by providing the
opportunity to obtain ownership interest in the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Share option scheme of the Company (Continued)

The total number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of
the shares of the Company in issue at the relevant time of
grant, without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders.
The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under this Scheme shall not in aggregate exceed 20%
of the shares in issue from time to time. No option may be
granted under this Scheme and any other share option scheme
of the Company if such limit is exceeded. The number of shares
issued and to be issued in respect of which options granted and
may be granted to any individual in any one year is not
permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue
at any point in time, without prior approval from the
Company’s shareholders. Options granted to substantial
shareholders or independent non-executive directors in excess
of 0.1% of the Company’s share in issue or with an aggregate
value in excess of HK$5,000,000 must be approved in advance
by the Company’s shareholders.

Options may be exercised in accordance with the terms
stipulated in the Scheme. The exercise price is determined by
the directors of the Company, and will not be less than the
higher of (i) the closing price of the Company’s shares on the
date of grant, (ii) the average closing price of the shares for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and
(iii) the par value of the Company’s share.

No share option was granted or exercised during the year

ended 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the
Company had no share options outstanding under the Scheme.

GEMBRRME (&)

31 December 2022 —E - ~—F+=-H=+—H

31.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBmRERMET (B)
31 December 2022 —E - —F+=-H=+—H

31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Share option scheme of a subsidiary of the
company

During the year ended 31 December 2015, American Lighting,
Inc. (“American Lighting”), an indirect non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, has adopted a share option scheme
for eligible employees of American Lighting, the Company and
Tivoli, LLC (“Tivoli”), the wholly-owned subsidiary of American
Lighting. On 30 June 2015, 2,869 share options were granted
to certain employees and directors of the Company, American
Lighting, and Tivoli. The closing price immediately before the
date on which the options were granted was US$330 per share.
Under the scheme of American Lighting, the board of directors
of the Company may grant options to eligible employees,
including directors of the Company and its subsidiaries, to
subscribe for shares in American Lighting.

On 27 April 2017, 1,401 share options were granted to certain
employees and directors of the Company. The closing price
immediately before the date on which the options were granted
was US$405 per share.

Options may be exercised in accordance with the terms
stipulated in the scheme of American Lighting. The exercise
price is determined by the directors of the Company, and will
not be less than the higher of (i) the closing price of American
Lighting’s shares on the date of grant; (ii) the average closing
price of American Lighting’s shares for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal
value of the American Lighting’s share.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

REMBEBRME (F)
31 December 2022 — - —®+_-A=+—H

31. BREST & @)

Share option scheme of a subsidiary of the
company (Continued)

The following share options were outstanding under the
Scheme during the year:

ARAT—EKE QT ERE
&8 (m)

FRNREZ A8 = ARTT 6 6 38 AR 42 40
N

2022 2021
—E- = —E-—F
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number exercise Number
price  of options price of options
¥ NETH
TEE BREXRE TEE  BREHA
USS$ per share ‘000 US$ per share '000
BRER T4 BlRET T
At 1 January and 31 December HW—A—HBE+=A
=t—H 369 2,435 369 2,435
No share option was granted or exercised during the year BE_ZE__F+-_A=+—HIHF
ended 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil). B EEFBRERELHTE (T
—F B
The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options REmEMRERITEBRENITEE
outstanding as at the end of the reporting period are as RATHEEAT

follows:
2022 and 2021

Number of options Exercise price

—ECCER-ZE=—F

Exercise period

BEREHE THEE TEH
US$ per share
BRET
354 330 30-06-2016 to 30-06-2025
—E-REANA=ZFTHE-E-_RFNA=1H
355 330 30-06-2017 to 30-06-2025
—E—+tFRNAZF+HAE_ZE-_AFAAA=1H
471 330 30-06-2018 to 30-06-2025
—E-N\EANA=t+HEEZE_RAF~A=1H
376 405 27-04-2018 to 27-04-2027
—E-N\FORA -+ +tHEZE-_+FMA=-++H
376 405 27-04-2019 to 24-04-2027
—E-AFNA-ttHE-ZE-_4+FMNA-+UH
503 405 27-04-2020 to 27-04-2027
—E_EFNA-t++tBE_E-t+tFMA=-++H
2,435

No share option expense recognised during the year ended 31

December 2022 (2021: Nil).

BE T -+ -_A=+—8I%F
BV ERERERERAZ(ZE=_—F
/) o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBERERMET (&)
31 December 2022 —E - —F+=-H=+—H

32. RESERVES

The nature of the Group's reserves are described as below:

(a)

The application of the share premium account of the
Company is governed by the Company Law (Revised) of
the Cayman Islands. Under the constitutional documents
and Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman Islands, the
share premium is distributable as a dividend on the
condition that the Company is able to pay its debts when
they fall due in the ordinary course of business
immediately after the proposed dividend is paid.

Capital redemption reserve comprises the amount by
which the issued share capital of the Company is
diminished through the cancellation of shares.

Special reserve comprises the differences between the
nominal amount of the shares issued by the Company and
the Group’s former holding company, Neo-Neon Holdings
(BVI) Limited (“NNH"), and the aggregate amount of
share capital and share premium of the subsidiaries
acquired pursuant to a corporate reorganisation in 1996
and a group reorganisation in preparation for the listing
of the Company’s shares in 2006.

Share compensation reserve comprises the difference of
fair value of certain NNH’'s shares (the “Shares”)
transferred to the Group’s certain senior management by
the Company’s shareholders and the consideration paid
by the senior management in obtaining the Shares in
2004.

Share option reserve represents the fair value of share
options granted to directors and employees of the Group
in accordance with the accounting policy adopted for
share-based payment in note 31 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Exchange fluctuation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation of the
financial statements of foreign operations. The reserve is
dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies set
out in note 2.4 to the consolidated financial statements.

Neo-Neon Holdings Limited e Annual Report 2022

32. {#%E

AREBFEEG T XA

(a)

ARRBEMEERNERXFAE
BERRE(RIER) &% - RIB
MBERXHERASEERRDA
(BEa]) BRI EEANERBRE
DK IRERARB AR ERER
BREXNERNAEEBEBESR
AR ERER -

EABEORBREEANRRCET
P 5 38w $H R 40 T 482 B Rl B9 &
B o

KRl s A~ Q| A& E /Al
7 % A @]Neo-Neon Holdings (BVI)
Limited ([NNH ) 2 1TH (D A ™
B EBRE-NANLANFETHE
BEAERARAROMRZZE
NEFTTZ2EBIREMETZE
EEHAMWENNE QT HRAR
EEhaEBEE MEZHENE
KH o

B EEFREEARARREE
FTRAEEETSREBENET
NNHE D (TR 1) B & 7 (B (E
SREEERN —_TTHFER
BT RENERE -

BRERBERESRSVHRE
B RE3 173 PARR {0 /3 E B 15 SRR
MEHRRETAEEEERE
ERRENAAEE-

EXRBREEREAEBIMEEE
BHHBERRERAELNAEE
RERE ZRERBEIANGEY
BHMAMFE2 AN ST BRERE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED

32. RESERVES (Continued)

(9)

Fair value reserve comprises the cumulative net change in
the fair value of equity investments designated at FVTOCI
which will not be recycled to profit or loss in subsequent
periods.

Asset revaluation reserve arises from change in use from
owner-occupied properties to investment properties
carried at fair value

Other reserve comprises: (i) the difference between the
consideration paid for acquiring additional interests in
subsidiaries of the Company and the amount of interests
acquired; and (ii) the difference between the cash received
on exercise of share options plus the amount included in
equity from the recognition of the compensation cost
and the non-controlling interest measured at the
proportionate interest in subsidiaries’ equity as measured
in the Group's consolidated financial statements.

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 110 and
111 of this annual report.

)
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31 December 2022 —E - —F+=-H=+—H

CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION PAYABLE

On 1 January 2019, the Group acquired an 80% interest in
Novelty Lights, LLC (the “Novelty”) through a non-wholly
owned subsidiary, American Lighting, from an independent
third party (the “Seller”). The acquisition of Novelty was to
explore new sales channel for the Group’s lighting products to
e-commerce platform. Pursuant to the underlying sale and
purchase agreement, the Group initially acquired 80% equity
interest in Novelty at the date of completion. The consideration
for the acquisition was US$13,400,000.

Moreover, the Group had an option to acquire and the Seller
had an option to dispose of the remaining 20% equity interest
of Novelty at each of the anniversaries for the coming two years
(the "Call and Put Options”). If there was no exercise of the
Call and Put Options during the coming two years, the Group
was mandatory to acquire the remaining 20% equity interest in
Novelty at the third anniversary. It was considered that the Call
and Put Options had given to the Group the present ownership
interest of the remaining 20% equity interest in Novelty and
deemed that the 100% equity interests had been acquired at
the completion date of the acquisition, i.e. 1 January 2019.
Therefore, a contingent consideration payable had been
recognised at the same date.

As part of the sales and purchase agreement, contingent
consideration was payable, which was dependent on the
amount of projected earnings before interest, tax, depreciation
and amortisation (“Projected EBITDA") of Novelty subsequent
to the acquisition. The amount was determined using the
discounted cash flow model and was within Level 3 fair value
measurement.

The transaction was completed on 31 December 2021. For
details, please refer to the Company’s announcement dated 2
January 2022. Hence, the contingent consideration payable was
reclassified to other payable as at 31 December 2021.

During the prior year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers
into or out of Level 3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUE )

33. CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION PAYABLE

(Continued)

REUMBHERRME (F)

31 December 2022 — - —®+_-A=+—H

33.

A HARE @

Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised within AABEERAE =R >ENAAEBE
Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy: STEHER

2021

RMB’000

ARBTT

Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—B/MEAAE 23,516
Change in fair value AREBEED (429)
Settlement w8 (13,540)
Transfer to other payable B 2 H th B < 5RIE (9,595)
Exchange realignment ME 3 8 B 48

Carrying amount at 31 December

R+ A=+—HBMEEE

34. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 34. KR ERERMT
OF CASH FLOWS

(a) Major non-cash transactions

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

During the prior year, the Group had non-cash
additions and modification of right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities of totalling RMB18,888,000 and
RMB18,888,000, respectively, in respect of lease
arrangements for offices and warehouses.

During the year, the Group had a non-cash
modification of right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities of RMB11,871,000 (2021: RMB19,365,000)
and RMB11,871,000 (2021: RMB19,365,000),
respectively, in respect of lease arrangements for
offices and warehouses.

During the prior year, the Group had a non-cash
transfer from contingent consideration payable to
other payables and accruals of RMB9,595,000 in
relation to the completion of acquisition of Novelty.

RATRRZERERAR o

(a) FEHFREXRSH

(i)

(i)

(iii)

REFE ARBEOEME

BENMEERERNBAE
REHERHMOAES
FReBMEETAHRA

18,888,000 & A R #&
18,888,0007T °

FR AEERBHLERAE
Emfﬂ‘*ﬂhﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁéﬁ
EMNHEEENIERSB
DRl A ARE11,871,000
T(ZEZ—F: AR
19,365,0007T) M A R #
11,871,000 (ZE = —4F:
AR #19,365,0007T) °

REFE AEBRAZRIK
EENoveltyifn B FEf sk AR E
FIERSEEHMBEN KE
530 E AR 9,595,0007T °

R FFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REeMBBMRME (F)
31 December 2022 — - —F+_-A=+—H

34. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 34. 8B RERHFT @
OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
(b) MEZTHELNAEBE T

(b) Changes in liabilities arising in financing

activities
Loan from
the ultimate
holding Lease
Bank loans company liabilities
BRRER
RITERK DEEN HEAE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T AR® T AR® T

As at 1 January 2021 wWZZE-_—F%—H—H 91,114 254,619 20,828
Changes from financing REREREF

cash flows (53,945) (254,619) (12,538)
New leases #alHE - - 18,888
Modification P - - 19,365
Interest expenses MEFAX 1,505 1,221 1,472
Interest paid ERFE (1,505) (1,221) (1,472)
Foreign exchange movements  SME & (509) - (400)
As at 31 December 2021 RZEZ—F+=A

and 1 January 2022 =+—-BEk=%=Z=

F—H—H 36,660 - 46,143

Changes from financing MEREREF

cash flows (38,354) - (11,989)
Reassessment and revision EFERIEETHEA

of lease terms - 11,871
Interest expenses FEHX 1,907 1,569
Interest paid BAFE (1,907) (1,569)
Foreign exchange movements  YME & 5 1,694 3,720
As at 31 December 2022 RZEBE-—_F+=-A

=+—A8 - 49,745
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED

)
REUMBHERRME (F)

31 December 2022 — - —®+_-A=+—H

34. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 34. 8B RERHFT @

35.

36.

OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

(c¢) Total cash outflow for leases

The total cash outflow for leases included in the statement

(C) *ﬂﬁfﬁﬁuw %gﬁ
FARERERNEERSRL

of cash flows is as follows: BWEREIAT ¢
2022 2021
—_=E_-= —E - —4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET AREF T
Within operating activities KEEEN 1,569 1,472
Within financing activities BEEEA 11,989 12,538
13,558 14,010

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 35. AAREE

On 30 June 2021, a former business partner of the Group
commenced a legal proceeding against Heshan Yinyn
lllumination Co., Ltd and Tongfang Science Park, wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Company (collectively known as
“Defendants”), in relation to the Defendants have breached of
cooperation agreements and misappropriated the assets of the
business partner in previous years and the business
partner claimed for the losses and damages amounting to
approximately RMB12 million. In June 2022, the judge
dismissed the case in the Primary People’s Court. In July 2022,
the business partner lodged the notice of appeal to the
Intermediate People’s Court. In February 2023, the defendants
stood trial for the claims and the Company’s external lawyer
expects the court judgement will be handed down in around
three months. After consulting with the Company’s external
lawyer, the directors are of the view that the Defendants have a
merit and a reasonably ground in defending potential claims for
the breach of the agreements and, therefore, no material
adverse financial impact on the Group is expected and the
Group has not provided for any claim arising from the legal
proceeding.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Details of the Group's assets pledged for the Group’s bank
loans are included in note 27 to the financial statements.

36.

RATRRZERERAR o

RZZE-Z—FXA=Z1+H AEEH
—RAEERHEARARRNEENB
AABILMIRRBEBR AR RRAG
BEE(GEAIwWE]) AR AERY
NAFEEEERGERRMNBADE
XEHUAFENEE ULKBEER
&EiﬁEEE%HF*%AEMQ
E/fﬁfﬁ/f%%)(@;z%°%—;::

B ZamERBHRATFRARZER
RBEEF - R_ZT-_=ZF_F ¥&
MEREBEIEN MARBZIINEERE
EMTE BRI 40 = (8 B A E MRRT #0k -
KRR RR 2 INEEEAD - EER
WEAEFIEAEEEQ@EW%
HEABRRETRE BAUBEBRTE
HASEBRNEATHTBEEmMA
SRV AREBBEEREFEENEM
R o

EEEN

AEBRASBERTEFBERNEE
I N B WA M FE27

R FFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REeMBBMRME (F)
31 December 2022 — - —F+_-A=+—H

37. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 37.

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group did not have
material capital commitments.

38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 38.

(@) The Group had the following transactions
with related parties during the year:

BEARAERE

RZEBE-_—_FR_ZE-_—F+=A
—t+t— B AEBVEITFREAXER
HE o

BT X5

(a)

FR-AEEEBABRSE
TUTRS

2022 2021
—s=-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR® T ARBETTT

Interest paid to the ultimate B &R ER A RFLE
holding company

- 1,221

Note: The loan from Tsinghua Tongfang Co., Limited, the
ultimate holding company, was unsecured and
interest-bearing at a rate of 4.95% per annum and
early repaid in February 2021.

(b) Compensation of key management
personnel of the Group

The Company’s directors represented the Group's key
management personnel and their emoluments are
included in note 8 to the financial statements.

(c) Loan from the ultimate holding company

The loan from Tsinghua Tongfang Co., Limited
with an amount of RMB254,619,000 was unsecured,
interest-bearing at a rate of 4.95% per annum and
originally repayable in 2022. The loan was early repaid in
February 2021.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBEBRME (F)
31 December 2022 — - —®+_-A=+—H

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 30. RERI o ENERM T E

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial RREPRR SFEemITANEEAE
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: LU
2022 —E2-C
Financial assets CHMEE
Financial
Financial assets at
assets amortised
at FVTPL cost Total
BAREE 2 68 AR A
FFAEEDN TEN
RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARE T AR¥ET T AR¥E T
Trade and bills receivables e E 5 R 1 % e W R - 128,818 128,818
Loan receivable FE U B TR - 142,270 142,270
Financial assets included in A A E Ath JE Y FR 1B K
other receivables and HEMEENSREE
other assets - 5,962 5,962
Financial assets at FVTPL BARBEAEBZD
DEEE 150,021 - 150,021
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEED - 783,264 783,264
150,021 1,060,314 1,210,335
Financial liabilities eMAME
Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost
& # 88 AK AR
TEW
EWas
RMB’'000
AR TR
Trade payables FERT B SRR 59,189
Financial liabilities included in other STAEMEMNREFRENSREE
payables and accruals 96,439
Lease liabilities HEEBE 49,745
205,373

RATRRZERERAR o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REeMBBMRME (F)
31 December 2022 — - —F+_-A=+—H

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 39. REF T BHNEHM T A m)
(Continued)
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial NBERKX S BELRMTEAEMEDE
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: mr:(88)

(continued)

2021 —E-—F
Financial assets SREE
Financial
Financial assets at
assets amortised
at FVTPL cost Total
RAREE birg: Xz DN
FFAERED FFER
DEEE EHMEE B
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000

ARBTT AR®BTT AR®ETRT

Trade and bills receivables JEWE 5 R KRR - 141,546 141,546
Loan receivable JE W & X - 130,218 130,218
Financial assets included in AT E A R OGRIE &
other receivables and other EMEENSREE
assets - 29,915 29,915
Financial assets at FVTPL EAnEBEFABZNG
MEE 151,081 - 151,081
Cash held on behalf of clients REF#HENIRS - 9,175 9,175
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEY - 698,422 698,422
151,081 1,009,276 1,160,357

Financial liabilities
SRBeE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost
R SRR
FFER
El =N
RMB’000
ARBTT

Trade payables FERE Z R 92,783
Financial liabilities included in other FT A E A FE A & AT ROE

payables and accruals NemaE 60,448
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FFERITER 36,660
Lease liabilities HEBE 46,143

236,034
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUE )
REUMBHERRME (F)

31 December 2022 — - —®+_-A=+—H

40. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

0. T T EAMARBERAR

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BEER
The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial rEEemTEGREHERAREES
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that BREERNNERERAREEBEN
reasonably approximate to fair values, are as follows: S
Carrying amounts Fair values
REE AfER
2022 2021 2022 2021
—E-C = —E_—F
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETFRT AR¥ETR AR%®TR
Financial assets tREE
Financial assets at FVTPL RORBETA
REmeREE 150,021 151,081 150,021 151,081
Financial liabilities A N=R
Interest-bearing bank borrowings &t B RT3 - 36,660 - 37,697

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, cash held on behalf of clients, trade and bills
receivables, loan receivable, trade payables, financial assets
included in prepayments, other receivables and other assets and
financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals
approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the short
term maturities of these instruments.

The Group’s management is responsible for determining the
policies and procedures for the fair value measurement of
financial instruments. Management reports directly to the
executive directors and the audit committee. At each reporting
date, the finance department of each segment analyses the
movements in the values of financial instruments and
determines the major inputs applied in the valuation. The
valuation is reviewed and approved by the management. The
valuation process and results are discussed with the audit
committee twice a year for interim and annual financial
reporting.

EREECDHBRERASFEAY K
EFRFAENRE BREZIERERRE
WEE - BRER  BNEZER &
ATER R B R IE R A & &
e R EE FAHMENRERRK
ENETRAENAAEBEREREE
BE FEARRFITAREHAZ
Hi o

AEEMNEEEARMEERIAR
REEFENERREEF -EEEER
BERRTEZTRERZECER -1
EREH FoHMBHMAIME
BMTEABENEHER YEEMHE
FAANEZHABE HEHEEE
ERYHE -HERFLEROBER
ZESBFETMANR  AERH
KEEI B ERR -

BARRERERA o T _FFW
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBRERME (&)

31 December 2022 —E - —F+=-H=+—H

40. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a
forced or liquidation sale. The following methods and
assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

The fair values of listed equity investments are based on quoted
market prices. The fair values of unlisted investments, which
were classified as financial assets at FVTPL, have been
estimated using a market-based valuation technique based on
assumptions that are not supported by observable market prices
or rates. The valuation requires the directors to determine
comparable public companies (peers) based on industry, size,
leverage and strategy, and to calculate an appropriate price
multiple, such as enterprise value to earnings before interest,
taxes, depreciation and amortisation (“EBITDA") multiple, for
each comparable company identified. The multiple is calculated
by dividing the enterprise value of the comparable company by
an earnings measure. The trading multiple is then discounted
for considerations such as illiquidity and size differences
between the comparable companies based on company-specific
facts and circumstances. The discounted multiple is applied to
the corresponding earnings measure of the unlisted equity
investments to measure the fair value. The directors of the
Company believe that the estimated fair values resulting from
the valuation technique, which are recorded in the consolidated
statement of financial position, and the related changes in fair
values, which are recorded in profit or loss, are reasonable, and
that they were the most appropriate values at the end of the
reporting period.
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40. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cContinued)

For the rest of the financial assets at FVTPL, their fair values are
derived from the net asset value per share of the investments or
latest transaction prices. The directors of the Company believe
that the estimated fair values which are recorded in the
consolidated statement of financial position with net changes
in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss for the
years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 are reasonable, and
that they were the most appropriate values at the end of the

reporting period.

The fair values of other financial assets and financial liabilities
carried at amortised cost approximate to their carrying

amounts.

Set out below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs
to the valuation of financial instruments together with a
guantitative sensitivity analysis as at 31 December 2022 and

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBBRRKE (E)
31 December 2022 — - —®+_-A=+—H

40. TRITENAABERAR
EBEE @

RHBTEAABEFTABTZNS M
BEME EAABEERENER
BEFEIAFAKNIESL - ARQF
EERAE REZ-_Z_—_FK=_F%
T+ -_A=Zt+—HLEFENRAE
HIEMRARARGA AR EBENRE
EERERERAABETIEHELE
BEAHEREBHRNEEBEEE -

BRBHERAIENEMCEREENRS
BEENAAEEREREERS

UMTAERZ-_E_—_FR_F=—
+Z A=+t H¥YemIAFHEBEZE
ATABRHGABERBZEREER

2021: RRE DT
Valuation Significant Sensitivity of fair
technique unobservable input Range value to the input
EERM EXTABEHARE BE AABEHBABBZHRE
Unlisted investments  Valuation multiple EV/EBITDA multiple 2022:14.4 3.5% (2021: 4.4%) increase/
of peers (2021:13.6) decrease in the multiple would
result in increase/decrease in
fair value by RMB5,896,000
(2021: RMB6,333,000)
FEmRE fHERH [F] £ EV/EBITDA “T-F 144 LN,/ H3.5%(ZF=—
(ZZ=—F:136) 5 :44%) BLDAEEEND/

B AR 5,896,000 (ZF
——F: AR#6,333,0007T)

RATRRZERERRDR o —T— —FFH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REeMBBMRME (F)
31 December 2022 — - —F+_-A=+—H

40. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 40. TRITENAARABERAR
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) EBEER @
Fair value hierarchy AREBEER
The following table illustrates the fair value measurement TERHEARAEEeRIAENARERA
hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments: B -
Assets measured at fair value: BRAREBEETEWEE
As at 31 December 2022 R-ZE-_—_+=-A=+—H

Fair value measurement using
AREEFERR
Quoted
prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

EX EX

B TEE THBE

mERE BARE BAgE
(E-4) (=) (B=R) st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARBTR AR®TR ARETxR

Financial assets at FVTPL BAREEFABRER
TREE 15,585 - 134,436 150,021
As at 31 December 2021 R-F-—%+=-A=+—H
Fair value measurement using
AREEFELH
Quoted
prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
BX BX
IR R PAEHE
MHHRE W \BUE BABE
(B—1) (B=®) (B=4) a5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT AR®TT ARETRT ARBTR
Financial assets at FVTPL BAREEFABER
TREE 14,226 - 136,855 151,081
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40. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cContinued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REMBEBRME (F)
31 December 2022 — - —®+_-A=+—H

40. TR T AN AABERAR

EBEER @
AREEEH @

The movements in fair value measurements within Level 3 FRAE=ZRANRAEBFEZ TN
during the year are as follows: ™
2022 2021
=== —E-—F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETIT
Financial assets at FVTPL — unlisted: BARBETABGD
CRMEE-FELEM:
At 1 January n—H—H 136,855 137,102
Total losses recognised in RIBRRFTAEMUA
the statement of profit or loss included s R ERIFREN B ER
in other income, gains and losses, net EiE R (2,419) (247)
At 31 December R+Z—HA=+—8~ 134,436 136,855
AARKIERBRRAG o —T__FFf
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBmRERMET (B)
31 December 2022 —E - —F+=-H=+—H

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise
interest-bearing bank borrowings, loan receivable, cash and
cash equivalents and short term deposits. The main purpose of
these financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group's
operations. The Group has various other financial assets and
liabilities such as financial assets at FVTPL, trade and bills
receivables, other receivables, and trade payables and other
payables.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity
risk, equity price risk and market risk. The board of directors
reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks
and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s cash and bank balances
and debt obligations with a floating interest rate.

The interest rates and terms of repayment of interest-bearing
bank borrowings are disclosed in note 27 to the financial
statements. Other financial assets and liabilities of the Group
do not have material interest rate risk. Interest-bearing bank
borrowings and cash and bank balances are stated at cost and
are not revalued on a periodic basis. Floating-rate interest
income and expenses are credited or charged to the statement
of profit or loss as incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBEBRME (F)
31 December 2022 — - —®+_-A=+—H

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 41. & BBz EE B FREBE @)
AND POLICIES (continued)
Interest rate risk (Continued) 2= =& bz (a0)
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably TRIAAEMAELBEH G TEN
possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held BRT AEBKRBARER, (FHE)
constant, of the Group’s profit/(loss) before tax (through the CEBYFERTER URBAE KA
impact on interest-bearing bank borrowings and cash and cash SEEMERNTE) RAREEDRSH
equivalents) and Group's equity. MEMEEAEEDNBRE -
Increase/
Increase/ (decrease) Increase/
(decrease) in in profit (decrease)
basis points before tax in equity*
=HE R Bt A % s
#waCGRd)  ®m G #in GRS
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT R AREF R
31 December 2022 e
=+—H
RMB AR 100 4,101 -
RMB AR (100) (4,101) -
us$ ET 100 3,400 -
us$ ETT (100) (3,400) -
Increase/
Increase/ (decrease) Increase/
(decrease) in in loss (decrease)
basis points before tax in equity*
AR BB RTE B e
g, i) S ORd) g Gl
RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETFT ARETT
31 December 2021 —E-—F+=A
=+—H
RMB AR 100 (3,883) -
RMB AR (100) 3,883 -
us$ ETT 100 (813) -
us$ Ep (100) 813 =
* Excluding accumulated losses * TRERE R
BAREERBRAR o ZTE_—FFHK
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

AN

Fiy

(=)

MEmEAME (F)

31 December 2022 — - —F+_-A=+—H

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 41. @R EKREE B ZHE B X @m

AND POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from sales or purchases by operating units in
currencies other than the units’ functional currencies.
Approximately 18% (2021: 20%) of the Group’s sales were
denominated in currencies other than the functional currencies
of the operating units making the sale, while approximately
18% (2021: 20%) of cost were denominated in the units’
functional currencies. It is the Group's policy not to enter into
forward contracts until a firm commitment is in place.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of
the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in RMB
exchange rates against US$ and HK$, with all other variables
held constant, of the Group’s profit/(loss) before tax (due to
changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities).

S L B

AEMAZZIGUEEERR - %ZFA
B ok B AF L BB AL A H T B 5 W A S Y
BEMETEE AEEHEBEHI18%
ZEZ—F 1 20%) B EETT
HEZNRESENINNEEAE ™
A #18% (—F = —4F : 20% ) LA B
W EEEBAE AEENBER
RIEBITAER AR EREH -

TRAARESMREMEEMEEHE
FAEBERT - KB R A G F
J(BR)(HREBEERABEAAE
BEH)BARBELETIRETELRS
BERREFHOHRE -

Increase/
Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in in profit
exchange rate before tax
fE = BR B Al & F
#gm, CR2) ®gin,/ (R4)
% RMB’000
AR®T R
31 December 2022 “E-_F+-HR
=+—H
If RMB weakens against US$ WMARBRETRE 5 16,029
If RMB strengthens against US$ MARBHETIE (5) (16,029)
If RMB weakens against HK$ M ARBHBETRE 5 9,074
If RMB strengthens against HK$ M ARBEBETHE (5) (9,074)
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AND POLICIES (continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBERME (F)

31 December 2022 — - —®+_-A=+—H

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 41. @R EKREE B ZHE B X @m

Foreign currency risk (Continued) S = B ()
Increase/
Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in in loss
exchange rate before tax
fiE & B B A ES 18
Zn/ O A) #gm,/ O )
% RMB’000
ARBTT
31 December 2021 —T-—-%+—-H
=+—H
If RMB weakens against US$ MAREHEETRE 5 (4,645)
If RMB strengthens against US$ MAR R ETHE (5) 4,645
If RMB weakens against HK$ MARELABILEEAE 5 (19,837)
If RMB strengthens against HK$ M ARELBTHE (5) 19,837
Credit risk FERR
The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third Lﬁ%%gﬁi%ﬂ&%%ﬁngﬁzﬁ
parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to ?E?TE BoAR Zﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ B
NEEMETEECRER AEXE

trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are closely
monitored on an ongoing basis to minimise the Group’s

exposure to bad debts.

EEZERF - WI BRHBEE B

& 2 BE A,
BXEE

AR o

R RRZERERAR

NEBERIAEE AT Z

R FFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBERME (E)

31 December 2022 — - —F+_-A=+—H

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy,
which is mainly based on past due information unless other
information is available without undue cost or effort, and
year-end staging classification as at 31 December. The amounts
presented are gross carrying amounts for financial assets.

As at 31 December 2022

1. ¢ EREEAEHEBE @

EER K @)
BRERBRFEFAZEBRSHE
TRBEBEAEENEZERR (EEKRIE
WEER  BRIEFEHEBAKAK
BHE ARG EMER) FIRR+ =
A=Z+—BWEEEZRESEER
BMOURERDBEDE - 258
FTREMEEMNERmMAE-

R-B-_—_+-A=+—H

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
128 A H
FEER 2HEHEEER
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
1 & F2MEER 3% B b o
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETRE AR%®TR AR%TR AR%¥Tn AR%Tx
Trade and bills receivables* [ HECESIEEES o 126 - - 134,582 134,708
Financial assets included in HARAR EENGER
prepayments, other HbEENSREE
receivables and other assets
~ Normal** - 5,326 817 - - 6,143
- Doubtful** -RE - - 77,558 - 77,558
Cash held on behalf of RESRPEANRS
securities clients
- Not yet past due -ARH 512 - - - 512
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEEEN
- Not yet past due -xaH 783,264 - - - 783,264
Loan receivable - Doubtful** ERER-RE~
— More than 3 months past due -#H=FEALNL - - 176,606 - 176,606
789,228 817 254,164 134,582 1,178,791

Neo-Neon Holdings Limited e Annual Report 2022



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REMBEBRME (F)
31 December 2022 — - —®+_-A=+—H

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 41. @R EKREE B ZHE B X @m
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging
(Continued)

As at 31 December 2021

EER K @)
BEREERFRATERS H &)

RZEZ—F+=-A=+—H

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
[PAERREL::!
FEE#R PHEHEEER
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
F1RE EAEE E3MRE LE B
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFTT ARB®FTT ARETT AR®TT AR®ETR
Trade and bills receivables* EUNESETRENES 577 - - 148,632 149,209
Financial assets included in HARAR - EtERGER
prepayments, other EfRENERAR
receivables and other assets
- Normal** -E&" 17,599 23,142 - - 40,741
- Doubtful** -RE" - - 48,139 - 48,139
Cash held on behalf of REFZPRENES
securities clients
- Not yet past due -ABE 9,175 - - - 9,175
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEEEN
- Not yet past due ik 698,422 - - - 698,422
Loan receivable - Doubtful** ERET-RE
— More than 3 months past due —BH=EANLE - - 161,646 - 161,646
725,773 23,142 209,785 148,632 1,107,332

* %

For trade receivables to which the Group applies the simplified
approach for impairment, information based on the provision matrix
is disclosed in note 20 to the financial statements.

The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments,
other receivables and other assets is considered as “normal” when
they are not past due and there is no information indicating that the
financial assets have significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial assets is
considered as “doubtful”.

* RALERABLREINERE SE
s RBEREEERMATHERR
B R R M sE208% 5% -

= FFABRMR AtEKFAREMEE
BEAMNBTEREENEERRAENE
BERARKEZENMBRAESESR] -8
AleRMEENEEERRARIRE] -

RATRRZERERRDR o —T— —FFH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REeMBBMRME (F)
31 December 2022 — - —F+_-A=+—H

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of long
term bank loans and projected cash flows from operations.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the
end of the reporting period, based on the contractual

undiscounted payments, is as follows:

31 December 2022

41. cRAREEEHZEEER @®

REE S E R

AEENERREBREARYRTE
REBERARERELTESNE
BUHEBEREZENFE -

REGHRBRMAT AEERFE
HRzERABENERPOT

—E-_—H+=ZHA=+—H

Within

1 year or
on demand 1 to 5 years Total

—FRAH
RER 1255 #at
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARBT R ARBT

Trade payables FETE 5 BR 3K 59,189 - 59,189
Other payables and accruals H e & FE ST RRIB 105,658 - 105,658
Lease liabilities HEAE 11,281 42,777 54,058

176,128 42,777 218,905

31 December 2021

—E-_—%+-—A=+—H

Within

1 year or
on demand 1 to 5 years Total

—F R
REXR 1E54 Et
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT

Trade payables BB SEX 92,783 = 92,783
Other payables and accruals E 4th B~ K fEET FRIE 69,974 = 69,974

Interest-bearing FFERITER
bank borrowings 37,949 - 37,949
Lease liabilities HEAE 12,972 35,880 48,852
213,678 35,880 249,558
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)

Interest rate benchmark reform

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had an interest-bearing
bank borrowing denominated in United States dollars. The
interest rate of this instrument was based on the LIBOR with a
tenor of six months or twelve months, which will cease to be
published after 30 June 2023. Replacement of the benchmark
rate of this instrument from LIBOR to an RFR has yet to
commence but it is expected that there will be renegotiations
of terms in the future. During the transition in prior year, the
Group was exposed to the following risks:

° Parties to the contract may not reach agreement in a
timely manner as any changes to the contractual terms
require the agreement of all parties to the contract

o Additional time may be needed for the parties to the
contract to reach agreement as they may renegotiate
terms which are not part of the interest rate benchmark
reform (e.g., changing the credit spread of the bank
borrowings due to changes in credit risk of the Group)

o The existing fallback clause included in the instrument
may not be adequate to facilitate a transition to a suitable
RFR

)
REMBHRERME (F)

31 December 2022 — - —®+_-A=+—H

. EREEEE E EEBUR W

MREERE

R-ZTE-—F+=-A=+—H0 %%
BE —FUAXTEHEMN SRITEE -
It TR M & LA6fE A 31218 A & fa 2
ﬁﬁﬂ%ﬁg%%%ﬁﬁﬂwﬁﬁz
T__FRNA=ZTHERELRMH &
b T AR EERN R d fm BERITRER
ERBRAEERN XN TIEHE RS -
BEFAHEREEETETERNERD -
ELFEEERE AEEEENUT
G

o AKBTTRIBEEALEEK T
AAHENERNEFNERAF
EANETHAE

s ANBNHEFTEBRINEGHEE
i ARREr e st
7 S B A M R B R B ) A5R R (B
- mARAEENERERBREZL
M RITEENEENZE)

e THASRE mﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ %
BIE

BARRERERA o T _FFW
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REeMBBMRME (F)
31 December 2022 — - —F+_-A=+—H

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Interest rate benchmark reform (continued)

The Group would continue to monitor the development of the
reform and take proactive measures for a smooth transition.
The information about financial instrument based on an
interbank offered rate that has yet to transition to an alternative
benchmark rate is as follows:

As at 31 December 2021

41. cRAREEEHZEEER @®

FREERE @)

AEBREEEANENRR LK
BEBEEABRFIZEE - KB
BERREEN KM ERRITRENR
EHERMTANESNT

R-ZE-_—%+=-A=+—H

Non-derivative
financial
liability —

carrying value

FITECRAE-
AREAE

RMB’000
ARBTT

Interest-bearing bank borrowing FFERITEE

— United State dollar LIBOR —EMBERITRIER S 36,660
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)
Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity
securities decrease as a result of changes in the levels of equity
indices and the value of individual securities. The Group is
exposed to equity price risk arising from individual equity
investments included in financial assets at FVTPL (note 23) as at
31 December 2022. The Group's listed investments are listed on
the Stock Exchanges and are valued at quoted market prices at
the end of the reporting period.

The market equity index for the following stock exchange, at
the close of business of the nearest trading day in the year to
the end of the reporting period, and its respective highest and
lowest points during the year were as follows:

31 December

2022
—E-C

REUMBHERRME (F)

31 December 2022 — - —®+_-A=+—H

41.

cREREEAEEBEE @

IR 18 L B

% (8 & & 45 B 2 35 BUK T & @8 Bl & 5
BEEEHMEBNRAZTSFAAE
BETHNRR R_T-_—_F+_-A4
=+—8 AEBE@mBEHAERN AR
AABEIFAEGENESREE ES
®E (M5323) 3l B iR ERR - A&
B EmEERBRAT LT - WA W
EHRIEFERTERE -

FRAERERRZOBRRH B EER
A A SR B T 51 38 25 R 5 P A 1 95 Ak 48
REEBNRFANTSHLKEMMAT

High/low 31 December High/low
2022 2021 2021
—E-C “E-—F —E-—

+ZA=Z+-H BE¥/BEY t-A=+t—-H &%/ REH

Hong Kong - Hang Seng Index ~ & /& — 1B £ 19,781

24,966/14,687

23,398 31,085/22,745

RATRRZERERAR o

R FFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REeMBBMRME (F)
31 December 2022 — - —F+_-A=+—H

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Equity price risk (Continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every 10%
change in the fair values of the equity investments, with all
other variables held constant and before any impact on tax,
based on their carrying amounts at the end of the reporting
period, of the Group's profit/loss before tax and equity.

41.

cREREE B ZEBEK @

B% & /2 B (a0)

TRITEANBER A EESED
10% (Z R & B R 0B EE) + A7
BEMBERETE AT RYH
By e ARERBIER B
8L 25 0 R -

Carrying Increase/
amount (decrease) Increase/
of equity in profit (decrease)
investments before tax in equity*
ERRE RR B4 A 0% A FE
BREE 0L  EnCEA)
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARET R AR TR
31 December 2022 —F-=
+-A=+—H”
Investments listed in: RTHHE ETR 28 E
Hong Kong - Financial BB —IRAREAER
assets at FVTPL ABEEHNEREE 15,585  1,559/(1,559) -
Carrying Increase/
amount (decrease) Increase/
of equity in loss (decrease)
investments before tax in equity*
BmIRE B A& B e
BREE  ®inCR)  Ein O
RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARETFT ARETFT ARETT
31 December 2021 T
+-A=+—H”
Investments listed in: BT 2h EmZ&E
Hong Kong - Financial BB —IRAREER
assets at FVTPL ABEHNEREE 14,226 (1,423)/1,423 —

* Excluding accumulated losses

ASY) Neo-Neon Holdings Limited e Annual Report 2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its
business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustment
to it in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payments to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or
issue new shares. The Group is not subject to any externally
imposed capital requirements. No changes were made to the
objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the
years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which
is total debt divided by total equity. Total debt represents
interest-bearing bank borrowings and lease liabilities. The
gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting periods were as
follows:

REMBBRRKE (E)
31 December 2022 — - —®+_-A=+—H

41. R EREE B EHEHBEX @)

EXEHE
AEBERAEEZTEZEN/ERA
SEHERELE BEBRBREALE
U FEER YEERRRANEE
=fEE -

AEBEERHEERNER WRELSER
M REBEENRRSSIELH
B BREFBNAREALRE  ALEEA]
BEABEMBRRERMNZEE - RBRERE
BoRBITHBG - AEBEHAEEST
FAMABDERE T - BHEZT ==
ERZTE_—F+ZHA=1T—HIEF
E EAEBERMNEE BELEFH
O o

rEBFEREEABL X (BAHEKARE
BRABmARE) BEXEN - EHAERE
B ERTERREEAG -HEH
AMEERBELERDT

31 December 31 December

2022 2021
:'_%:E:: —_=_—
+=A=+—H +=ZA=+—H”
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARETT
Total debt BB 49,745 82,803
Total equity 7 7 HAFE 1,482,132 1,376,496
Gearing ratio EEAGBLX 3.4% 6.0%

42. COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

Certain comparative amounts have been reclassified and
re-presented to conform to the current year’s presentation.

42. LR

ETHRBFEEFSERENZS
N EARFENZFITA -

RATRRZERERRDR o —T— —FFH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REeMBBMRME (F)
31 December 2022 — - —F+_-A=+—H

43. STATEMENT OF THE FINANCIAL POSITION 43, & DT B AR R T

OF THE COMPANY

2022 2021
—E=-= -
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR® T ARET T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS EMEBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - WEREE 4 367
Investments in subsidiaries R B AR KK E 1,305,567 1,222,997
Total non-current assets ERBEELE 1,305,571 1,223,364
CURRENT ASSETS MEBEE
Prepayments, other receivables and TERT R - E A FEUGRIE
other assets R EAME E 62 2
Cash and cash equivalents BeBRESEEY 170,901 139,025
Total current assets MEEEEE 170,963 139,027
CURRENT LIABILITIES MEBEE
Other payables and accruals H fth A~ K fE R FRIE 4,073 2,798
NET CURRENT ASSETS MBEEFE 166,890 136,229
NET ASSETS BEFE 1,472,461 1,359,593
EQUITY 7
Issued capital BEITRA 185,672 185,672
Reserves (note) R (Bt =E) 1,286,789 1,173,921
Total equity M R 1,472,461 1,359,593
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBEBRME (F)
31 December 2022 — - —®+_-A=+—H

43. STATEMENT OF THE FINANCIAL POSITION 43, XD T B AR R T @
OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

Note: HtaF -
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: RRARFERENT :
Capital Share Exchange
Treasury Share  redemption Special  compensation  fluctuation Other  Accumulated
shares premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total

R  BOER AXROBR  BHER  ROWRER EXEBRE  Et8&  ZRER it
RMB000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'O0  RMBO00  RWBO00  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR  ARBTR ARRTZ  ARRTR  ARBTR  ARWTR ARWTR  ARRTR  ARETR

At 1 January 2021 RZZ--F-F-H (19 2,415,147 2,146 55,238 50,024 (428,794) (8,220) (862,405) 1,23117
Total comprehensive loss ERREEEER

for the year - - - - - (39,994) - (9,206) (49,200)
Cancellation of treasury shares ~ # EEFR A 19 (15) - - - - - - 4

At 31 December 2021 and RZE=-%+ZR
1 January 2022 =t-BR-EC-ZE
-A-A - 2,415,132 2,146 55,238 50,024 (468,788) (8,220 (871,611) 1,173,921

Total comprehensive income/ ~~ £R2ENA/ (HE)

(loss) for the year et - - - - - 125,165 - (12,297) 112,868
At 31 December 2022 R-B--E+-R
=1-H - 2415132 2,146 55,238 50,024 (343,623) (8,220) (883,908) 1,286,789

44. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44. #t B | &

The financial statements were approved and authorised for MEBREHEZTEN T _=F=
issue by the board of directors on 24 March 2023. A+ 0B A R T2 -

RARKERBERRGE o T __FFHR
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SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES
TENX-BEX

PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

31 December 2022

Location Use

i 3 Rz

e =3

REWHE
-+ -A=+—H

Tenure

R

Attributable
interest of
the Group

rEH
b s

Units A93b, B20h, B37, B113b, D38, Commercial
E123a, E125 and E127 on Basement 1,
Zhenjia Plaza, No.228 Tianhe Road,
Tianhe District, Guangzhou City,
Guangdong Province, The PRC
hEERAE [
BN T RO &
KA BE2285F IE1EE S
B1#£A93b * B20h * B37 * B113b *
D38 - E123a -~ E125KE127

Unit 2301-2311, The Regal Tower, Commercial
Business Bay, Dubai

Unit 2301-2311, The Regal Tower, [SES
Business Bay, Dubai

10 factory buildings situated at Industrial
Gia Le Huyen, Dong Hung,
Tinh Thai Binh Province, Vietham

fZ 7 Gia Le Huyen, Dong Hung, T
Tinh Thai Binh Province, Vietnam

Bt+EBEET

An industrial complex located at Industrial
Gonghe Town, Heshan City,
Guangdong Province, The PRC

MRPEERE I%¥
BT A A
WIEFER

Medium term lease

hHEE

Long term lease

REEE

Long term lease

RHEE

Long term lease

RHYEE

100%

100%

100%

100%
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A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and
non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years,
as extracted from the published audited financial statement and
restated/reclassified as appropriate, is set out below.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
TFHMBEHRE

ATHIASRERBEREYBFEZEE
AREE AERFEEEAME  ERHE
BENELERMBRER  ACIEEH27

SEFAE(ER) -

Year ended 31 December

BE+T-A=+-HLEFE

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
CECCFE O ZEC-f ZE-ERf O ZE-NF O ZENE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEETT ARETT ARETRT ARETRT ARETR
RESULTS E |
CONTINUING OPERATIONS BELEER
REVENUE ON 927,506 863,857 843,495 798,214 658,698
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX FROM FECEERMBRT A
CONTINUING OPERATIONS B (E8) 100,663 (34,872) (45,586) 21,849 205,305
Income tax (expense)/credit IR () He (14,882) (15,579) 41,553 (29,209) 390
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR FROM ~ #EEE¥KHER
CONTINUING OPERATIONS HEF(E8) 85,781 (50,451) (4,033) (7,360) 205,695
DISCONTINUED OPERATION BIRIFEEER
Loss for the year from a discontinued 2 & IFE & EHKHFR
operation EBE (35,899)  (220,779) (23,405) (15,169) (59,758)
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR FEREF(FE) 49,882 (271,230) (27,438) (22,529) 145,937
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING EE BERIFERES
INTERESTS
As at 31 December
W+=ZA=+-H
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
SECZE B ZZZTE —T-NF ZE-)N\E
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETRT ARETRT ARETR
TOTAL ASSETS EERE 1,728,845 1,653,266 2,239,265 2,494,749 2,517,925
TOTAL LIABILITIES BER%E (246,713) (276,770) (577,988) (763,070) (811,125)
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS E i (8,711) (6,198) (5,359) (4,222) (2,982)
1,473,421 1,370,298 1,655,918 1,727,457 1,703,818
RIARRERERRAT o —T - —FF7R
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DEFINITIONS
B=

In this report, the following expressions shall have the following
meanings unless the context requires otherwise:

“2016 Share
Option Scheme”

“AGM”

“American Lighting”

“Articles of Association”

or “Articles”

“associate(s)”

“Board”

“Business Day” or
“business day”

“BVI”

“China” or “PRC”

“Companies
Ordinance”

Neo-Neon Holdings Limited

the share option scheme on 13 May
2016 adopted by the Shareholders at the
Shareholders’ meeting

the annual general meeting of the
Company to be convened and held at
Unit 3405, 34/F., 118 Connaught Road
West, Hong Kong on 30 June 2023,
or where the context so admits, any
adjournment thereof

means American Lighting, Inc., a
Delaware corporation and an indirectly
non-wholly- owned subsidiary of the
Company

the articles of association of the Company
adopted by the special resolution of the
Shareholders on 23 June 2022 and as
amended, supplemented and otherwise
modified from time to time

has the meaning ascribed thereto under
the Listing Rules

the board of directors of the Company

a day on which banks in Hong Kong and
Cayman lIslands are generally open for
business to the public and which is not
a Saturday, Sunday or public holiday in
Hong Kong or Cayman Islands

British Virgin Islands

the People’s Republic of China, excluding
for the purpose of this report, Hong
Kong, Macau and Taiwan

the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622
of the Laws of Hong Kong) as amended,
supplemented or otherwise modified from
time to time

e Annual Report 2022
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“Companies (WUMP)
Ordinance”

“Company”

“connected person(s)”

“controlling
shareholders”

“Corporate Governance
Code”

“Director(s)”

“Group”

“HK$” and “HK cents”

“Hong Kong”

“Independent Third
Party(ies)”

“Listing Rules”

Companies (Winding Up and Miscellaneous
Provisions) Ordinance (Chapter 32 of
the Laws of Hong Kong), as amended,
supplemented, or otherwise modified from
time to time

means Neo-Neon Holdings Limited (stock
code: 1868), a company incorporated in
the Cayman Islands with limited liability
and the shares of which are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange, and
part of shares of which are listed on the
Taiwan Stock Exchange as depositary
receipts

has the meaning ascribed thereto under
the Listing Rules

has the meaning ascribed thereto in the
Listing Rules

code on corporate governance practices
contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules

the director(s) of the Company

the Company and its subsidiaries

Hong Kong dollars and cents respectively,
the lawful currency of Hong Kong

The Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region of the PRC

individual(s) or company(ies) who is/are
not connected with (within the meaning
of the Listing Rules) any of the Company,
Directors, chief executive or substantial
shareholders of the Company, our
subsidiaries or any of their respective
associates

the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange
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DEFINITIONS (CONTINUED)
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“Model Code”

“RMB”

“SFO”

“Share(s)”

“Share Award Scheme”

“Shareholder(s)”

“Stock Exchange”

“subsidiary(ies)”

“Subsidiary Share
Incentive Plan”

“substantial
shareholder(s)”

“Resuccess”

“Tsinghua Tongfang”

“Tsinghua Tongfang
Group”

“0p”

Neo-Neon Holdings Limited

the model code for securities transactions
by directors of listed issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong),
as amended and supplemented from time
to time

means share(s) of HK$0.1 each in the
share capital of the Company

means the share award scheme of the
Company adopted by the Board on 13
April 2018

the shareholder(s) of the Company

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited

has the meaning ascribed to it in sections
15 of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter
622 of the Laws of Hong Kong)

means American Lighting’s share incentive
plan adopted by the Shareholders on 2 April
2015

has the meaning ascribed thereto under
the Listing Rules

Resuccess Investments Limited, a
substantial shareholder of the Company

B 7 B 3 A IR A 7(Tsinghua Tongfang
Co., Ltd"), a joint stock limited company
incorporated in the PRC, whose shares
are listed and traded on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange (stock code: 600100)

Tsinghua Tongfang and its subsidiaries
(for the purpose of this report, excluding

the Group)

per cent.
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